
Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, MARCH 20, 2023 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of March 6, 2023. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 
business.) 

Staff Updates 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on proposed amendments to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to Planning & Zoning Commission review of site plans in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT). 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 03/10/2023) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
establishing procedures for Planning & Zoning Commission review of site plans in the Downtown 
Character District (CD-DT), upon its first consideration. (5 aye votes required due to denial by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission) 

3. Public hearing on proposed amendments to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to eliminating the shared parking requirement in the Downtown Charter District (CD-DT). 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 03/10/2023) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 

1



Page 2 of 3 

eliminating the shared parking requirement in the Downtown Charter District (CD-DT), upon its first 
consideration. (5 aye votes required due to denial by the Planning & Zoning Commission) 

4. Public hearing on proposed amendments to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to increasing residential parking requirements in the Downtown Charter District (CD-DT) to one 
parking space per bedroom. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 03/10/2023) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to increasing 
residential parking requirements in the Downtown Charter District (CD-DT) to one parking space per 
bedroom, upon its first consideration. (5 aye votes required due to denial by the Planning & Zoning 
Commission) 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

5. Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of March 6, 2023 relative to the 
following items: 
a) FY2024 Budget. 
b) Economic Development Incentives. 

6. Approve a proclamation recognizing March 20, 2023 as Robotics week. 

7. Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to the certified list for 
the position of Assistant Equipment Mechanic in the Public Works Department. 

8. Approve an Order Accepting Acknowledgment/Settlement Agreement with The Music Station, a/k/a 
Mini Mart, 1420 West 1st Street, for a first tobacco violation. 

9. Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Barn Happy, 11310 University Avenue, Special Class B retail native wine - renewal. 
b) Chilitos Mexican Bar and Grill, 1704 West 1st Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
c) Social House, 2208 College Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 
d) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, Class E retail alcohol – renewal. 
e) The Wine Shop, 305 Main Street, Special Class C retail alcohol – adding outdoor service. 
f) Godfather's Pizza, 1621 West 1st Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - new. 
g) Hurling Hatchet, 100 East 2nd Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

10. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

11. Resolution authorizing the Mayor’s appointment and two designated alternates to the Black Hawk 
County Metropolitan Area Transportation Organization (MPO) Policy Board. 

12. Resolution approving payment, and approving and accepting Release and Settlement Agreements 
with respect to the City’s issuance on August 31, 2022, of General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, 
Series 2022, maturing annually on June 1, 2024 through June 1, 2035, and authorizing and directing 
the Mayor and City Clerk to execute said Release and Settlement Agreements on behalf of the City, 
as follows: 
a) Investor “A” Maturity 2029 & 2030:  $19,029.55 
b) Investor “B” Maturity 2031 & 2032:  $22,470.25 

2



Page 3 of 3 

c) Investor “C” Maturity 2033 & 2034:   $22,342.10 
d) Investor “D” Maturity 2035:   $22,497.75 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Public Services with Cedar 
Valley Youth Soccer Association relative to providing opportunities for youth soccer. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for demo and discovery with Peters 
Construction Corp. relative to the Pheasant Ridge Golf Course Pro Shop. 

15. Resolution approving a Mixed Use (MU) Zoning District site plan for a triplex to be located on Lot 1, 
Pinnacle Ridge First Addition. 

16. Resolution approving the final plat of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase VI. 

17. Resolution approving and accepting a Temporary Construction Easement, in conjunction with the 
North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Change of Work Order to the Contract with 
Peterson Contractors, Inc. relative to West Viking Road Industrial Park Project Phase VI. 

19. Resolution receiving and filing bids, and approving and accepting the bid of Municipal Pipe Tool 
Company LLC, in the amount of $253,025.25, being the lowest bid received for the 2023 Sanitary 
Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 

20. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the bid of Peterson 
Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $2,664,055.20, being the lowest bid received for the 2023 Street 
Construction Project. 

21. Resolution setting April 3, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the maximum levy rate. 

22. Resolution setting April 3, 2023 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to Chapter 
26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to adaptive reuse of defunct institutional buildings. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

23. Allow Bills and Claims for March 20, 2023. 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Council Referrals 

Executive Session 

24. Executive Session for the annual discussion of the City Administrator’s performance pursuant to 
Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(i) and City Code Section 2-217. 

Adjournment 

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, MARCH 6, 2023 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:08 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None. Mayor Green led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

54175 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of February 20, 2023 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54176 - Mayor Green requested that item #8 on the Consent Calendar be moved up to 

special presentations on the agenda.  
 
54177 -     It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding to approve a proclamation 

recognizing March 2023 as Women's History month. Motion carried unanimously. 
  Human Rights Commissioner Julie Kliegl accepted and spoke about an event on 

March 28, at the Public Library celebrating women’s history. 
 
54178 - Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage Road, commented on the need for and requested 

additional public restrooms downtown. 
 
  T.J. Frein, 1319 Austin Way, suggested the city invest in a consultant for newly 

elected officials. 
 
54179 -     Community Development Director Sheetz commented on a Career Fair on 

Saturday, April 15, 2023 from 10AM – 2PM at the Public Works Complex. 
 
54180 - Mayor announced that this was the time and place for a hearing on the proposed 

condemnation of property located at 2208 Coventry Lane. Building Official Castle 
provided a brief summary of the nuisance property. Following comments by 
homeowner Ruth Walker, 2208 Coventry Lane, the Mayor declared the hearing 
closed and passed to the next order of business. 

54181-  Following a request by Mayor Green that the item be split into two separate 
motions, it was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that Resolution 
#23,077, declaring the property located at 2208 Coventry Lane to be a nuisance 
due to being structurally unsafe, a fire hazard, or otherwise dangerous to human 
life and health, be adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, 
Sires, Dunn.  Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#23,077 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54182 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,078, 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

ordering abatement of said nuisance by removal, repair or demolition of said 
property and requiring the owner of said property to abate said nuisance or 
submit a viable plan by March 20, 2023, be adopted. Following questions and 
comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Kruse, Sires, Ganfield, Harding and 
Dunn, and responses by Building Official Castle, the Mayor put the question on 
the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn.  Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,078 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54183 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 

24, 2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposal to enter 
into an Agreement for Private Development, and to consider conveyance of 
certain city-owned real estate to McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC. It 
was then moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that the proof of publication 
of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54184 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposal. Upon being advised that there were no written communications on file, 
the Mayor then called for oral comments. Economic Development Coordinator 
Graham provided a brief summary of the proposal. There being no one else 
present wishing to speak about the proposal, the Mayor declared the hearing 
closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
54185 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,079, 

approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development, 
and approving and authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying certain 
city-owned real estate to McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC, be 
adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,079 duly passed and 
adopted. 

54186 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 
24, 2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2023 Sanitary Sewer 
Rehabilitation Project. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Schultz that 
the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54187 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. City Engineer Wicke provided a 
brief summary of the proposed project. There being no one else present wishing 
to speak about the project, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to 
the next order of business. 

 
54188 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #23,080, 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 2023 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project, be adopted. Following 
questions and comments by Councilmembers Sires, Kruse, Ganfield and 
Schultz, and responses by Public Works Director Schrage, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,080 
duly passed and adopted. 

54189 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 
24, 2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2023 Street 
Construction Project. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that 
the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54190 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Principal Engineer Claypool 
provided a brief summary of the proposed project. There being no one else 
present wishing to speak about the project, the Mayor declared the hearing 
closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
54191 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,081, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 2023 Street Construction Project, be adopted. Following a question 
by Councilmember Ganfield and response by Principal Engineer Claypool, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, 
Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#23,081 duly passed and adopted. 

54192 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 
24, 2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the North Cedar Heights 
Area Reconstruction Project - Phase I. It was then moved by Kruse and 
seconded by Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54193 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. City Engineer Wicke provided a 
brief summary of the proposed project. There being no one else present wishing 
to speak about the project, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to 
the next order of business. 

 
54194 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,082, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project - Phase I, be 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,082 duly passed and 
adopted. 

54195 - It was moved by Schultz and seconded by deBuhr that the following items on the 
Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 

 
 Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of February 20, 

2023 relative to the following items: 
a) City Council Email System Discussion. 
b) Committee to draft request for proposal (RFP) for assessment of the Public 
Safety Department. 

 Receive and file the following resignation of members from Boards and 
Commissions: 
a) Melissa Heston, Human Rights Commission. 

 Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of January 2023. 

 Approve the application of Robert Schmitz, d/b/a Cedar Valley Bin Cleaning 
(Bennington Fields, LLC), for a Mobile Merchant license. 

 Approve an Order Accepting Acknowledgment/Settlement Agreement with Cedar 
Star, Inc., d/b/a Bani's, 2128 College Street, for a second tobacco violation. 

 Approve the application of Bani's, 2128 College Street, for a 
cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit - change in ownership. 

 Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Hatchlings & Hens, 109 Main Street, Special Class B retail native wine – 
renewal. 
b) Deringer’s Public Parlor, 314 ½ Main Street, Class C retail alcohol – renewal. 
c) The Stuffed Olive and Roxxy, 314-316 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & 
outdoor service - renewal. 
d) Hillstreet News & Tobacco, 2217 College Street, Class E retail alcohol - 
renewal. 
e) Bani's, 2128 College Street, Class E retail alcohol – new – change in 
ownership. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

54196 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

 
 Resolution #23,083, approving and authorizing execution of an Apple Device 

Enrollment Program Facilitation Agreement with USCC Distribution Co. LLC, 
relative to mobile device management. 

 Resolution #23,084, approving and authorizing execution of a First Amendment 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

to Agreement for Private Development and Memorandum of Agreement 
Regarding Minimum Improvements with McWing, L.L.C. 

 Resolution #23,085, approving and authorizing execution of a Lease relative to a 
property vacated by flood buyout programs. 

 Resolution #23,086, approving and authorizing expenditure of funds to repair a 
pump at the 17th Street Lift Station. 

 Resolution #23,087, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson 
Contractors, Inc. for the Oak Park Boulevard Sanitary Sewer Replacement 
Project. 

 Resolution #23,088, approving and accepting the contract and bond of K&W 
Electric, Inc. for the Hudson Road & West Ridgeway Avenue Intersection 
Improvements Project. 

 Resolution #23,089, approving and accepting two Warranty Deeds, in 
conjunction with the Main Street Reconstruction Project. 

 Resolution #23,090, approving and authorizing execution of twenty Owner 
Purchase Agreements; and approving and accepting twenty Temporary 
Construction Easements, four Storm Sewer and Drainage Easements, and one 
Permanent Water Main Easement, in conjunction with the North Cedar Heights 
Area Reconstruction Project. 

 Resolution #23,091, setting March 20, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the 
maximum levy rate. 

 Resolution #23,092, setting March 20, 2023 as the date of public hearing on 
proposed amendments to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to Planning & Zoning Commission review of site plans in the Downtown 
Character District (CD-DT). 

 Resolution #23,093, setting March 20, 2023 as the date of public hearing on 
proposed amendments to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to eliminating the shared parking requirement in the Downtown Charter District 
(CD-DT). 

 Resolution #23,094, setting March 20, 2023 as the date of public hearing on 
proposed amendments to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to increasing residential parking requirements in the Downtown Charter District 
(CD-DT) to one parking space per bedroom. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #23,083 through #23,094 duly 
passed and adopted. 

54197 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that the bills and claims of 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

March 6, 2023 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. 

 
54198 -     It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn to refer to the Public Works 

Committee discussion regarding the Cedar River dam and future options for the 
dam. Following comments by Councilmembers Dunn, Sires, Schultz and Kruse, 
and responses by City Administrator Gaines, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
54199 - It was moved by Schultz and seconded by Harding that the meeting be 

adjourned at 8:05 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

9

Item 1.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: March 20, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Petition from City Council to amend the Downtown Character District (TA22-003) 

 

 
On July 18th, 2022, the City Council held a public hearing on an ordinance to amend the Downtown 
Character District zoning regulations recommended unanimously by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission at their June 8th meeting. In effect, this ordinance would have required site plans for 
new buildings proposed in the Urban General, Urban General 2, and Storefront frontages to be 
reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and approved by the City Council as per the 
City Council’s original petition.  
 
After the close of the public hearing the City Council discussed the proposed ordinance and a 
motion passed to refer the ordinance back to the Planning and Zoning Commission with a petition 
for additional amendments to the zoning ordinance “to include review of any site plan that would 
expand the floor plan or where residential is being added, similar to language in Section 26-196, 
C.2.b.”  The minutes of this discussion are listed below.  
  
Minutes from the July 18th City Council meeting:  
 
It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that an ordinance, amending Chapter 26, 
Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to Planning & Zoning Commission review of site plans 
in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT), be passed upon its first consideration. Following 
questions by Councilmembers Harding and Kruse, and responses by City Attorney Rogers and 
Planning & Community Services Manager Howard, it was moved by Kruse and seconded by Sires 
to petition the Planning & Zoning Commission to include review of any site plan that would expand 
the floor plan or where residential is being added, similar to language in Section 26-196, C.2.b. 
Following comments and questions by Councilmembers deBuhr, Kruse, Dunn, Harding and Sires, 
and responses by Howard, it was moved by Harding to call the question on the original motion. 
Motion failed 3-4, with deBuhr, Kruse, Ganfield and Sires voting Nay. Following comments by 
Mayor Green, and questions and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Dunn 
and Schultz, the Mayor put the question on the motion to petition the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. Motion carried 4-3, with Dunn, Schultz and Harding voting Nay. 
  
 
 

10

Item 2.



 
 

Direction from Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
At the Commission’s August 10, 2022 meeting, the Commission discussed the petition from the 
City Council and directed staff to prepare draft language for consideration at a public hearing on 
August 24, 2022.   
 
At their August 24, 2022 meeting, on a vote of 4-5, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
recommended denial of the attached amendments to the zoning ordinance. Note: For 
context the P&Z minutes from both the original petition from the City Council (where the 
Commission recommended approval) and from the revised petition from the City Council (where 
the Commission recommended denial) are included below.  
 
Council Action at the September 6, 2022 meeting: At the Council meeting on September 6, 
the City Council postponed setting the public hearing date until after Council decided whether to 
amend the voting threshold necessary to pass an ordinance disapproved by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission from 2/3 majority to simple majority.  
 
The ordinance amendment regarding the voting threshold necessary to pass an ordinance 
disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission was resolved at the January 3, 2023 
Council meeting when the City Council failed to override Mayor’s veto of said ordinance change.   
 
RECOMMENDATION ON POSTPONED ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS: Staff now 
recommends that the Council consider the following recommendation of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission:  

 The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends denial of the petition from the City 
Council to require review and approval of site plans by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and the City Council for certain projects in the Downtown Character 
District as set forth in the attached red-lined draft.  

 
Note: Due to the disapproval of the proposed amendments by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, it will require 2/3 majority of Council to approve the amendments.   
 
 
Attachments:  

 Red-lined draft of the most recent proposed changes to the zoning code per the petition from City Council. 

 Proposed Ordinance 

 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 

Introduction 

03/23/22 
The Commission then considered a zoning text amendment to add a requirement for 
Planning and Zoning review of site plans in the CD-DT. Chair Leeper introduced the 
item and Ms. Howard provided background information. She explained that some 
commission members were not on the commission when the new code was 
discussed, so she will be providing some background information again. She 
explained that there was concern and frustration with the fact that it seemed as 
though a great deal of projects had to come through the commission for approval. 
The idea behind the new code was to create more clear and objective standards in 
the code, making less reason to have an extra review by the Commission. She 
discussed the role of the Commission, which includes planning for the future growth 
of the city, making recommendations on legislative matters related to planning and 
zoning (amendments to the zoning code, changes to zoning map, etc.) and making 

11

Item 2.



 
 

recommendations on subdivision of land, including street extensions and proposals 
for parks. Review of site plans was not one of the official listed duties and was added 
to the code later for certain newer zoning and overlay districts.  
 
Ms. Howard discussed potential options which include: 

1. Maintain the code as currently adopted 
2. Maintain as currently adopted, but staff provides monthly report to the 

Commission on site plans under review. 
3. Require new buildings in the UG, UG2 and Storefront frontages to be 

reviewed and approved by Planning and Zoning. 
4. Require all new buildings in the Downtown Character District to be reviewed 

and approved by Planning and Zoning 
5. Require all site plans to be reviewed by Planning and Zoning and approved by 

City Council as was previously done in the CBD Overlay. 
 
Mr. Larson feels that one of the primary objectives of the new zoning ordinance was 
to provide a clear set of rules and make it easier for developers and to potentially 
remove an often unnecessary step for the process. He suggested trying out option 
two to make sure there is some kind of a review. 

 
Ms. Crisman also likes the second option and stated that she feels a bit discouraged 
by how many things have been coming back from council that the commission has 
put so much work into. She’s not sure that adding another thing for approval is a 
great idea if things that have been worked so hard on are going to come back again. 
She likes the idea of staying in the loop and checking in on the work already done. 
 
Mr. Holst feels that the new zoning process is a lot more efficient and less subjective 
so it is easier to check things through. The only thing that will be unfortunate to lose is 
the chance for public input. He also said that Planning and Zoning is a check for staff.  

 
Mr. Leeper agreed with the comments from the Commission and stated that it is a 
tough place to be. He likes the second option and asked if there is a mechanism that 
would allow the planning and zoning commission to pull an item in for approval.  
 
Mr. Hartley feels that it would be nice to have an overview for projects, maybe in the 
form of a monthly report so that the Commission can decide if they should take a 
closer look. His concern isn’t just with the Commission not being able to see what is 
going to happen, but to give the public a chance to comment as well. 

 
Ms. Howard stated that there needs to be a clear path created to deciding on whether 
a project needs to be considered by the Commission. After further conversation, the 
general direction from the Commission to go with a mixture of options two and three.  

 
Review of 

proposed 

amendments 

5/25/2022 

The Commission then considered Zoning Text Amendment and review of certain site 
plans in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT). Chair Leeper introduced the item 
and Ms. Howard provided background information with regard to previously 
discussed potential options for the review of site plans in the Downtown Character 
District. She discussed the proposed code language and showed a rendering of the 
frontage designations within the downtown area where P&Z and Council review of 
site plans would be required if these changes are adopted. She displayed the 
clarified/updated code language being proposed and explained what those changes 
mean and asked if there were any questions. Staff recommended that the 
Commission discuss the draft text amendment, provide direction, and consider setting 
a date of public hearing for the June 8 meeting. 

12

Item 2.



 
 

 
Ms. Saul commented that the code changes proposed reflect what the Commission 
discussed and asked for. There was brief discussion with regard to different aspects 
of the changes.  
 
A public hearing was set for the Commission meeting on June 8, 2022. 
 

   

Public hearing and 

Vote 

6/8/2022 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a zoning text amendment 
with regard to review of certain site plans in the CD-DT District. Chair Leeper 
introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background information. She explained 
that it is currently on the table to change the zoning code to require new buildings in 
the Urban General (UG), Urban General 2 (UG2) and Storefront frontages to be 
reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission. She displayed a rendering of the 
Character District and the frontage destinations where the proposed amendments 
would apply. She offered to answer any questions about the proposed code changes 
and recommended that that Commission open the public hearing, discuss and make 
a recommendation to City Council on the proposed amendments. 
 
Ms. Saul asked about the process if a residence is going to add square footage. Ms. 
Howard stated that this text amendment only addresses new buildings.  
 
Mr. Holst clarified that this amendment addresses concerns about new construction 
and public input. Mr. Leeper added that this is a check and balance for significant 
projects in the area. Mr. Larson noted that the amendment could be revisited after a 
year to see if it is still necessary. 
 
Mr. Larson made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Lynch seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved unanimously with 9 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, 
Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), and 0 nays. 
 

 
Introduction of 

second petition  

8/10/2022 

The first item of business was a zoning text amendment for reviewing certain site 
plans in the CD-DT zoning district. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard 
provided background information. She explained that in March the Commission 
considered various options for amending the code to have site plans reviewed at the 
Planning and Zoning meeting and approved by Council. Direction was given that the 
Commission is interested in reviewing site plans for new buildings in the Urban 
General and Urban General 2 and Storefront Frontages. In May staff brought forward 
draft language for Commission approval and a public hearing was held on June 8. 
City Council set a public hearing date for July 18 and Council approved a motion to 
refer the ordinance back to the Commission to consider amending the zoning 
ordinance “to include review of any site plan that would expand the floor plan or 
where residential is being added, similar to language in Section 26-196C.2.b.” Staff 
recommends that the Commission discuss and provide direction to staff regarding the 
petition from City council.  
 
Mr. Leeper asked what has changed since the last time the Commission voted 
unanimously on the item. Ms. Howard stated that she doesn’t believe anything has 
changed. Council just felt that they would like to see further review by the 
Commission and Council. Mr. Holst stated that he would be okay with the added 
review if that’s what Council wants.  
 

13

Item 2.



 
 

Ms. Crisman disagreed stating that the code is written the way it is makes 
requirements clear. The Commission spending more time reviewing more things is 
not a good use of time as there are many projects that will be held up. Ms. Saul 
agreed with Mr. Holst.  
 
Mr. Leeper stated that he has heard comments in the field that the process has been 
too complex and takes too long. People want to know specifically and clearly what 
can and can’t be done. If the review process takes too much time it costs developers 
a lot of extra money.  
 
Ms. Saul stated that she doesn’t believe that parking issues have been fully 
addressed. Ms. Crisman felt that the code spells out what the parking expectations 
are so any added review is just adding a step. The review would not be needed if the 
code is followed.  
 
Mr. Holst asked what Council specifically needs from the Commission. Ms. Howard 
stated that the Commission would need to vote on their petition for the changes. Staff 
would prepare an ordinance amendment per council direction, set a public hearing 
and the Commission could vote yes or no to the changes. If the Commission votes 
yes, Council would need majority vote for approval. If the Commission votes no, it 
would trigger a council supermajority vote on amendment. Staff will need to draft out 
what City Council is requesting for a vote by the Commission. Public hearing is 
scheduled for the August 24, 2022 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.  

 
Public hearing and 

Vote 

8/24/2022 

The first item of business was a zoning text amendment regarding certain site plans 
in the CD-DT district. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided 
background information and explained that this is a public hearing regarding a petition 
from City Council to require P&Z review of site plans that would expand the floor plan 
or where residential is being added, similar to language in Section 26-196C.2.b. She 
showed the draft of the new language being proposed per the Council’s petition. Staff 
recommends that the Commission discuss the proposed amendments to the Zoning 
Code and make a recommendation to City Council.  
 
Ms. Moser stated that she feels this is putting the Commission in an awkward position 
as it was sent back to them after they had agreed on this item unanimously in an 
effort to streamline the process. To change it would add an extra layer to the process. 
 
Ms. Grybovich added that no planning documents are perfect and they have 
discussed the ability to revisit the item down the road to allow the Commission to see 
if changes should be made. A lot of work has gone into this document and she feels 
that they should move forward with what the Commission has proposed.  
 
Mr. Hartley stated that he has wrestled with creating a process that is efficient and 
easy to move through, but he also likes the idea of transparency and the ability for 
citizens to see everything laid out for them to see what is being proposed. He asked 
how much comes to the Commission currently with regard to site plans throughout 
the City. Ms. Howard stated that there are a number of zones where site plans are 
not reviewed through the Commission and City Council (i.e., R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, C-1, 
C-2, etc.) Typically, the zones that are reviewed are planned developments that have 
a master plan associated with them (i.e., RP, HWY-1, MU, and other Overlay Zones, 
such as the previous CBD Overlay).  
 
Mr. Holst feels that the positive side is the consideration of public transparency and 
can see the merit to adding the review. He believes there is a good deal of public 

14

Item 2.



 
 

interest and feels that if this is what the Council would like to see he is comfortable 
with their recommendation. Ms. Saul stated she agrees with Mr. Holst. 
 
Mr. Larson feels that the proposed language is a good middle ground and would 
support some additional oversight as long as the end goal is the intent to remove it 
from the equation. He doesn’t believe the Commission needs to see everything that 
comes through and suggested that if it is amended to create more review there 
should be an agreement to revisit this in a year, if the process is too onerous.   
 
Ms. Crisman stated her concern that once amended the ordinance will not be 
changed in the future to reduce unnecessary oversight of site plans. She doesn’t feel 
that it has been sent back to the Commission from a concern for the public. She 
believes that the Commission has made every effort to make the code clear and it is 
P&Z’s responsibility to focus on planning for the future, such as improvements to the 
code for College Hill and other areas that need attention rather than on minor site 
plan reviews. She stated that staff is very capable and excellent at reviewing site 
plans. The Commission had agreed previously that they were mostly just curious to 
see how it was working, not that there was concern or need for additional public 
comment. She doesn’t feel that the public is worried about adding additional square 
footage to an existing building. She would like to move forward so the Commission 
can focus on other matters that need their attention. Mr. Larson agreed with the 
majority of these sentiments. 
 
Mr. Holst stated that he could understand that this is a big change. He disagreed that 
the public doesn’t care about projects like these. Mr. Larson noted that the only way 
that the Commission can decide on how the change will work is to make a decision 
and give it time to try out the process to see if there are any shortcomings that need 
to be taken into account. 
 
 Ms. Crisman stated that she doesn’t believe that this is taking away the public’s 
ability to provide comments. Every meeting has time set aside for public comment 
where they could share their thoughts and ideas.  
 
 Mr. Holst noted that people won’t have a chance to comment on projects that aren’t 
coming through Planning and Zoning. Mr. Leeper stated that the reason that the 
projects aren’t coming through the Commission is because the rules in the code are 
clear so it would not be necessary. He feels that this is more of an issue of process 
and that the Commission spent a lot of time trying to get this right. The previous 
recommendation from the Commission to focus additional review only for new 
buildings was approved unanimously and he is wondering how long these minor 
changes to the code will continue to come back from the Council.  
 
 Ms. Grybovich asked what happens next in the process. Ms. Howard stated that at 
this time the Commission should decide to recommend for or against the proposed 
changes per the Council petition. If denial is recommended, it will require 2/3 of the 
Council to pass the ordinance. If approval is recommended a simple majority of 
Council will be required to pass the ordinance.  
 
 Mr. Larson made a motion to approve the proposed language changes. Ms. Saul 
seconded the motion. The motion was denied with 4 ayes (Hartley, Holst, Larson and 
Saul) and 5 nays (Crisman, Grybovych, Leeper, Lynch and Moser). 
 

 

 

15

Item 2.



Note that in the red-lined version of the proposed code amendments, the strike-through 
notation indicates language to be deleted. Underlined text is new language added.  All 
other language is unchanged and is included to provide context for the changes 
proposed. The highlighted section is the language that was amended per City Council’s 
petition for further revisions forwarded after the public hearing at City Council on July 18, 
2022. 

Amend Section 26-191C., Applicability, as follows:  

C.  Applicability and Development Review 

 1.  Where an adopted Regulating Plan is shown on the zoning map, these Character District 

standards immediately apply at the parcel level.  

 2. The process for developing or redeveloping within a Character District is delineated in 

Section 26-36 through Section 26-39. All applications for development or redevelopment 

within a Character District shall be reviewed and approved according to the procedures 

set forth in Section 26-36 through Section 26-39. Applications shall be administratively 

reviewed and approved, except for the following:   

a. Site plans for new buildings on property designated as Urban General, Urban General 

2, or Storefront on an adopted Regulating Plan.  

b. Any plan for expanding the gross floor area of an existing building on property 

designated as Urban General, Urban General 2, or Storefront on an adopted 

Regulating Plan.  

c. Any plan for one or more additional dwelling units within an existing building on 

property designated as Urban General, Urban General 2, or Storefront on an adopted 

Regulating Plan.  

3. With regard to any of the exceptions listed in subparagraphs a., b., and c., above, the 

Zoning Administrator, in consultation with the Zoning Review Committee and Technical 

Review Committee, shall prepare and forward a report along with the site plan and 

supporting documents to the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council for review 

and approval according to procedures set forth in Section 26-36(d), Review and Decision-

making. 

Amend Section 26-36 and 26-37, as follows:  

Sec. 26-36. Administrative Determination Site Plan Review, Proportionate Compliance 

Determinations, and Minor Adjustments 

(a) APPLICABILITY GENERAL APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 

The Zoning Administrator shall review and decide upon applications for the following 
administrative reviews and code adjustments in consultation with the Zoning Review 
Committee(ZRC) and/or the staff Technical Review Committee, as applicable. Some of 
these processes have additional review and approval requirements; a cross-reference to 
those requirements is provided in the right column.  

Permit or Adjustment Additional Review Requirements 

Site Plan Section 26-37.D 

16

Item 2.



Proportionate 
Compliance 

n/a 

Minor Adjustment Section 26-39.E 

Applications and submittal materials required for site plan review, proportionate compliance 
determinations, and minor adjustments under this Chapter shall be submitted on forms and 
in such numbers as required by the City. The applicable filing fee shall be paid at the time 
the application is filed. Additional fees may be required for re-submittals. Fees are 
determined by resolution of the City Council.  

(b) APPLICATION  COMPLETENESS REVIEW 

(1) Applications shall not be processed until all fees and materials have been submitted and 
are deemed sufficient complete in form and content such that recommendations, as 
required, and a decision may be made on the application by the Zoning Administrator, 
or other decision-making body, as specified in this chapter. The Zoning Administrator 
shall determine application sufficiency completeness.  

(2) If an application is deemed insufficient incomplete, the Zoning Administrator shall inform 
the applicant of the specific submittal requirements that have not been met. The Zoning 
Administrator may provide notice in writing, electronically, or in conversation with the 
applicant.   

(3) If an application is deemed insufficient incomplete, the applicant must resolve and 
resubmit the materials required to complete the application within 30 days of the date 
informed of the insufficiency of the application.  
a. An insufficient incomplete application that has not been revised to meet the 

completeness requirements shall expire on the 30th day.  An expired application 
shall be returned to the applicant along with any original documents submitted in 
support of the application.  

b. The City, at its discretion, may retain the application fee paid. Once an application 
has expired, the application must be resubmitted in full, including payment of the 
application fee. 

(c) REVIEW, REFERRAL, AND RECOMMENDATION 

(1) Upon submission of an application, the Zoning Administrator shall review the application 
and accompanying documentation to determine whether the information included in the 
application is sufficient to evaluate the application against the approval criteria of the 
procedure or permit requested. 

(2) The Zoning Administrator may refer any application to the Zoning Review Committee 
(ZRC) or Technical Review Committee (TRC) for review and recommendation.  

(d) REVIEW AND DECISION-MAKING 

(1) The Zoning Administrator shall review the Applications shall be reviewed for 
conformance with all applicable provisions of this Code chapter.  

(2) To be approved, an application shall be fully consistent with the standards of this chapter 
Code unless a minor adjustment is concurrently approved to allow specified deviation 
from applicable standards. An administrative approval may include instructions and 
clarifications regarding compliance with this Code, but shall not be approved with 
conditions that require action beyond the specific requirements of the City Code of 
Ordinances.   

(3) Except as specified in paragraph (4) below, after consultation with the TRC and ZRC, as 
applicable, the Zoning Administrator shall approve or deny the applications for site plan 
review and minor adjustments and shall make determinations regarding proportionate 
compliance and provide written notification of the decision to the applicant. If an 
application is denied, the written notification shall include the reasons for denial. 
Administrative decisions are appealable pursuant to Section 26-62.  

17

Item 2.



 
(4) For any site plan that requires Planning and Zoning Commission and/or City Council 

review and approval, as set forth in this Chapter, the Zoning Administrator shall prepare 
a staff report and recommendation based on the approval criteria, standards and 
requirements of this Code, and any other applicable policies and regulations. The staff 
report and recommendation shall be forwarded to the Planning and Zoning Commission 
for its review and recommendation to the City Council. If the Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommends denial, the site plan shall not be forwarded to the City Council, 
unless so requested by the applicant in writing. After consideration of the staff report and 
the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation, the City Council may approve, 
approve with conditions, or deny the site plan. If a site plan is denied, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and/or City Council, as applicable, shall state the reasons for denial.  

 
(e) APPEAL 

1. Administrative determinations are appealable pursuant to Section 26-62. 

Sec. 26-37. Site Plan  

(a) APPLICABILITY 

The purpose of this section is to set forth the procedures and criteria for review and approval 
of site plans, which shall include when referenced in this Chapter, site development plans, 
development plans, or similar.  Site plans are technical documents that illustrate how the 
structure(s), layout of an area, and proposed uses meet the requirements of this chapter and 
any other applicable ordinances, standards, regulations, and with all previously approved 
plans applicable to the property.  

(b) AUTHORITY 

A site plan is required for: 

(1) Character Districts 

a. Any application for development in a character district. 
b. All requests for structures, architectural elements or accessory structures (front 

porch, front yard fence) at or forward of the required building line, and accessory or 
temporary uses; however, for minor accessory structures not located forward of the 
required building line, such as sheds, fences, or decks, the site plan shall only be 
required to show the location of the proposed structure or addition in relation to 
property boundaries, required setbacks, easements, and terrain changes as more 
fully detailed in this Code; 

(2) Traditional Zone Districts All other Zoning Districts 

a. Any application for a commercial, industrial, institutional, or multi-unit residential 
dwelling project development;  

b. Any application for development requiring site plan review, site development plan 
review, development plan review, plan review, or similar review as set forth 
elsewhere in this chapter.  

(c) APPLICATION PROCEDURES 

(1) A pre-application meeting with the Zoning Review Committee (ZRC) is required prior to 
the submission of a site plan application for development in a character district. Pre-
application meetings are optional and encouraged for all other applications. 

(2) The applicant shall submit the site plan application to the Planning and Community 
Services Division. Application submittal deadlines and requirements shall be established 
on submittal forms available from the Planning and Community Services Division and on 
the City’s website.   

18

Item 2.



(d) DECISION CRITERIA 

The site plan shall be reviewed against the following criteria:  

(1) The site plan is consistent with all applicable adopted plans and policies; 
(2) The site plan is consistent with any prior approvals, including any conditions that may 

have been placed on such approvals; and  
(3) The site plan conforms with all applicable requirements of this Code the Code of 

Ordinances, or with all applicable requirements as modified by a request for a an 
approved minor adjustment. 

(e) LIMITATION OF APPROVAL 

Zoning Administrator approval of a site plan does not in any way imply approval by any other 
City department. 

(f) EFFECT 

(1) Approved site plans shall be binding upon the property owner(s) and their successors 
and assigns.   

(2) No permit shall be issued for any building, structure, or use that does not conform to an 
approved site plan.   

(3) No building, structure, use or other element of the approved site plan shall be modified 
without amending the site plan, unless it is determined by the City that such modification 
will not require an amended site plan.   

(4) All buildings, structures and uses shall remain in conformance with the approved site 
plan or be subject to enforcement action. 

(g) POST-APPROVAL ACTIONS 

(1) Expiration  

a. Approved site plans shall expire one year after approval if the applicable permit(s) 
for the proposed development a building permit has have not been issued. or the 
approved use established. In the event that the documents expire due to the 
passage of this time period, new site plan review documents must be submitted for 
approval in the same manner as an original application for development review.   

b. For good cause, an extension not to exceed one year may be granted by the Zoning 
Administrator. Requests for an extension must be in writing stating the reasons for 
such request.  

(2) Modifications to Site plans  

The holder of an approved site plan may request an adjustment to the document, or the 
conditions of approval, by submitting either an application for minor adjustment or an 
amended site plan, whichever is appropriate, to the Zoning Administrator. An amended 
site plan shall be filed and processed in accordance with the procedures specified in 
this Chapter for the an initial site plan submittal, or as otherwise specified in this Chapter.  

 

19

Item 2.



Prepared by: Karen Howard, P&CS Manager, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO CLARIFY TERMINOLOGY AND ESTABLISH 

NEW PROCEDURES FOR REVIEW OF SITE PLANS FOR 

DEVELOPMENT IN THE DOWNTOWN CHARACTER DISTRICT 

BY AMENDING SECTION 26-191, INTRODUCTION TO 

CHARACTER DISTRICTS AND DEFINITIONS, UNDER DIVISION 

2, SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND 

DISTRICT REGULATIONS; AND SECTION 26-36, SITE PLAN 

REVIEW, PROPORTIONATE COMPLIANCE DETERMINATIONS, 

AND MINOR ADJUSTMENTS, AND SECTION 26-37, SITE PLAN,  

UNDER DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, UNDER ARTICLE II, 

ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT; ALL WITHIN 

CHAPTER 26, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

WHEREAS, the Downtown Character District zoning regulations, adopted November 1, 

2021, established procedures for the review of site plans for development within the Downtown 

Character District; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has petitioned the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to consider requiring Planning and Zoning Commission Review of development 

proposals in the Downtown Character District rather than administrative review and approval; 

and 

WHEREAS, after a public hearing on June 8, 2022, the Planning and  

Zoning Commission recommended approval of zoning code amendments to clarify the procedures 

for review of site plans in the Downtown Character District and to require Planning and Zoning 

Commission review and City Council approval of site plans for new buildings in the Urban 

General, Urban General 2, and Storefront frontages, with all other site plans to be reviewed 

administratively (TA22-003); and  

 

WHEREAS, after a public hearing on July 18, 2022, the City Council passed a motion to refer 

the ordinance back to the Planning and Zoning Commission with a petition for additional 

amendments to the zoning ordinance to include review of any site plan that would expand the floor 

plan or where residential is being added; and  

 

WHEREAS, after a public hearing on August 24, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission 

recommended denial the July 18th petition from the City Council;  

 

WHEREAS, due to the disapproval of the proposed petition by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission, this ordinance will require 2/3 majority vote to pass.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 
 

20

Item 2.



Section 1: Subsection C, Applicability, of Section 26-191, Introduction to Character Districts 

and Definitions,  within Division 2 Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and District 

Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, is hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof:  
 

C.  Applicability and Development Review 

1. Where an adopted Regulating Plan is shown on the zoning map, these Character 
District standards immediately apply at the parcel level.  

2. All applications for development or redevelopment within a Character District shall be 
reviewed and approved according to the procedures set forth in Section 26-36 through 
Section 26-39. Applications shall be administratively reviewed and approved, except 
for the following:   
a. Site plans for new buildings on property designated as Urban General, Urban 

General 2, or Storefront on an adopted Regulating Plan.  
b. Any plan for expanding the gross floor area of an existing building on property 

designated as Urban General, Urban General 2, or Storefront on an adopted 
Regulating Plan.  

c. Any plan for one or more additional dwelling units within an existing building on 
property designated as Urban General, Urban General 2, or Storefront on an 
adopted Regulating Plan.  

3. With regard to any of the exceptions listed in subparagraphs a, b, and c, above, the 
Zoning Administrator, in consultation with the Zoning Review Committee and Technical 
Review Committee, shall prepare and forward a report along with the site plan and 
supporting documents to the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council for 
review and approval according to procedures set forth in Section 26-36(d), Review and 
Decision-making. 

 

Section 2: Section 26-36, within Division 1, Generally, of Article II, Administration and 

Enforcement, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, is hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof: 

Sec. 26-36. Site Plan Review, Proportionate Compliance Determinations, and Minor 

Adjustments 

(a) GENERAL APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 

Applications and submittal materials required for site plan review, proportionate 
compliance determinations, and minor adjustments under this Chapter shall be 
submitted on forms and in such numbers as required by the City. The applicable filing 
fee shall be paid at the time the application is filed. Additional fees may be required for 
re-submittals. Fees are determined by resolution of the City Council.  

(b) APPLICATION  COMPLETENESS REVIEW 

(1) Applications shall not be processed until all fees and materials have been submitted 
and are deemed complete in form and content such that recommendations, as 
required, and a decision may be made on the application by the Zoning 
Administrator, or other decision-making body, as specified in this chapter. The 
Zoning Administrator shall determine application completeness.  

(2) If an application is deemed incomplete, the Zoning Administrator shall notify the 
applicant of the specific submittal requirements that have not been met.  

(3) If an application is deemed incomplete, the applicant must resubmit the materials 
required to complete the application within 30 days of the date notified of the 
insufficiency of the application.  

21

Item 2.



a. An incomplete application that has not been revised to meet the completeness 
requirements shall expire on the 30th day.  An expired application shall be 
returned to the applicant along with any original documents submitted in support 
of the application.  

b. The City, at its discretion, may retain the application fee paid. Once an 
application has expired, the application must be resubmitted in full, including 
payment of the application fee. 

(c) REVIEW, REFERRAL, AND RECOMMENDATION 

(1) Upon submission of an application, the Zoning Administrator shall review the 
application and accompanying documentation to determine whether the information 
included in the application is sufficient to evaluate the application against the 
approval criteria of the procedure or permit requested. 

(2) The Zoning Administrator may refer any application to the Zoning Review 
Committee (ZRC) or Technical Review Committee (TRC) for review and 
recommendation.  

(d) REVIEW AND DECISION-MAKING 

(1) Applications shall be reviewed for conformance with all applicable provisions of this 
Code.  

(2) To be approved, an application shall be fully consistent with the standards of this 
Code, unless a minor adjustment is concurrently approved to allow specified 
deviation from applicable standards.  

(3) Except as specified in paragraph (4) below, after consultation with the TRC and 
ZRC, as applicable, the Zoning Administrator shall approve or deny applications for 
site plan review and minor adjustments and shall make determinations regarding 
proportionate compliance and provide written notification of the decision to the 
applicant. If an application is denied, the written notification shall include the 
reasons for denial. Administrative decisions are appealable pursuant to Section 26-
62.  

(4) For any site plan that requires Planning and Zoning Commission and/or City Council 
review and approval, as set forth in this Chapter, the Zoning Administrator shall 
prepare a staff report and recommendation based on the approval criteria, 
standards and requirements of this Code, and any other applicable policies and 
regulations. The staff report and recommendation shall be forwarded to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission for its review and recommendation to the City 
Council. If the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends denial, the site plan 
shall not be forwarded to the City Council, unless so requested by the applicant in 
writing. After consideration of the staff report and the Planning and Zoning 
Commission’s recommendation, the City Council may approve, approve with 
conditions, or deny the site plan. If a site plan is denied, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and/or City Council, as applicable, shall state the reasons for denial.  

 

Section 3: Section 26-37, Site Plan, within Division 1, Generally, of Article II, Administration and 

Enforcement, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, is hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof: 

Sec. 26-37. Site Plan  
(a) APPLICABILITY 

The purpose of this section is to set forth the procedures and criteria for review and 
approval of site plans, which shall include when referenced in this Chapter, site 
development plans, development plans, or similar.  Site plans are technical documents 
that illustrate how the structure(s), layout of an area, and proposed uses meet the 

22

Item 2.



requirements of this chapter and any other applicable ordinances, standards, 
regulations, and with all previously approved plans applicable to the property.  

(b) AUTHORITY 

A site plan is required for: 

(1) Character Districts 

a. Any application for development in a character district. 
b. All requests for structures, architectural elements or accessory structures (e.g., 

front porch, front yard fence) at or forward of the required building line, and 
accessory or temporary uses; however, for minor accessory structures not 
located forward of the required building line, such as sheds, fences, or decks, 
the site plan shall only be required to show the location of the proposed structure 
or addition in relation to property boundaries, required setbacks, easements, and 
terrain changes as more fully detailed in this Code. 

(2) All Other Zoning Districts 

a. Any application for commercial, industrial, institutional, or multi-unit residential 
development;  

b. Any application for development requiring site plan review, site development plan 
review, development plan review, plan review, or similar review as set forth 
elsewhere in this chapter.  

(c) APPLICATION PROCEDURES 
(1) A pre-application meeting with the Zoning Review Committee (ZRC) is required prior 

to the submission of a site plan application for development in a character district. 
Pre-application meetings are optional but encouraged for all other applications. 

(2) The applicant shall submit the site plan application to the Planning and Community 
Services Division. Application submittal deadlines and requirements shall be 
established on submittal forms available from the Planning and Community Services 
Division and on the City’s website.   

(d) DECISION CRITERIA 
The site plan shall be reviewed against the following criteria:  

(1) The site plan is consistent with all applicable adopted plans and policies; and 
(2) The site plan is consistent with any prior approvals, including any conditions that 

may have been placed on such approvals; and  
(3) The site plan conforms with all applicable requirements of this Code, or with all 

applicable requirements as modified by an approved minor adjustment. 

(e) EFFECT 
(1) Approved site plans shall be binding upon the property owner(s) and their 

successors and assigns.   
(2) No building, structure, use or other element of the approved site plan shall be 

modified without amending the site plan, unless it is determined by the City that such 
modification will not require an amended site plan.   

(3) All buildings, structures and uses shall remain in conformance with the approved site 
plan or be subject to enforcement action. 

(f) POST-APPROVAL ACTIONS 

(1) Expiration  

a. Approved site plans shall expire one year after approval if the applicable 
permit(s) for the proposed development have not been issued. In the event that 
the documents expire due to the passage of this time period, new site plan 
review documents must be submitted for approval in the same manner as an 
original application for site plan review.   

23

Item 2.



b. For good cause, an extension not to exceed one year may be granted by the 
Zoning Administrator. Requests for an extension must be in writing stating the 
reasons for such request.  

(2) Modifications to Site Plans  
The holder of an approved site plan may request an adjustment to the document, or 
the conditions of approval, by submitting either an application for minor adjustment 
or an amended site plan, whichever is appropriate, to the Zoning Administrator. An 
amended site plan shall be filed and processed in accordance with the procedures 
specified in this Chapter for the initial site plan submittal, or as otherwise specified 
in this Chapter. 

 

INTRODUCED:        

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 
____________________________ 

       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

24

Item 2.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: March 20, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Petition from City Council to amend parking requirements in the Downtown 
Character District (TA22-004) 

 

 
At the Committee meeting on August 15, 2022, the City Council directed staff to forward to the Planning 
and Zoning Commission a petition to eliminate the mandatory requirements for shared parking from the 
zoning code that currently apply in the Downtown Character District.  The motion was made for this 
petition after a previous Council Committee discussion about the time and location standards for shared 
parking. It was decided that given the continued concerns about the shared parking requirements that 
the best course of action would be to eliminate these requirements from the zoning ordinance but 
continue to allow and even encourage voluntary agreements between property owners to share parking. 
In addition, a motion was made to increase the required parking for multi-unit dwellings from 0.75 spaces 
per bedroom to one parking space per bedroom. 
 
Background 
 
The Downtown Character District regulations were adopted by City Council on November 1, 2021. These 
new zoning regulations are intended to implement the Imagine Downtown! Vision Plan adopted in 
November of 2019. The vision plan was the result of public workshops, a week-long community design 
charrette, and other public outreach events that took place in 2019, where community members, 
including downtown merchants, property owners, residents, and other stakeholders were invited to share 
their feedback and ideas for the future of Downtown and surrounding neighborhoods.  
 
The second phase of the project was to draft zoning regulations to encourage future development that is 
consistent with the adopted Vision.  The draft code was presented to the public in February, 2021. The 
Commission considered the new code at four special work sessions and held 3 public hearings to 
consider public comments and suggestions for changes to the code.  The Commission discussed all 
proposed changes to the draft and made decisions on each one before forwarding a final draft to the City 
Council for consideration in May 2021.  The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommended draft was 
reviewed at three City Council Committee of the Whole meetings and two work sessions before a public 
hearing was scheduled. The draft was debated at three separate readings before being adopted on 
November 1, 2021.  
 
In January 2022, the City Council petitioned the Planning and Zoning to consider eliminating the shared 
parking requirements in the code. Council expressed several concerns about the shared parking 
requirements, including concerns about requiring property owners to make their private property available 
for public use and about how the shared spaces will be managed and monitored over time. A majority of 
the City Council felt that the potential downsides outweighed the potential benefits of this requirement and 

25

Item 3.



 
 

requested the Commission consider eliminating the shared parking requirements from the zoning code. 
They noted that property owners would still have the option to voluntarily share their parking with other 
users or the public. The Commission considered this request at a public hearing on February 9 and on a 
3-4 vote disapproved the Council’s petition.  
 
At that same time the City Council also petitioned the Planning and Zoning Commission to consider 
increasing the parking requirement for multi-unit dwellings from 0.5 spaces per bedroom to 1 space per 
bedroom. Based on the recommendations of the parking study conducted by WGI in late 2018, along with 
stakeholder interviews during the Visioning process, the consultants drafting the Downtown Character 
District Code (Ferrell Madden), included a reduction in the parking requirements for residential within 
mixed-use and multi-unit buildings from 1 space per bedroom to 0.5 spaces per bedroom (along with 0.25 
spaces per bedroom for shared parking).  
 
A majority of the City Council expressed concerns about lowering the parking requirements for residential 
uses in multi-unit and mixed-use buildings downtown and petitioned the Commission to consider re-
establishing the previous requirement of one parking space per bedroom.  
 
At a public hearing on February 9th, a motion to approve the Council’s petition failed for a lack of a second 
to the motion, and therefore was considered disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission.  
 
As an alternative, the Planning and Zoning Commission on a separate motion recommended, on a 4-3 
vote, approval of an amendment to City Code Section 26-196, Character District Parking to increase the 
parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings to 0.75 spaces per bedroom, 
but not less than 1 space per unit.  
 
Based on the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendations, the City Council approved the 
ordinance amendment to increase the parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit 
buildings to 0.75 spaces per bedroom, but not less than one parking space per unit.  After a public hearing 
and three readings, the amendment was adopted on April 4, 2022.  
 
On September 14, 2022 the Planning and Zoning Commission discussed the Council’s latest petition to 
eliminate the shared parking requirements from the Downtown Character District Code and the petition to 
increase the parking requirements for mixed-use and multi-unit buildings to 1 space per bedroom and held 
a public hearing on September 28, 2022 regarding the same.  
 
(Note: For ease of review, the minutes from the Planning and Zoning Commission meetings from the 
original petition in January are attached below along with the minutes from the September 14th meeting 
and September 28th Planning and Zoning Commission meetings for this latest petition).  
 

Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation: After a public hearing on September 28, 

2022, on vote of 1 aye (Saul) to 7 nays (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Lynch and Moser), 
the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended denial of the petition from the City Council to eliminate 
the shared parking requirements from the Downtown Character District Code; and 
 
On a vote of 1 aye (Saul) to 7 nays (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Lynch and Moser), the 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommended denial of the petition from the City Council to increase 
the required parking for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings from 0.75 spaces per 
bedroom to 1 space per bedroom.   

 

Council Action at the October 17, 2022 meeting: At the Council meeting on October 17, 2022, 
the City Council postponed setting the public hearing date until after Council decided whether to 
amend the voting threshold necessary to pass an ordinance disapproved by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission from 2/3 majority to simple majority.  

26

Item 3.



 
 

 
The ordinance amendment regarding the voting threshold necessary to pass an ordinance 
disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission was resolved at the January 3, 2023 
Council meeting when the City Council failed to override Mayor’s veto of said ordinance change.   
 

RECOMMENDATION ON POSTPONED ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS:  
Staff now recommends that Council consider the following recommendations of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission:  

1. The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends denial of the petition from the City Council to 
eliminate the shared parking requirements from the Downtown Character District Code; and 
 

2. The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends denial of the petition from the City Council to 
increase the required parking for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings from 0.75 
spaces per bedroom to 1 space per bedroom. 

 
Note: 2/3 majority vote of the Council will be required to pass each of these ordinances.  
 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES FROM COUNCIL’S PREVIOUS PETITION 
Discussion 
1/26/2022 

The first item of business was a zoning text amendment to amend CD-DT to eliminate 
shared parking requirements. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard 
provided background information. She explained that City Council has petitioned the 
Commission to consider amending the parking requirements in the Downtown Character 
District by deleting the requirements for shared parking and to increase the minimum 
parking requirement for multi-unit residential development to one space per bedroom 
and ensuring that there is at least one parking space per unit.  
 
Ms. Howard provided a summary of the Downtown Visioning and Code update project 
for the new Planning and Zoning Commissioners who were not on the Commission 
during the public review process for the project.  She displayed a rendering of the 
boundary of the Downtown Character District and discussed the previous zoning within 
the boundaries. She detailed the public review process that had taken place at the 
Planning and Zoning Commission before the Commission made their recommendation 
to the City Council in May of last year. Ms. Howard briefly described the two types of 
parking in the Central Business District, public and private. She discussed each and 
explained that the current issue is whether there should be parking requirements on 
private property in the downtown area. She explained why cities are moving away from 
focusing on zoning requirements for parking and more toward public shared parking 
solutions. She described the distinction between short-term and long-term parking 
needs, reasons why cities rely on public parking, particularly for short-term customer 
parking, and the unintended consequences of high parking requirements. Ms. Howard 
discussed the parking study that was done in 2018 and how those results affected the 
zoning standards proposed in the new zoning code.  She noted that while other public 
parking options were being discussed to address downtown parking needs, such as 
construction of a public parking ramp, she explained that the focus of this meeting is on 
the zoning code and discussed the previous private parking requirements as well as the 
new code requirements. She also discussed the definition of shared parking. Staff 
recommends discussion of Council’s request to eliminate shared parking requirements 
in the zoning Code and to increase the residential parking requirement back to one 
space per bedroom for new mixed-use and multi-unit buildings. It is recommended to set 
a public hearing date for February 9. 
 

27

Item 3.



 
 

Mr. Larson made a motion to schedule a public hearing for February 9 for both items on 
the agenda. Ms. Lynch seconded the motion.  
 
Mr. Holst asked about existing conditions for parking and how this will affect properties 
that are already established and previous requirements were met. Ms. Howard 
explained that it would only affect owners who are looking to make a change. 
 
Mr. Larson asked for clarification on what would trigger new development as to when the 
shared parking requirement would be applicable. Ms. Howard stated that the only 
shared parking requirement is for new multi-family units, or for new upper floor 
commercial space that is greater than 5,000 square feet.  
 
Mr. Larson asked how it will be decided what area of a parking lot is shared parking. Ms. 
Howard explained how the numbers are figured and how the spaces would be specified 
as available to the public. It was again clarified that these rules would not apply to 
existing properties.  
 
Mr. Leeper asked for an example of how parking would be if requirements were 
increased to one space per bedroom. Ms. Howard gave River Place as an example and 
presented the results from the parking study, which showed the percentage that was 
unused.  
 
Ms. Grybovych asked about examples of how this has worked for other cities that have 
proposed lower parking requirements. Ms. Howard discussed findings from other 
communities and how they compare to Cedar Falls.  
 
Ms. Crisman asked for clarification on whether private parking was just in lots or if it 
would include private garages. Ms. Howard stated that shared parking would only apply 
to new multi-unit or mixed-use buildings.  Depending on how the parking is provided, it 
could be inside the building or be in surface lots. The owner would choose the best 
location for the shared parking spaces and would sign it for the hours it is available to 
the public.  
 
Mr. Holst stated that he feels that going back to the way things were would cause the 
situation to digress and not allow for growth. It was recommended that documents and 
information from the previous studies, presentations and meetings be forwarded to the 
newest Commission members to give them some background on the information 
shared.  
 
The motion to set a public hearing date for February 9th was approved unanimously with 
9 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), 
and 0 nays. 

 
 
Public Hearings 
2/9/2022  

The first item of business was a public hearing on a Zoning Text Amendment to 
eliminate shared parking requirements in the Downtown Character District. Chair Leeper 
introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background information on the petition 
from Council.  

 
Ms. Howard displayed the location of the Downtown Character District and noted that 
the details of the ordinance had been presented at the last meeting.   She noted that if 

28

Item 3.



 
 

there were any questions about the current regulations in the Downtown Character 
District, the slides from the last meeting were available for viewing.   
 
Eashaan Vajpeyi, 3831 Convair Lane, indicated that he was a spokesperson for a group 
of owners of property downtown. He feels there needs to be more specificity in the 
shared parking requirements to exempt certain businesses or to specify which 
businesses can afford to share their parking and which cannot. He gave the example of 
restaurants and how due to their hours they would not be able to shared their parking. 
He noted examples of potential issues and possible solutions.  
 
Mr. Holst asked for clarification on the current requirements for shared parking. Ms. 
Howard clarified that the shared parking requirements only apply to new buildings with 
residential uses and upper floor commercial. There is no shared parking requirement for 
existing businesses or for ground floor commercial, including restaurants. Mr. Holst 
stated that parking has been a big concern for him throughout this project. However, he 
feels that a lot of time has been spent on review of this new code and that we should try 
things the way they are now set up before changing it.  
 
Mr. Larson agreed and feels a great deal of work, research and math considered in 
coming up with the numbers. Those can be changed without scrapping the whole code 
that everyone has put so much work into. He feels that trying it the way it is and 
adjusting as needed is the best plan. He believes that a great deal of time and effort has 
gone into the current code and it would be arbitrary to change the position on the 
numbers that were considered so seriously before. 

 
 Mr. Leeper stated that he doesn’t feel that the shared parking requirement is very 

significant. He likes the idea of making the effort to fix the problem, but feels the shared 
parking is only meant to be a very small part of the overall approach to parking, so 
would be open to deleting it. Mr. Holst stated that he feels the need to forge ahead and 
at least give it a try to see how it works. The idea behind it is beneficial to the overall 
health of downtown and a lot of time and work has been put into researching all the 
information that was used to create the code. 

 
 Ms. Saul stated that she feels that if a developer wants to build downtown and is a good 

steward they will voluntarily do the sharing. She doesn’t believe forcing the issue is 
necessary. She agreed with concerns about enforcement.  

 
 Mr. Hartley stated that he believes that some additional definition should be added, 

particularly with regard to underground and outdoor parking lots.  
 
 Ms. Saul made a motion to eliminate shared parking requirements. Ms. Grybovych 

seconded the motion. The motion was denied with 3 ayes (Grybovych, Leeper and 
Saul), and 4 nays (Crisman, Hartley, Holst and Larson). 

 
 Mr. Leeper asked if this can be brought back for consideration down the road to see 

how it is working. Ms. Howard stated that it can. 
 

The next item for public hearing was a zoning text amendment to CD-DT to increase 
parking requirements for residential uses in multi-unit and mixed-use buildings. Chair 
Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard stated that the request from City Council is 
to consider increasing the parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use or multi-
unit buildings to one space per bedroom. 
 

29

Item 3.



 
 

When asked, Ms. Howard noted that the Commission may discuss and vote to forward 
any alternative proposals for changes to the parking requirements by a separate motion.  
 
Eashaan Vajpeyi asked for clarification on the requirements on the parking ratios. He 
discussed a map that was brought up that shows Halloween weekend in 2018 showing 
one surface residential parking lot that is only 52% full. He asked if anyone checked how 
occupied the building was. He feels that the accuracy of the numbers would need to 
include the building occupancy at the time to show the real parking ratio. He feels that 
there should be at least a minimum one spot per bedroom as he believes that more 
people have cars than are being counted. He feels that the ratio of spots and occupancy 
is very important. 
 
Daryl Kruse, 2725 Minnetonka Drive, spoke regarding the parking study noting that, of 
the residents that live downtown, 35% do not have an assigned parking spot. Most park 
on the street or in a parking lot, consuming spots for customers. He also stated that the 
seating capacity for all the bars and restaurants downtown is very close to 4,000. If they 
are half full and everyone comes two per car, there are 1,000 cars that need to park. 
The parking study shows approximately 680 parking spots on the street. If new buildings 
are built without one spot per bedroom, parking will be very limited. He also had an 
issue with the difference in parking requirements for rentals from downtown and the rest 
of the town. He feels that one spot per bedroom should be the minimum. 
  
Mr. Holst asked for clarification regarding the parking for studio apartments. Ms. Howard 
stated that a studio apartment would be considered one bedroom and would currently 
require 0.5 spots per resident and 0.25 for shared parking.  
 
Ms. Saul made a motion to change the code to one parking space per residential unit. 
Mr. Larson seconded the motion.  
 
Mr. Hartley said that changing the code to require at least one space per unit is a good 
idea, but the reality is that no one knows what the “magic” number regarding how many 
spaces per bedroom is until this is put into practice.  
 
Mr. Leeper feels that requiring additional parking is a hindrance to development 
downtown and the environment that is attracting people downtown. People don’t come 
downtown for the parking. He asked for clarification on the parking study that was done 
and Ms. Howard stated that parking was counted different days and different times of 
day to get a feel for the overall parking situation. Mr. Leeper stated that this seems to be 
a good case study. Ms. Saul interjected that shared parking is also being required. Mr. 
Holst stated that that small of a change isn’t going to have that big of an impact either 
way.  
 
Mr. Larson withdrew his second to the motion that was made to increase parking to one 
space per residential unit. The motion was removed from the table.  
 
There was further discussion regarding an alternate motion. Mr. Holst stated that he 
feels that if the requirement is increased to one space, it would also include the shared 
parking requirement. He noted that he is not in favor of increasing to 1 space per 
bedroom and then have the additional 0.25 space in shared parking requirement, which 
would make it higher than it was before the new code was adopted.  Mr. Larson noted 
that a lot of time was spent on the numbers and feels that it was well researched. This is 
just referring to new development and isn’t going to affect a great amount of parking.  
 

30

Item 3.



 
 

Saul made a motion to increase the parking requirement for residential in multi-unit and 
mixed-use buildings to 0.75 per bedroom, but no less than one space per dwelling unit. 
Mr. Holst seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Larson stated that this is substantially over-parked compared to the current 
condition and reiterated that he feels that a great deal of objective thought, meetings 
and research went into the current requirement. Ms. Crisman agreed.  
 
Ms. Saul feels that the increase is a good compromise as consultants are making these 
kinds of recommendations all over the country, but Cedar Falls may not be like all those 
other locations.  
 
The motion was approved with 4 ayes (Hartley, Holst, Leeper and Saul), and 3 
nays (Crisman, Grybovych and Larson) 

 
Discussion 
9/14/2022 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a zoning text amendment 
petition from City Council to amend parking requirements in the Downtown Character 
District. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background 
information. She explained that Council has petitioned the Commission to amend 
requirements by deleting all requirements for shared parking in the Downtown Character 
District and to increase the minimum parking requirement for residential uses in multi-
unit and mixed-use buildings from 0.75 spaces per bedroom to one space per bedroom. 
Ms. Howard discussed the timeline of discussions at previous meetings and decisions 
that were made.  
 
Ms. Moser asked if there have been issues that have caused them to re-evaluate the 
parking situation. Ms. Howard stated that she is not aware of any issues. Mr. Leeper 
stated that this exact conversation happened in January and Mr. Holst agreed, noting 
that this had been decided earlier this year. Mr. Larson asked for clarification as to why 
this is being brought back after a decision has already been made. Mr. Holst also noted 
that he’s not sure if this is as big of an issue as it is being made. The shared parking 
requirement is not that significant for this to be an issue. Ms. Moser stated that she feels 
that the idea behind this was to try it out and see how it worked and then make changes 
as needed. She would like to continue to do that.  
 
Ms. Moser made a motion to set a public hearing for the next Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion. The motion was approved 
unanimously with 6 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Holst, Larson, Leeper and Moser), and 0 
nays. 
 
 

Discussion 
9/28/2022 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a public hearing for a zoning 
text amendment regarding parking requirements in the Downtown Character District. 
Acting Chair Hartley introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background 
information. She noted that this item was introduced at the last meeting and explained 
that City Council has petitioned to amend the parking requirements for the Downtown 
Character District by deleting all requirements for shared parking and increasing the 
minimum parking requirements for residential in multi-unit and mixed-use buildings from 
0.75 spaces per bedroom to one space per bedroom.  
 
Craig Fairbanks, 405 Spruce Hills Drive, stated his support for removing the shared 
parking and increasing to one space per bedroom.  
 

31

Item 3.



 
 

Mr. Holst asked about the current 0.75 spaces per bedroom and 0.25 spaces shared 
parking. As that is equal to one, he asked what happens if a developer says they don’t 
want to provide shared parking could they just provide one parking stall per bedroom to 
get the total parking requirement and not have shared parking. Ms. Howard explained 
the several different options to provide shared parking, noting that there is only a certain 
period of time that parking has to be shared, so if they built all the parking on-site they 
would have to make at least 0.25 spaces per bedroom available to the public for the 
minimum amount of time required.  
 
Ms. Moser asked if there have been any complaints from property owners about the 
code requirements. Ms. Howard stated that she is not aware of any. 
 
Ms. Saul asked why this is coming back to the Commission if the mayor has stated that 
he will veto the decision if they vote to pass the items. Ms. Howard stated that she 
believes that he was speaking about a different code amendment being discussed at 
Council.  
 
Mr. Hartley stated that he has struggled with this item as he understands property 
owners not wanting to be told what to do with their property, however he also 
understands the need for parking.  
 
Mr. Larson stated that he feels that the Commission has gone over this extensively in 
the past and feels that it won’t help to discuss it all again. He feels that parking isn’t as 
big of an issue based on the parking studies that have been done. He has no problem 
standing behind the original decision. Mr. Holst stated that the change hasn’t had a 
chance to be tried out and he would like to see how it would work before changing his 
mind.  
 
Ms. Saul stated concerns what happens if buildings go in and the original plan for 
shared parking doesn’t work. Once it’s been done it can’t be undone. Ms. Crisman noted 
that this is a hypothetical problem and the only way to know if there is going to be a 
problem is if buildings go up. Right now this is more of a matter of opinion. There has 
been a great deal of discussion and that is the decision that was made based on a lot of 
time weighing the matter.  
 
Ms. Lynch made a motion to approve deleting all shared parking in the Downtown 
District. Ms. Saul seconded the motion. The motion failed with 1 aye (Saul) and 7 
nays (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Lynch and Moser). 
 
Ms. Lynch made a motion to approve increasing the parking requirement from 
0.75 spaces per bedroom to one space per bedroom for mixed-use and multi-unit 
buildings in the Downtown Character District. Ms. Saul seconded the motion. The 
motion was denied with 1 aye (Saul) and 7 nays (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, 
Holst, Larson, Lynch and Moser). 
 

 

32

Item 3.



Prepared by: Karen Howard, P&CS Manager, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE DELETING ALL REFERENCES TO AND REQUIREMENTS 
AND STANDARDS FOR SHARED PARKING WITHIN THE DOWNTOWN 
CHARACTER DISTRICT (CD-DT) BY AMENDING CERTAIN SUBSECTIONS 
AND PARAGRAPHS WITHIN SECTION 26-191, INTRODUCTION AND 
DEFINITIONS, AND SECTION 26-196, CHARACTER DISTRICT PARKING 
AND LOADING, OF DIVISION 2, SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, OF ARTICLE III, 
DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 26, ZONING, OF 
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

 

WHEREAS, the Downtown Character District zoning regulations, adopted November 1, 
2021, define and establish shared parking requirements for certain residential uses and 
upper floor commercial uses; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has petitioned the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to consider deleting all said shared parking requirements and standards; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered said petition at a public 
hearing on September 28, 2023 and recommends disapproval; and  

 
WHEREAS, with disapproval by the Planning and Zoning Commission, the amendments 

noted herein shall not become effective except by the favorable vote of at least two-thirds of 
all the members of the City Council.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 

 

Section 1: The definition of “Shared Parking” within Subsection H, Definitions, of Section 26-191 

Introduction and Definitions, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and 

District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, is hereby deleted.  

 

Section 2: Paragraphs 1. 2, and 3, of Subsection C, General Urban, General Urban 2, and 

Storefront Frontages – Minimum Parking Requirements, of Section 26-196, Character District 

Parking and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and District 

Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

are hereby deleted, and the following substituted in lieu thereof:  

 

1. Existing buildings as of November 1, 2021 that front on Main Street between 1st Street and 

6th Street are exempt from these minimum parking requirements, regardless of use or re-use.  

2. There is no minimum parking requirement for non-residential uses.   

3. Minimum Required Parking 

a. When calculating required parking, any partial space 0.5 or above is rounded to the next 

whole number.  

b. Residential uses in mixed-use or multi-unit buildings: 0.75 spaces per bedroom, but not 

33

Item 3.



less than 1 space per dwelling unit. Note: studio/efficiency units shall count as one 

bedroom for the purpose of calculating required parking.  

c. Residential uses in single-unit attached and detached, multi-unit rowhouse, and two-unit 

configurations:  

 (i) Owner-occupied: 1 space per unit 

 (ii) Renter-occupied: 1 space per unit + one space per bedroom for each bedroom above 

2. 

 
Section 3:  Paragraph 4. Minimum Shared Parking, of Subsection C. General Urban, General 

Urban 2, and Storefront Frontages – Minimum Parking Requirements, of Section 26-196 

Character District Parking and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, 

Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby deleted in its entirety.  

 

Section 4: Subparagraphs 5c. and 5d, of Subsection C. General Urban, General Urban 2, and 

Storefront Frontages – Minimum Parking Requirements, of Section 26-196 Character District 

Parking and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and District 

Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

are hereby deleted in their entirety. 

 

Section 5: Subsection D, Neighborhood Frontages – Minimum Parking Requirements, of Section 

26-196, Character District Parking and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article 

III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby deleted, and the following substituted in lieu thereof: 

 

D. Neighborhood Frontages  

1. Minimum Required Parking:  

a. Residential uses in multi-unit buildings: 0.75 spaces per bedroom, but not less than one 

space per dwelling unit. Note: studio/efficiency units shall count as one bedroom for the 

purpose of calculating required parking.  

b. Residential uses in single-unit attached and detached, multi-unit rowhouse, two-unit, 

and cottage court configurations:  

 (i). Owner-occupied: 1 space per unit 

 (ii). Renter-occupied: 1 space per unit + one space per bedroom for each bedroom 

above 2. 

c. Minimum required parking for non-residential uses is 1 space per 300 square feet.  

2. When calculating required parking, the following rules shall apply:  

a. any partial space 0.5 or above is rounded to the next whole number; 

c. Off-site parking is not permitted for any required parking in Neighborhood Frontages.  

 

Section 6: Subsection E. Special Parking Standards, of Section 26-196, Character District Parking 

and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and District Regulations, 

of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby 

deleted in its entirety.  
 
INTRODUCED:        

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

34

Item 3.



PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 
____________________________ 

       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

35

Item 3.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: March 20, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Petition from City Council to amend parking requirements in the Downtown 
Character District (TA22-004) 

 

 
At the Committee meeting on August 15, 2022, the City Council directed staff to forward to the Planning 
and Zoning Commission a petition to eliminate the mandatory requirements for shared parking from the 
zoning code that currently apply in the Downtown Character District.  The motion was made for this 
petition after a previous Council Committee discussion about the time and location standards for shared 
parking. It was decided that given the continued concerns about the shared parking requirements that 
the best course of action would be to eliminate these requirements from the zoning ordinance but 
continue to allow and even encourage voluntary agreements between property owners to share parking. 
In addition, a motion was made to increase the required parking for multi-unit dwellings from 0.75 spaces 
per bedroom to one parking space per bedroom. 
 
Background 
 
The Downtown Character District regulations were adopted by City Council on November 1, 2021. These 
new zoning regulations are intended to implement the Imagine Downtown! Vision Plan adopted in 
November of 2019. The vision plan was the result of public workshops, a week-long community design 
charrette, and other public outreach events that took place in 2019, where community members, 
including downtown merchants, property owners, residents, and other stakeholders were invited to share 
their feedback and ideas for the future of Downtown and surrounding neighborhoods.  
 
The second phase of the project was to draft zoning regulations to encourage future development that is 
consistent with the adopted Vision.  The draft code was presented to the public in February, 2021. The 
Commission considered the new code at four special work sessions and held 3 public hearings to 
consider public comments and suggestions for changes to the code.  The Commission discussed all 
proposed changes to the draft and made decisions on each one before forwarding a final draft to the City 
Council for consideration in May 2021.  The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommended draft was 
reviewed at three City Council Committee of the Whole meetings and two work sessions before a public 
hearing was scheduled. The draft was debated at three separate readings before being adopted on 
November 1, 2021.  
 
In January 2022, the City Council petitioned the Planning and Zoning to consider eliminating the shared 
parking requirements in the code. Council expressed several concerns about the shared parking 
requirements, including concerns about requiring property owners to make their private property available 
for public use and about how the shared spaces will be managed and monitored over time. A majority of 
the City Council felt that the potential downsides outweighed the potential benefits of this requirement and 

36

Item 4.



 
 

requested the Commission consider eliminating the shared parking requirements from the zoning code. 
They noted that property owners would still have the option to voluntarily share their parking with other 
users or the public. The Commission considered this request at a public hearing on February 9 and on a 
3-4 vote disapproved the Council’s petition.  
 
At that same time the City Council also petitioned the Planning and Zoning Commission to consider 
increasing the parking requirement for multi-unit dwellings from 0.5 spaces per bedroom to 1 space per 
bedroom. Based on the recommendations of the parking study conducted by WGI in late 2018, along with 
stakeholder interviews during the Visioning process, the consultants drafting the Downtown Character 
District Code (Ferrell Madden), included a reduction in the parking requirements for residential within 
mixed-use and multi-unit buildings from 1 space per bedroom to 0.5 spaces per bedroom (along with 0.25 
spaces per bedroom for shared parking).  
 
A majority of the City Council expressed concerns about lowering the parking requirements for residential 
uses in multi-unit and mixed-use buildings downtown and petitioned the Commission to consider re-
establishing the previous requirement of one parking space per bedroom.  
 
At a public hearing on February 9th, a motion to approve the Council’s petition failed for a lack of a second 
to the motion, and therefore was considered disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission.  
 
As an alternative, the Planning and Zoning Commission on a separate motion recommended, on a 4-3 
vote, approval of an amendment to City Code Section 26-196, Character District Parking to increase the 
parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings to 0.75 spaces per bedroom, 
but not less than 1 space per unit.  
 
Based on the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendations, the City Council approved the 
ordinance amendment to increase the parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit 
buildings to 0.75 spaces per bedroom, but not less than one parking space per unit.  After a public hearing 
and three readings, the amendment was adopted on April 4, 2022.  
 
On September 14, 2022 the Planning and Zoning Commission discussed the Council’s latest petition to 
eliminate the shared parking requirements from the Downtown Character District Code and the petition to 
increase the parking requirements for mixed-use and multi-unit buildings to 1 space per bedroom and held 
a public hearing on September 28, 2022 regarding the same.  
 
(Note: For ease of review, the minutes from the Planning and Zoning Commission meetings from the 
original petition in January are attached below along with the minutes from the September 14th meeting 
and September 28th Planning and Zoning Commission meetings for this latest petition).  
 

Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation: After a public hearing on September 28, 

2022, on vote of 1 aye (Saul) to 7 nays (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Lynch and Moser), 
the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended denial of the petition from the City Council to eliminate 
the shared parking requirements from the Downtown Character District Code; and 
 
On a vote of 1 aye (Saul) to 7 nays (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Lynch and Moser), the 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommended denial of the petition from the City Council to increase 
the required parking for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings from 0.75 spaces per 
bedroom to 1 space per bedroom.   

 

Council Action at the October 17, 2022 meeting: At the Council meeting on October 17, 2022, 
the City Council postponed setting the public hearing date until after Council decided whether to 
amend the voting threshold necessary to pass an ordinance disapproved by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission from 2/3 majority to simple majority.  

37

Item 4.



 
 

 
The ordinance amendment regarding the voting threshold necessary to pass an ordinance 
disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission was resolved at the January 3, 2023 
Council meeting when the City Council failed to override Mayor’s veto of said ordinance change.   
 

RECOMMENDATION ON POSTPONED ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS:  
Staff now recommends that Council consider the following recommendations of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission:  

1. The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends denial of the petition from the City Council to 
eliminate the shared parking requirements from the Downtown Character District Code; and 
 

2. The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends denial of the petition from the City Council to 
increase the required parking for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings from 0.75 
spaces per bedroom to 1 space per bedroom. 

 
Note: 2/3 majority vote of the Council will be required to pass each of these ordinances.  
 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES FROM COUNCIL’S PREVIOUS PETITION 
Discussion 
1/26/2022 

The first item of business was a zoning text amendment to amend CD-DT to eliminate 
shared parking requirements. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard 
provided background information. She explained that City Council has petitioned the 
Commission to consider amending the parking requirements in the Downtown Character 
District by deleting the requirements for shared parking and to increase the minimum 
parking requirement for multi-unit residential development to one space per bedroom 
and ensuring that there is at least one parking space per unit.  
 
Ms. Howard provided a summary of the Downtown Visioning and Code update project 
for the new Planning and Zoning Commissioners who were not on the Commission 
during the public review process for the project.  She displayed a rendering of the 
boundary of the Downtown Character District and discussed the previous zoning within 
the boundaries. She detailed the public review process that had taken place at the 
Planning and Zoning Commission before the Commission made their recommendation 
to the City Council in May of last year. Ms. Howard briefly described the two types of 
parking in the Central Business District, public and private. She discussed each and 
explained that the current issue is whether there should be parking requirements on 
private property in the downtown area. She explained why cities are moving away from 
focusing on zoning requirements for parking and more toward public shared parking 
solutions. She described the distinction between short-term and long-term parking 
needs, reasons why cities rely on public parking, particularly for short-term customer 
parking, and the unintended consequences of high parking requirements. Ms. Howard 
discussed the parking study that was done in 2018 and how those results affected the 
zoning standards proposed in the new zoning code.  She noted that while other public 
parking options were being discussed to address downtown parking needs, such as 
construction of a public parking ramp, she explained that the focus of this meeting is on 
the zoning code and discussed the previous private parking requirements as well as the 
new code requirements. She also discussed the definition of shared parking. Staff 
recommends discussion of Council’s request to eliminate shared parking requirements 
in the zoning Code and to increase the residential parking requirement back to one 
space per bedroom for new mixed-use and multi-unit buildings. It is recommended to set 
a public hearing date for February 9. 
 

38

Item 4.



 
 

Mr. Larson made a motion to schedule a public hearing for February 9 for both items on 
the agenda. Ms. Lynch seconded the motion.  
 
Mr. Holst asked about existing conditions for parking and how this will affect properties 
that are already established and previous requirements were met. Ms. Howard 
explained that it would only affect owners who are looking to make a change. 
 
Mr. Larson asked for clarification on what would trigger new development as to when the 
shared parking requirement would be applicable. Ms. Howard stated that the only 
shared parking requirement is for new multi-family units, or for new upper floor 
commercial space that is greater than 5,000 square feet.  
 
Mr. Larson asked how it will be decided what area of a parking lot is shared parking. Ms. 
Howard explained how the numbers are figured and how the spaces would be specified 
as available to the public. It was again clarified that these rules would not apply to 
existing properties.  
 
Mr. Leeper asked for an example of how parking would be if requirements were 
increased to one space per bedroom. Ms. Howard gave River Place as an example and 
presented the results from the parking study, which showed the percentage that was 
unused.  
 
Ms. Grybovych asked about examples of how this has worked for other cities that have 
proposed lower parking requirements. Ms. Howard discussed findings from other 
communities and how they compare to Cedar Falls.  
 
Ms. Crisman asked for clarification on whether private parking was just in lots or if it 
would include private garages. Ms. Howard stated that shared parking would only apply 
to new multi-unit or mixed-use buildings.  Depending on how the parking is provided, it 
could be inside the building or be in surface lots. The owner would choose the best 
location for the shared parking spaces and would sign it for the hours it is available to 
the public.  
 
Mr. Holst stated that he feels that going back to the way things were would cause the 
situation to digress and not allow for growth. It was recommended that documents and 
information from the previous studies, presentations and meetings be forwarded to the 
newest Commission members to give them some background on the information 
shared.  
 
The motion to set a public hearing date for February 9th was approved unanimously with 
9 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), 
and 0 nays. 

 
 
Public Hearings 
2/9/2022  

The first item of business was a public hearing on a Zoning Text Amendment to 
eliminate shared parking requirements in the Downtown Character District. Chair Leeper 
introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background information on the petition 
from Council.  

 
Ms. Howard displayed the location of the Downtown Character District and noted that 
the details of the ordinance had been presented at the last meeting.   She noted that if 

39

Item 4.



 
 

there were any questions about the current regulations in the Downtown Character 
District, the slides from the last meeting were available for viewing.   
 
Eashaan Vajpeyi, 3831 Convair Lane, indicated that he was a spokesperson for a group 
of owners of property downtown. He feels there needs to be more specificity in the 
shared parking requirements to exempt certain businesses or to specify which 
businesses can afford to share their parking and which cannot. He gave the example of 
restaurants and how due to their hours they would not be able to shared their parking. 
He noted examples of potential issues and possible solutions.  
 
Mr. Holst asked for clarification on the current requirements for shared parking. Ms. 
Howard clarified that the shared parking requirements only apply to new buildings with 
residential uses and upper floor commercial. There is no shared parking requirement for 
existing businesses or for ground floor commercial, including restaurants. Mr. Holst 
stated that parking has been a big concern for him throughout this project. However, he 
feels that a lot of time has been spent on review of this new code and that we should try 
things the way they are now set up before changing it.  
 
Mr. Larson agreed and feels a great deal of work, research and math considered in 
coming up with the numbers. Those can be changed without scrapping the whole code 
that everyone has put so much work into. He feels that trying it the way it is and 
adjusting as needed is the best plan. He believes that a great deal of time and effort has 
gone into the current code and it would be arbitrary to change the position on the 
numbers that were considered so seriously before. 

 
 Mr. Leeper stated that he doesn’t feel that the shared parking requirement is very 

significant. He likes the idea of making the effort to fix the problem, but feels the shared 
parking is only meant to be a very small part of the overall approach to parking, so 
would be open to deleting it. Mr. Holst stated that he feels the need to forge ahead and 
at least give it a try to see how it works. The idea behind it is beneficial to the overall 
health of downtown and a lot of time and work has been put into researching all the 
information that was used to create the code. 

 
 Ms. Saul stated that she feels that if a developer wants to build downtown and is a good 

steward they will voluntarily do the sharing. She doesn’t believe forcing the issue is 
necessary. She agreed with concerns about enforcement.  

 
 Mr. Hartley stated that he believes that some additional definition should be added, 

particularly with regard to underground and outdoor parking lots.  
 
 Ms. Saul made a motion to eliminate shared parking requirements. Ms. Grybovych 

seconded the motion. The motion was denied with 3 ayes (Grybovych, Leeper and 
Saul), and 4 nays (Crisman, Hartley, Holst and Larson). 

 
 Mr. Leeper asked if this can be brought back for consideration down the road to see 

how it is working. Ms. Howard stated that it can. 
 

The next item for public hearing was a zoning text amendment to CD-DT to increase 
parking requirements for residential uses in multi-unit and mixed-use buildings. Chair 
Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard stated that the request from City Council is 
to consider increasing the parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use or multi-
unit buildings to one space per bedroom. 
 

40

Item 4.



 
 

When asked, Ms. Howard noted that the Commission may discuss and vote to forward 
any alternative proposals for changes to the parking requirements by a separate motion.  
 
Eashaan Vajpeyi asked for clarification on the requirements on the parking ratios. He 
discussed a map that was brought up that shows Halloween weekend in 2018 showing 
one surface residential parking lot that is only 52% full. He asked if anyone checked how 
occupied the building was. He feels that the accuracy of the numbers would need to 
include the building occupancy at the time to show the real parking ratio. He feels that 
there should be at least a minimum one spot per bedroom as he believes that more 
people have cars than are being counted. He feels that the ratio of spots and occupancy 
is very important. 
 
Daryl Kruse, 2725 Minnetonka Drive, spoke regarding the parking study noting that, of 
the residents that live downtown, 35% do not have an assigned parking spot. Most park 
on the street or in a parking lot, consuming spots for customers. He also stated that the 
seating capacity for all the bars and restaurants downtown is very close to 4,000. If they 
are half full and everyone comes two per car, there are 1,000 cars that need to park. 
The parking study shows approximately 680 parking spots on the street. If new buildings 
are built without one spot per bedroom, parking will be very limited. He also had an 
issue with the difference in parking requirements for rentals from downtown and the rest 
of the town. He feels that one spot per bedroom should be the minimum. 
  
Mr. Holst asked for clarification regarding the parking for studio apartments. Ms. Howard 
stated that a studio apartment would be considered one bedroom and would currently 
require 0.5 spots per resident and 0.25 for shared parking.  
 
Ms. Saul made a motion to change the code to one parking space per residential unit. 
Mr. Larson seconded the motion.  
 
Mr. Hartley said that changing the code to require at least one space per unit is a good 
idea, but the reality is that no one knows what the “magic” number regarding how many 
spaces per bedroom is until this is put into practice.  
 
Mr. Leeper feels that requiring additional parking is a hindrance to development 
downtown and the environment that is attracting people downtown. People don’t come 
downtown for the parking. He asked for clarification on the parking study that was done 
and Ms. Howard stated that parking was counted different days and different times of 
day to get a feel for the overall parking situation. Mr. Leeper stated that this seems to be 
a good case study. Ms. Saul interjected that shared parking is also being required. Mr. 
Holst stated that that small of a change isn’t going to have that big of an impact either 
way.  
 
Mr. Larson withdrew his second to the motion that was made to increase parking to one 
space per residential unit. The motion was removed from the table.  
 
There was further discussion regarding an alternate motion. Mr. Holst stated that he 
feels that if the requirement is increased to one space, it would also include the shared 
parking requirement. He noted that he is not in favor of increasing to 1 space per 
bedroom and then have the additional 0.25 space in shared parking requirement, which 
would make it higher than it was before the new code was adopted.  Mr. Larson noted 
that a lot of time was spent on the numbers and feels that it was well researched. This is 
just referring to new development and isn’t going to affect a great amount of parking.  
 

41

Item 4.



 
 

Saul made a motion to increase the parking requirement for residential in multi-unit and 
mixed-use buildings to 0.75 per bedroom, but no less than one space per dwelling unit. 
Mr. Holst seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Larson stated that this is substantially over-parked compared to the current 
condition and reiterated that he feels that a great deal of objective thought, meetings 
and research went into the current requirement. Ms. Crisman agreed.  
 
Ms. Saul feels that the increase is a good compromise as consultants are making these 
kinds of recommendations all over the country, but Cedar Falls may not be like all those 
other locations.  
 
The motion was approved with 4 ayes (Hartley, Holst, Leeper and Saul), and 3 
nays (Crisman, Grybovych and Larson) 

 
Discussion 
9/14/2022 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a zoning text amendment 
petition from City Council to amend parking requirements in the Downtown Character 
District. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background 
information. She explained that Council has petitioned the Commission to amend 
requirements by deleting all requirements for shared parking in the Downtown Character 
District and to increase the minimum parking requirement for residential uses in multi-
unit and mixed-use buildings from 0.75 spaces per bedroom to one space per bedroom. 
Ms. Howard discussed the timeline of discussions at previous meetings and decisions 
that were made.  
 
Ms. Moser asked if there have been issues that have caused them to re-evaluate the 
parking situation. Ms. Howard stated that she is not aware of any issues. Mr. Leeper 
stated that this exact conversation happened in January and Mr. Holst agreed, noting 
that this had been decided earlier this year. Mr. Larson asked for clarification as to why 
this is being brought back after a decision has already been made. Mr. Holst also noted 
that he’s not sure if this is as big of an issue as it is being made. The shared parking 
requirement is not that significant for this to be an issue. Ms. Moser stated that she feels 
that the idea behind this was to try it out and see how it worked and then make changes 
as needed. She would like to continue to do that.  
 
Ms. Moser made a motion to set a public hearing for the next Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion. The motion was approved 
unanimously with 6 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Holst, Larson, Leeper and Moser), and 0 
nays. 
 
 

Discussion 
9/28/2022 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a public hearing for a zoning 
text amendment regarding parking requirements in the Downtown Character District. 
Acting Chair Hartley introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background 
information. She noted that this item was introduced at the last meeting and explained 
that City Council has petitioned to amend the parking requirements for the Downtown 
Character District by deleting all requirements for shared parking and increasing the 
minimum parking requirements for residential in multi-unit and mixed-use buildings from 
0.75 spaces per bedroom to one space per bedroom.  
 
Craig Fairbanks, 405 Spruce Hills Drive, stated his support for removing the shared 
parking and increasing to one space per bedroom.  
 

42

Item 4.



 
 

Mr. Holst asked about the current 0.75 spaces per bedroom and 0.25 spaces shared 
parking. As that is equal to one, he asked what happens if a developer says they don’t 
want to provide shared parking could they just provide one parking stall per bedroom to 
get the total parking requirement and not have shared parking. Ms. Howard explained 
the several different options to provide shared parking, noting that there is only a certain 
period of time that parking has to be shared, so if they built all the parking on-site they 
would have to make at least 0.25 spaces per bedroom available to the public for the 
minimum amount of time required.  
 
Ms. Moser asked if there have been any complaints from property owners about the 
code requirements. Ms. Howard stated that she is not aware of any. 
 
Ms. Saul asked why this is coming back to the Commission if the mayor has stated that 
he will veto the decision if they vote to pass the items. Ms. Howard stated that she 
believes that he was speaking about a different code amendment being discussed at 
Council.  
 
Mr. Hartley stated that he has struggled with this item as he understands property 
owners not wanting to be told what to do with their property, however he also 
understands the need for parking.  
 
Mr. Larson stated that he feels that the Commission has gone over this extensively in 
the past and feels that it won’t help to discuss it all again. He feels that parking isn’t as 
big of an issue based on the parking studies that have been done. He has no problem 
standing behind the original decision. Mr. Holst stated that the change hasn’t had a 
chance to be tried out and he would like to see how it would work before changing his 
mind.  
 
Ms. Saul stated concerns what happens if buildings go in and the original plan for 
shared parking doesn’t work. Once it’s been done it can’t be undone. Ms. Crisman noted 
that this is a hypothetical problem and the only way to know if there is going to be a 
problem is if buildings go up. Right now this is more of a matter of opinion. There has 
been a great deal of discussion and that is the decision that was made based on a lot of 
time weighing the matter.  
 
Ms. Lynch made a motion to approve deleting all shared parking in the Downtown 
District. Ms. Saul seconded the motion. The motion failed with 1 aye (Saul) and 7 
nays (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Lynch and Moser). 
 
Ms. Lynch made a motion to approve increasing the parking requirement from 
0.75 spaces per bedroom to one space per bedroom for mixed-use and multi-unit 
buildings in the Downtown Character District. Ms. Saul seconded the motion. The 
motion was denied with 1 aye (Saul) and 7 nays (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, 
Holst, Larson, Lynch and Moser). 
 

 

43

Item 4.



Prepared by: Karen Howard, P&CS Manager, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO INCREASE THE PARKING REQUIREMENT FOR 
RESIDENTIAL USES IN MIXED-USE AND MULTI-UNIT BUILDINGS TO ONE 
PARKING SPACE PER BEDROOM WITHIN THE DOWNTOWN CHARACTER 
DISTRICT (CD-DT) BY AMENDING CERTAIN SUBSECTIONS AND 
PARAGRAPHS WITHIN SECTION 26-196, CHARACTER DISTRICT 
PARKING AND LOADING, WITHIN DIVISION 2, SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, OF 
ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 26, 
ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, IOWA  

 

WHEREAS, the Downtown Character District zoning regulations, adopted November 1, 
2021, establish parking requirements for residential uses; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has petitioned the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to consider increasing the parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use 
and multi-unit buildings to one space per bedroom; and 
 

WHEREAS, at the public hearing at the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on 
September 28, 2022, the Commission voted to disapprove the petition to increase the parking 
requirements for mixed-use and multi-unit buildings in the Downtown Character District to 
one parking space per bedroom; and  

 
WHEREAS, with disapproval by the Planning and Zoning Commission, the amendments 

noted herein shall not become effective except by the favorable vote of at least two-thirds of 
all the members of the City Council. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 
 

Section 1: Subparagraph b. of Paragraph 3, Minimum Reserved Parking, of Subsection C, General 

Urban, General Urban 2, and Storefront Frontages – Minimum Parking Requirements, of Section 

26-196, Character District Parking and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article 

III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof:  

 

b. Residential uses in mixed-use or multi-unit buildings: 1 space per bedroom. Note: 

studio/efficiency units shall count as one bedroom for the purpose of calculating required 

parking.  

 

Section 2: Subparagraph a. of paragraph 1, Minimum Reserved Parking, of Subsection D, 

Neighborhood Frontages – Minimum Parking Requirements, of Section 26-196, Character District 

Parking and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and District 

Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is 

hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof: 

44

Item 4.



 

a. Residential uses in multi-unit buildings: 1 space per bedroom. Note: studio/efficiency 

units shall count as one bedroom for the purpose of calculating required parking; 
 
INTRODUCED:        

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 
____________________________ 

       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

45

Item 4.



  
 
 
 

MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
City Hall, 220 Clay Street 

March 6, 2023 
 

The meeting of Standing Committees met at City Hall at 5:50 p.m. on March 6, 2023, with the 
following Committee persons in attendance: Councilmembers Kelly Dunn, Simon Harding, Daryl 
Kruse, Dustin Ganfield, Gil Schultz, and Dave Sires; absent: Susan deBuhr. Staff members from all 
City Departments and members of the community attended in person.   
 
Finance & Business Operations Committee: 
Chair Dunn called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the Finance & Business 
Operations Committee Agenda, FY2024 Budget and introduced the Finance & Business Operations 
Director, Jennifer Rodenbeck. Director Rodenbeck gave an overview of the recent actions in the 
budget process: On February 20, 2023, SF181 (formerly SSB 1056) was signed by the Governor, 
recalculation of residential rollback was completed, and the rollback reduction went from 56.49% to 
54.65%. The SF181 effects an estimated loss of $430,000 to our general fund, shifts tax burden 
from residential to commercial/industrial properties; an extension of the deadline to April 30, 2023, 
for this year only was given. Director Rodenbeck reviewed valuations, multi-
residential/commercial/residential rollback, and assessed property valuation. Director Rodenbeck 
explained Cedar Falls is over 78% residential and displayed comparisons of similar cities from FY23. 
Director Rodenbeck stated in FY23 the tax rate was $11.51and the rate proposed for FY24 is 
$11.74, an increase of 23 cents. Director Rodenbeck displayed a history of previous years’ tax rates 
from 2017-2024 and displayed 20 of the largest cities property tax rates for FY23; Cedar Falls was 
the seventh lowest. Director Rodenbeck reviewed the FY24 property tax effect and max levy 
calculations. Director Rodenbeck gave an overview of the EMA levy that included an increase from 
$576,590 to $1,104,190; the increase is due to the formula going from calls of service/population to 
based on valuation. Director Rodenbeck stated the following FY24 budget revenue challenges 
include backfill continuing to be phased out, new business tax credit, and property tax reform. 
Director Rodenbeck stated the following FY24 budget challenges for expenses include health 
insurance costs, personnel costs, inflation effects, and construction costs. Looking forward the City 
has saved up capital replacement funds for capital projects, continues to save a portion of the TIF 
release for future economic development, and the $.27 of emergency levy that could be utilized if 
there’s a significant drop in residential rollback. Director Rodenbeck reviewed the budget schedule 
and stated staff would like the following budget action: Motion to recommend to Council to set the 
Public Hearing on the Maximum Levy for March 20, 2023, to include the Maximum Tax Levy for 
$22,370,390 (for applicable levies) and the Maximum Levy Rate of $10.81 (for applicable levies), 
with a total rate of $11.74. Councilmembers discussed the EMA levy, max levy rate, $.27 emergency 
levy, and 0% residential net affect rate. It was motioned by Harding and seconded by Schultz to set 
the public hearing on the maximum levy March 20, 2023, City Council meeting. The motion was put 
to vote. Aye: deBuhr, Dunn, Harding, Kruse, Ganfield, Schultz and Sires; Nay: None. Motion passed. 

 
Chair Dunn introduced the second item on the Finance & Business Operations Committee Agenda, 
Economic Development Incentives and introduced Economic Development Coordinator, Shane 
Graham. Mr. Graham reviewed the TIF districts in Cedar Falls: Downtown, College Hill, Pinnacle 
Prairie, South Cedar Falls, and Unified Hwy 58; he gave an overview of the current incentives for 
each TIF district. Mr. Graham gave an overview of the City values in the existing industrial park 
property at $1.50 per square foot and explained the types of industrial park businesses in Cedar 
Falls. Councilmembers discussed per acre/per square foot cost, property tax income, lifespan of TIF 
districts, annual funds returning to City, expired TIF dollars funds returned to Economic Development 
funding, review of value prior to demolition of buildings, sunset dates, continuous TIF districts, slum 
and blight definitions, fair market valuations, and the approval of land sales by Councilmembers. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:58 p.m. 
 
Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor 

46

Item 5.



   ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 M E M O R A N D U M 
Office of the Mayor 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council  

 DATE: March 13, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Proclamation Requests 

 REF: (a) CFD 1117.22: Council Policy – Official City Proclamations 

 

1. In accordance with reference (a), I am enclosing the following proclamation 

request(s) received from the public for City Council consideration:  

a. Robotics Week – Monday, March 20, 2023 

2. Please contact me with any questions.  

  

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Communications Specialist 

### 

 

47

Item 6.



 

CITY COUNCIL AND MAYOR 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 

 
  

 
 
                                    WHEREAS, FIRST® (For Inspiration and Recognition of Science and 
Technology) seeks to inspire young people to be science and technology leaders, by 
engaging them in exciting mentor-based programs that build science, engineering and 
technology skills, inspire innovation, and foster well-rounded life capabilities including 
self-confidence, communication, and leadership; and 

WHEREAS, FIRST combines the rigor of STEM learning with the fun and excitement of 
traditional sports and the inspiration that comes from community through programs 
that have a proven impact on learning, interest, and skill-building inside and outside of 
the classroom; and 

WHEREAS, students from around the world collaborate with their mentors to use their 
scientific and technical knowledge and skills in creating and innovative ways to build a 
unique robot to compete in the annual FIRST Robotics Competition game challenge; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls supports programs, initiatives and opportunities for 
students to engage in enhanced experiential learning and Cedar Falls High School Team 
525 will host the FIRST Robotics Competition Iowa Regional on March 23-25 at the 
McCloud Center and UNI-Dome on the University of Northern Iowa campus; and 

WHEREAS, corporate sponsors and approximately 125 volunteers make an event where 
fifty-six teams from seven states will be introduced to Cedar Falls and UNI; and 

WHEREAS, FIRST programs have reached thousands of student participants in the 
Cedar Falls school district since 1999; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, acting in the name of the Cedar Falls City 
Council, do hereby proclaim the week of March 20, 2023 as 

 

in Cedar Falls, and encourage citizens to learn about the amazing robotics and STEM 
activities taking in our community during this week, and further encourage students to 
take advantage of these incredible opportunities for learning and career exploration.  
 

        Signed this 20th day of March, 2023. 

 

______________________________________                                                                                 
MAYOR ROBERT M.  GRE EN  

ROBOTICS WEEK 

 

48

Item 6.



49

Item 7.



BEFORE THE CEDAR FALLS CITY COUNCIL 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

IN RE:       ORDER ACCEPTING 

The Music Station, Inc. a/k/a Mini Mart  ACKNOWLEDGMENT/ 

1420 West 1st Street     SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 ON this ______ day of _______________, 2023, in lieu of a public hearing on the 

matter, the Cedar Falls City Council approves the attached Acknowledgment/Settlement 

Agreement between the above-captioned permittee and the City of Cedar Falls. 

 Therefore, the Cedar Falls City Council FINDS that the above-captioned 

permittee has remitted to the "City of Cedar Falls", a civil penalty in the amount of Three 

Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($300.00).  Be advised that this sanction will count as a first 

violation of Iowa Code Section 453A.2(1), pursuant to Iowa Code Section 453A.22(2)(a).  

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the judgment in this matter is hereby satisfied. 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Robert M. Green, Mayor 

      City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 

50

Item 8.



51

Item 8.



52

Item 8.



53

Item 8.



54

Item 8.



55

Item 8.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  March 13, 2023 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no records that would 
prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Barn Happy, 11310 University Avenue, Special Class B retail native wine - renewal. 

b) Chilitos Mexican Bar and Grill, 1704 West 1st Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

c) Social House, 2208 College Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 

d) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, Class E retail alcohol – renewal. 

e) The Wine Shop, 305 Main Street, Special Class C retail alcohol – adding outdoor service. 

f) Godfather's Pizza, 1621 West 1st Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - new. 

g) Hurling Hatchet, 100 East 2nd Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - new. 

 

56

Item 9.



   ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 M E M O R A N D U M 
Office of the Mayor 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council  

 DATE: March 13, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Appointment Letters for Voting Alternates for the MPO Policy Board 

 

1. The MPO Policy Board recently updated its by-laws to require two alternates for 

each voting member to be designated in writing.    

2. Going forward, the mayor will continue to be the primary voting member. 

3.  The alternates shall be (1) Councilor Gil Schultz as the chair of the Public Works 

Standing Committee and (2) Councilor Simon Harding as the Mayor Pro-Tem. 

4. Please contact me with any questions. 

  

Xc:   City Administrator 

  City Clerk 

### 

 

57

Item 11.



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR’S APPOINTMENT AND TWO 
DESIGNATED VOTING ALTERNATES TO THE BLACK HAWK COUNTY 

METROPOLITAN AREA TRANSPORTATION POLICY BOARD 
FOR A TERM OF ONE YEAR 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls is a member in good standing of the Black Hawk 

Metropolitan Area Transportation Organization (MPO); and 

 

WHEREAS, MPO Policy Board voting members shall include the Mayor of each city 

and two (2) designated voting alternates; and 

 

WHEREAS, MPO Policy Board designated voting alternates shall be appointed by 

the voting members’ City Council and shall be an elected official, board member, or 

employee of the respective jurisdiction; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls is authorized one (1) vote per Article 1, Section 5 

Bylaws of the Black Hawk County Metropolitan Area Transportation Policy Board; and 

 

WHEREAS, only designated voting alternates shall vote in the absence of their 

respective regular voting member, and shall have the same authority as any regular voting 

member; and 

 

WHEREAS, the standing committees of the MPO shall be the Transportation 

Technical Committee (TTC) and Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC); and 

 

WHEREAS, the TTC and BPAC voting member and designated voting alternates 

shall not be a Policy Board member. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

authorizes Mayor Robert M. Green as the appointed board member for the Black Hawk 

County Metropolitan Area Transportation Organization (MPO) Policy Board, and Public 

Works Standing Committee Chair Councilor Gil Schultz and Mayor Pro-Tem Councilor 

Simon Harding as the designated alternate voting members to the MPO Policy Board for a 

term of one year. 

 
 ADOPTED this 20th day of March, 2023. 
 

 
              

Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

58

Item 11.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

  FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: March 14, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Release and Settlement Agreements related to 2022 GO Note Sale 

 
As you are aware in August of 2022, the City sold $3,860,000 in General Obligation 
Notes. At that time, the City sold these notes as Bank Qualified.  Unfortunately 
unbeknownst to the City, the Central Plains Energy Project (CPEP) that Cedar Falls 
Utilities (CFU) is a member of also sold bonds that exceeded $10,000,000.  Therefore,  
the notes that the City sold should not have been designated as Bank Qualified.  
 
The City has been working to remedy this situation with the investors.  On Monday, 
March 13, 2023 R.W. Baird coordinated a broker-to-broker sale of the notes with the 
maturity dates of 2029-2035 to allow investors who were under the presumption that the 
Notes are Bank Qualified an opportunity to divest themselves of the now Non-Bank 
Qualified notes.  As part of that sale, the City will be reimbursing investors for their loss 
on the sale and in return the investors are providing a release to the City that releases 
the City of any future obligations relating to this event.  The total amount to be paid out 
at this time for the investor losses is $86,339.65.  Cedar Falls Utilities has indicated that 
they will be reimbursing the City for these payments.  
 
We are requesting that the City Council approve these settlement and release 
agreements and allow the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreements after 
Council approval. The names of the investors have been redacted on the attached 
releases in accordance with Iowa Code 22.7 (17). 
 
It should be noted that unfortunately the investor holding the 2024-2028 maturities did 
not agree with the release statements and was not willing to participate in the sale at 
this time.   
 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Ron Gaines, Lisa Roeding, or 
myself.   
 
 
 

59

Item 12.



60

Item 12.



61

Item 12.



62

Item 12.



63

Item 12.



64

Item 12.



65

Item 12.



66

Item 12.



67

Item 12.



68

Item 12.



69

Item 12.



70

Item 12.



71

Item 12.



72

Item 12.



73

Item 12.



74

Item 12.



75

Item 12.



76

Item 12.



77

Item 12.



78

Item 12.



79

Item 12.



80

Item 12.



81

Item 12.



82

Item 12.



83

Item 12.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Rob Green and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: March 13, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Agreement for Services – Cedar Valley Youth Soccer Association 

 

The Cedar Valley Soccer Association was established in 1992.  The Soccer Complex on 
W. Ridgeway Avenue opened in late 1999.  The City provided $20,000 for three years to 
help build the complex.  Since 1998, the City has annually funded the Association (now 
referred to as the Cedar Valley Soccer Club).  In January 2023, the city updated Section 
28: Outside Entity Funding within our Accounting Policies and Procedures and Purchasing 
Manual, based on direction from the State Auditor.  The provisions ensure public purpose is 
served when directing public funds toward a private non-profit.  In accordance with that 
policy, attached please find an agreement related to the Cedar Valley Soccer Club.  The 
agreement simply puts our past practice into writing. 
 
Providing support to the Cedar Valley Soccer Club (CVSC) provides a public benefit.  Our 
Recreation & Community Programs division offers introductory soccer.  After that, for more 
competitive/ select play levels, participants may move on to programs offered by CVSC.  If 
the City were to operate this, it would require a much more significant commitment of city 
resources than the annual allocation we provide. In addition, CVSC maintains 15 full size 
fields.  Soccer is a very accessible sport that anyone can play with limited special 
equipment which promotes, physical activity and social skills which benefits the wellbeing 
and quality of life of Cedar Falls residents.  We also see a tourism benefit from the 
weekend league games and the annual events they host. 
 
Attached, please find a proposed agreement with Cedar Valley Youth Soccer Association.  
The agreement term is for five years and can be renewed by request.  Payments would 
continue to be made quarterly.  A new component of the agreement is that CVSC submits 
an annual report with at least: events & attendance for the year, detailed information on 
how public funds were used. 
 

84

Item 13.



85

Item 13.



86

Item 13.



87

Item 13.



88

Item 13.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Inspection Services Division 

 

  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green & City Council  
 
 FROM: Jamie Castle, AIA 
  Building Official   
 
 DATE: March 20, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Contract for Demo and Discovery at Pro Shop 
 
In mid-January of 2023 Public Works staff attempted to reinstall siding that had fallen off 
of the East side of the Pheasant Ridge Pro Shop.  When they did, they discovered the 
sheathing and header had significant decay from water damage and were unsuccessful 
in the siding reinstallation.   
 
After initial review of the damaged wall, Staff determined the wall was not properly 
flashed and did not have the correct vapor barrier.  It also appears because of these 
construction issues the damage is much more extensive than just the sheathing.  
Therefore we reached out to 5 local contractors to provide a price to remove the siding, 
sheathing, interior drywall, shingles, etc. to analyze the extent of the damage.  Three 
contractors submitted prices.  The low bidder was unable to meet the city’s insurance 
requirements.  Therefore, we plan to move forward with the second lowest bid which 
was proposed by Peters Construction Corporation.   
 
The cost for the work is $2,998.00.  The work will begin shortly after the approval of the 
contract.  Once the structure is exposed we will analyze the damage and determine 
next steps.  Repair work will be under a separate contract. 
 

89

Item 14.



1 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Peters Construction Corp. and City of Cedar Falls for demo and discovery project at Pro Shop 

 

This Agreement is by and between Peters Construction Corporation (“Contractor”) and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(“City”), and is to be effective on the date last signed by the Contractor or the City below. 

1.0.       Contractor’s Services 

1.1.       Contractor’s services shall consist only of the those services and/or products provided or supplied by 
Contractor as defined in this Agreement and as listed on Exhibit “A” attached.  (“Services” or “Scope of Services”) 

1.2.       Contractor shall not commence or perform any work outside the Scope of Services unless and until 
authorized in writing by the City.  No changes to the Scope of Services shall be valid unless agreed to by both the 
Contractor and the City in writing.  Any work performed or expenses incurred by the Contractor shall be conclusively 
presumed to be part of the Scope of Services unless a written change order covering such work, and the cost of such 
work, has been agreed to in advance.  If Exhibit “A” includes provisions for contingent services, such services shall 
not be performed until written authorization is given by the City.  

1.3.       Contractor shall assign qualified and experienced personnel to perform the Services, and Contractor hereby 
warrants to the City that Contractor has sufficient experience and financial resources to complete the Services 
required by this Agreement.  Where the Scope of Services identifies particular personnel who shall perform the 
Services, such personnel shall remain assigned to provide the Services throughout the term of this Agreement, 
unless otherwise approved in writing by the City.  In the event that such particular personnel must be replaced, 
Contractor agrees to replace such particular personnel with persons of equivalent or better qualifications, as 
approved by the City. 

1.4.       Contractor shall perform the Services in a timely manner and in accordance with any schedule set forth in 
Exhibit “A”.  The Contractor and the City agree that time is of the essence with respect to Contractor’s performance 
under this Agreement.         

1.5.       Contractor warrants that its fulfillment of this Agreement will not infringe on or misappropriate the rights of any 
third party, and that the Contractor has the complete right and full authority to convey ownership of the Services to 
the City.  Contractor shall obtain all required governmental and third-party licenses, approvals and permits for the 
provision of Services, at Contractor’s cost. 

1.6.       The person signing this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor represents and warrants that the person has 
full and sufficient authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor. 

2.0.       Compensation 

2.1.       All bids and prices shall be shown in U.S. Dollars.  All prices must remain firm for the duration of this 
Agreement. 

2.2.       After inspection (if applicable) and acceptance by the City of Services, City shall pay Contractor in 
accordance with the payment terms set forth in Exhibit “A”.  The maximum amount of all payments for Services shall 
be the amount set forth in Exhibit “A”, unless additional Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, in which 
case the maximum amount of all payments shall be adjusted accordingly.   

2.3.       Following acceptance of Services by the City, payment shall be made to the Contractor within thirty (30) days 
of receipt of a proper invoice.  The invoice shall include, at a minimum. The name and address of the Contractor, the 
invoice number, the date services were performed or goods were shipped, a general description of the services or 

90

Item 14.



2 
 

goods, total amount to be paid, any discounts or credits, and the net amount to be paid.  The invoice shall be mailed 
or emailed to the authorized representative of the City listed below, at the address listed below. 

2.4.       Expenses shall not be reimbursed to the Contractor unless specifically described in Exhibit “A”. 

2.5.       If services in addition to the Scope of Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, Contractor must 
provide a separate invoice for such additional services before payment will be made. 

2.6.       If the City fails to make any payment when due to the Contractor, the Contractor may charge the City interest 
on the unpaid balance at the rate of 5% per annum until paid.  In addition, Contractor may, after giving seven (7) days 
written notice to the City, suspend services under this Agreement until such unpaid balance is paid in full. 

2.7.       Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the City may withhold payment to Contractor for 
faulty Services, or if the City is advised of liens or other claims against any Services, including products. 

3.0.       Taxes. 

3.1.       The City is exempt from all federal, State of Iowa, and other states’ taxes on the purchase of products and 
services used by the City within the State of Iowa.  The City shall provide tax exemption certification as required.   

3.2.       Any charges for taxes from which the City is exempt will be deducted from invoices before payment is made.  

4.0.       Ownership and Use of Documents 

4.1.       All Services to be provided under this Agreement, and any invention, improvement, discovery, or innovation 
(whether or not patentable) made, conceived or actually reduced to practice by Contractor in the performance of the 
Scope of Services in this Agreement will be owned exclusively by the City, including all proprietary and intellectual 
property rights.  To the extent not automatically vested in the City, Contractor hereby assigns to the City all right, title 
and interest in and to the Services, including, without limitation, copyright, patent and trade secret rights.  Upon the 
City’s request, Contractor shall execute any additional documents necessary for the City to perfect such ownership 
rights.   

4.2.       Notwithstanding Section 4.1, Contractor retains ownership of its pre-existing and proprietary materials and 
other intellectual property that may be incorporated into the Services. 

4.3.       Copies of City furnished data that may be relied upon by Contractor are limited to the printed copies (also 
known as hard copies) that are delivered to the Contractor.  Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or 
of other formats that are furnished by the City to the Contractor are only for the convenience of the Contractor.  Any 
conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the Contractor’s sole risk. 

4.4.       During the term of this Agreement and following completion or termination of the Agreement, the Contractor 
and any authorized Subcontractors shall maintain all accounting records and other documentation generated in 
providing Services under this Agreement.  The City or its designee shall be allowed to have access to such 
information for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying during normal business hours for a period of five (5) 
years after the final payment by the City, termination of this Agreement, or resolution of all matters under this 
Agreement, whichever date is latest.  No additional compensation shall be paid to Contractor for such retention or 
inspection by the City or designee.  

5.0.       Term and Termination. 

5.1.       The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective date and end on June 1, 2023 unless earlier 
terminated under the terms of this Agreement. 

5.2        The City may terminate this Agreement at any time for its convenience by giving written notice to the 
Contractor of such termination and specifying the effective date of the termination, at least thirty (30) calendar days 
before the effective date of termination.  In that event, all finished or unfinished Services, reports and materials 

91

Item 14.



3 
 

prepared or furnished by the Contractor shall, at the option of the City, become the City’s property.  If the Agreement 
is terminated by the City as provided herein, the Contractor shall be paid for all Services which have been authorized, 
approved and provided up to the effective date of termination.  The City will not be subject to any termination fees 
from the Contractor. 

5.3.       Either party may terminate this Agreement upon seven (7) calendar days written notice in the event that the 
other party fails to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. 

6.0.       Warranties. 

6.1.       Contractor represents and warrants that Services shall be performed in a manner consistent with the 
standard of care of other professional service providers in a similar industry and application.   

6.2.       Contractor represents and warrants that products delivered as part of the Scope of Services, including each 
component, shall be free of defects and shall conform to the quality standards of the applicable industry and shall 
meet in all respects the requirements of the Scope of Services.  If any defect or sign of deterioration is identified by 
the City within one year after delivery which is not due to the acts or omissions of the City, Contractor shall, within 15 
days after notification by the City, at Contractor’s expense, repair, adjust or replace such items to the complete 
satisfaction of the City.  

6.3.       Contractor shall be responsible for the quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of all 
Services under this Agreement.  Contractor shall promptly and without charge, provide all corrective work necessary 
as a result of Contractor’s acts, errors or omissions with respect to the quality and accuracy of Contractor’s Services. 

6.4.       Contractor shall be responsible for any and all damages to property or persons as a result of Contractor’s 
acts, errors or omissions in performing the Services under this Agreement, and for any losses or costs to repair or 
remedy any Services undertaken by the City as a result of any such acts, errors or omissions. 

6.5.       Contractor’s obligations shall exist without regard to, and shall not be construed to be waived by, the 
availability or unavailability of any insurance, either by the City or by the Contractor.  None of the provisions of this 
Agreement shall be construed as a limitation on the City’s right to seek recovery of damages it suffers as a result of 
Contractor’s fault or breach. 

7.0.       Warranties – Intellectual Property.   

7.1.       Contractor represents and warrants that the Services produced or provided to the City do not infringe upon 
any copyright, trademark, trade name, trade dress patent, statutory, common law or any other right of any person or 
entity. 

7.2.       Contractor represents and warrants that the Services, and the City’s use of the same, and the exercise by the 
City of the rights granted by this Agreement, shall not infringe upon any other work or violate the rights of publicity or 
privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against, any person or entity. 

7.3.       Contractor represents and warrants that it is the owner of or otherwise has the right to use and distribute the 
Services contemplated by this Agreement. 

8.0.       Disputes. 

8.1.       Should any dispute arise with respect to this Agreement, the parties agree to act immediately to resolve such 
dispute.  Time is of the essence in the resolution of disputes. 

8.2.       Contractor agrees that, the existence of a dispute notwithstanding, it will continue without delay to carry out 
all of its responsibilities under this Agreement that are not affected by the dispute and the City shall continue to make 
payment for all Services that are performed in conformance with this Agreement.  Should the Contractor fail to 

92

Item 14.



4 
 

continue to perform its responsibilities regarding all non-disputed Services, without delay, any additional costs 
incurred by the City or the Contractor as a result of such failure to proceed shall be borne by the Contractor. 

8.3.       Should any dispute between the parties remain unresolved, the parties mutually agree to engage in 
mediation prior to the filing of suit by either party.  The cost of mediation shall be divided equally between the parties 
except that each party shall be responsible for that party’s own expenses and attorney fees associated with 
mediation.  The City shall not engage in arbitration of any dispute. 

9.0.       Indemnification and Hold Harmless. 

9.1.       To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor (for purposes of this Section 9.0, includes employees, 
subcontractors, agents and others working on behalf of Contractor under this Agreement) agrees to defend (for all 
non-professional claims), indemnify, and hold harmless the City (for purposes of this Section 9.0 includes elected and 
appointed officials, employees, and agents working on behalf of the City) against any and all claims, demands, suits 
or loss, including any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages, which may be asserted, 
claimed or recovered against or from the City, including, but not limited to, damages arising by reason of personal 
injury, including bodily injury or death, and property damage, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 
associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City under this Agreement, to the extent 
caused by or arising out of the errors, omissions, negligent or intentional acts of the Contractor.  

9.2.       Contractor’s duty of indemnification and to hold harmless includes, but is not limited to, Contractor’s breach 
or alleged breach of the warranties found in Sections 6.0 and 7.0 above, and shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement.  Such duty also includes damage, loss or injury to the City or City property. 

9.3.       Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for loss, expense, damages or injuries which may result to 
the Contractor by reason of or in connection with the work and/or services provided by Contractor under this 
Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of the errors, omissions, negligent or intentional acts of the 
Contractor. 

9.4.       It is specifically agreed between the parties that this Agreement is not intended to create in the public or any 
member of the public third party beneficiary status or to authorize anyone not a party to this Agreement to maintain a 
suit for personal injuries or property damage.        

10.0.       Insurance. 

Contractor shall at all times during the performance of this Agreement maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit “B” 
unless this insurance requirement is waived by the City in this Section. 

Insurance requirement waived:  _______________________________________________ (Signature and title of 
authorized City employee or officer) 

The City may at any time during the term of this Agreement require proof of such insurance. 

11.0.       Compliance with Laws and Regulations. 

11.1.       Contractor certifies that in performing this Agreement it will comply with all applicable provisions of federal, 
state and local laws, ordinances, rules, licenses and regulations and shall make reasonable efforts to ensure that its 
employees, agents, subcontractors and others working on behalf of the Contractor under this Agreement do the 
same. 

11.2.       Contractor is responsible for determining which products are considered to be hazardous chemicals under 
applicable standards and to provide the most current Safety Data Sheet (“SDS”) with the initial shipment of such 
chemicals.  Failure by Contractor to do so may be considered by the City to be delivery of a defective product and its 
delivery may be refused.  It is also the Contractor’s responsibility to provide to the City any updated or revised SDS 
as it becomes available for any such hazardous chemicals sold and delivered to the City. 

93

Item 14.



5 
 

12.0.       Independent Contractor. 

Both parties shall act in their individual capacities in the performance of this Agreement and not as agents, 
employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another.  The employees or agents of one party shall not be 
deemed or construed to be the employees or agents of the other for any purpose whatsoever. 

13.0.       Non-Collusion. 

13.1.       Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has employed any person to solicit or 
procure this Agreement, nor will the Contractor make any payment or agreement for payment of any compensation in 
connection with the solicitation or procurement of this Agreement. 

13.2.       Contractor agrees that there is no agreement, arrangement or understanding expressed or implied, 
contemplating any division of compensation for Services provided under this Agreement, or in the participation in 
such Services, directly or indirectly, by any person or entity, except as provided in this Agreement.  

13.3.       Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has either directly or indirectly entered 
into any agreement, arrangement or understanding to collude or otherwise take any action in restraint of free 
competitive procurement in connection with this Agreement. 

14.0.       Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity. 

14.1.       Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, sex, 
color, creed, national origin, marital or familial status, religion, age, disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, 
genetic information or veteran status, or any other classification protected by federal, state, or local law, except where 
age or sex is an essential bona fide occupational requirement, or where disability is a bona fide occupational 
disqualification.   

14.2.       Contractor shall inform all subcontractors and agents performing under this Agreement of this 
nondiscrimination and equal opportunity requirement and shall take reasonable steps to ensure their compliance with 
the same. 

15.0.       No Conflict of Interest, 

Contractor represents, warrants and covenants that no relationship exists or will exist during the term of this 
Agreement that is a conflict of interest under Iowa law.  No employee, officer or agent of the Contractor shall 
participate in the procurement or performance of this Agreement if a conflict of interest exists as to such person.  
Should a conflict of interest arise during the term of this Agreement for Contractor or any employee, officer or agent of 
Contractor, Contractor shall immediately notify the City, in which case this Agreement may be terminated and any 
excess costs incurred by the City due to such termination shall be paid by Contractor or deducted from any sums yet 
due to Contractor. 

16.0.       Force Majeure. 

16.1.       Force majeure shall be any of the following events:  acts of God or the public enemy; compliance with any 
order, rule, regulation, decree, or request of any governmental authority or agency or person purporting to act as 
such; acts of war, public disorder, rebellion, terrorism, or sabotage; floods, hurricanes, or other storms; strikes or 
labor disputes; or any other cause, whether or not of the class or kind specifically named or referred to in this 
Agreement which is not within the reasonable control of the party affected.  A delay in or failure of performance by 
either party shall not constitute a default in performance nor be the basis for, or give rise to, any claim for damages, if 
and to the extent such delay or failure is caused by force majeure. 

16.2.       The party who is prevented from performing by force majeure shall be obligated, within a period not to 
exceed fourteen (14) calendar days after the occurrence or detection of any such event, to provide notice to the other 
party setting forth in reasonable detail the nature thereof and the anticipated extent of the delay, and shall remedy 
such cause as soon as reasonably possible, as mutually agreed between the parties. 

94

Item 14.



6 
 

16.3.       If a remedy to an event of force majeure cannot be agreed upon within a reasonable amount of time, this 
Agreement may be terminated by either party. 

17.0.       Assignment. 

No rights under this Agreement may be assigned or transferred by Contractor without the prior written consent of the 
City.  The benefits of this Agreement may inure to Contractor’s assigns, transferees, or successors in interest if 
approved by the City in writing in advance, and if such assignee, transferees or successors agree in writing to be 
bound by the terms of this Agreement. 

18.0.       Governing Law.   

18.1.       This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Iowa, regardless of choice of law principles. 

18.2.       Venue for any dispute under this Agreement shall be the District Court in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa.        

19.0.       Discrepancy.   

In the event that there are any discrepancies or differences between any terms or conditions of the Contractor’s bid or 
quote and this Agreement, this Agreement shall prevail, even if the Contractor’s bid or quote is incorporated into this 
Agreement. 

20.0       Public Record. 

20.1.      This Agreement as well as Contractor’s bid or quote and all documents submitted with any such bid or quote 
shall become public documents subject to Iowa Code Chapter 22, the Iowa Open Records Law.  By submitting the 
bid or quote or any document to the City in connection with such bid or quote, the submitting party recognizes this 
and waives any claim against the City, its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and agents working on 
behalf of the City, relating to the release of any bid or document submitted. 

20.2.       Each submitting party shall hold the City and its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and 
agents working on behalf of the City, harmless from any claims arising from the release of any document or 
information made available to the City related to or arising from the bidding or quoting process. 

20.3.       Notwithstanding Sections 20.1 and 20.2, protection from disclosure may apply to those elements of any 
submittal that may be a trade secret, or confidential or proprietary information.  Should the submitting party wish to 
designate submittals as such, they must be clearly and prominently marked.  The City shall make no determination as 
to whether or not such documents are protected from disclosure under Iowa Code Chapter 22.  Rather, the City shall 
endeavor to notify the submitter of any request for such information and the submitter shall be solely responsible for 
asserting exemption from disclosure by obtaining a court order.  As long as the City makes a good faith effort to notify 
the submitter of a request for such information, the City and the City’s elected and appointed officers, the City’s 
employees, and agents working on behalf of the City, shall not be liable for any damages resulting from such 
disclosure, whether such disclosure is deemed required by law, by an order of court or administrative agency, or 
occurs through inadvertence, mistake, or negligence.  

21.0.       Debarment. 

21.1.       Contractor hereby certifies, pursuant to 48 CFR Part 9, that neither it nor its principals are presently 
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 
Agreement by any federal agency. 

21.2.       Contractor further certifies that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in any contracts with the City or with the State of Iowa. 

 

95

Item 14.



7 
 

22.0        Confidentiality of Shared Information. 

No information shared between Contractor and the City in the performance of this Agreement shall be deemed 
confidential unless clearly designated as such in writing by the party seeking confidentiality at the time of sharing.  If 
designated as confidential the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of such information except as necessary 
for performance under this Agreement, unless or until written authorization for disclosure is given by the designating 
party, or as required by law, or by an order of a court or administrative agency.  In the event of a dispute over the 
confidentiality of shared information, the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of the designated information 
until the issue of confidentiality is resolved.  The duty to maintain the confidentiality of such information shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement. 

23.0.       Entire Agreement. 

23.1.       This Agreement, and Exhibits, which are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, contains the 
entire agreement and understanding by and between the parties with respect to the subject matter, and no 
representations, promises, agreements, or understandings, written or verbal, not contained in this Agreement, shall 
be of any force or effect. 

23.2.       No change, modification or waiver of this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless the same is in writing 
and signed by the party against whom such change, modification or waiver is sought to be enforced. 

24.0.       Additional Terms. 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________25% billed upfront with remainder billed at completion of work _________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

25.0.       Notices. 

Any notice required to be given under this Agreement and any authorization required to be provided shall be given or 
provided to: 

City:                                                                                              Contractor: 

Name: Jamie L Castle                                              Name: Darrin Gillett 

Title: Building Official/ IS Manager                                    Title:  Vice President 

Address: 220 Clay Street                                         Address: 901 Black Hawk Rd. 

             Cedar Falls, IA 50613                                                     Waterloo, IA 50701 

Telephone: 319-268-5189                                        Telephone: 319-236-2003 

Email: Jamie.castle@cedarfalls.com                                       Email: dgillett@peters.build 

 

 

 

 

96

Item 14.



In Witness Whereof, the City and the Contractor have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the last date listed 
below. 

CONTRACTOR 

(Name of Contractor) 

its: Vice President Date: 3/9/2023 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

By: ___________ _ 

Robert M. Green, Mayor 

Attest: _ _ __________ _ Date: _ _______ _ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

8 
97

Item 14.



 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

February 1st, 2023 

 

Jamie Castle 

Inspection Services Division 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 

Subject: Pheasant Ridge Pro Shop Exterior Wall Exploration Proposal 

 

Jamie: 

 

Pursuant to your request, Peters Construction Corporation is pleased to present the 

following pricing for misc. demo work as required to allow for observation of the 

existing exterior wall conditions based on the following scope of work. 

 

Scope of Work: 

 

General Requirements: 

• Mobilization 

• Supervision 

• General Clean-up 

 

Demolition: 

• Build temporary wall wood framed wall on interior 

• Remove exterior siding, window, and wall sheathing to allow for 3rd party 

observation of existing conditions 

• Disposal of materials 

 

Carpentry Work: 

• Install new plywood over existing framing with ty-vek over the exterior 

and provide a temporary weather tight condition. 

 

Price for Exterior Wall Exploration:                    $2,998.00 

 

Clarifications 

• Work will take place during normal business hours. 

 

Terms: 

• 25% billed upfront with remainder billed at completion of work. 

 

We look forward to the opportunity to be of service to you on this project. Please 

feel free to contact us if you have any questions regarding our proposal. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Darrin Gillett 

Vice President 

 

901 Black Hawk Rd. 

Waterloo, IA  50701 
 

(Phone) 319-236-2003 

(Fax) 319-236-2009 

www.peters.build 

 

98

Item 14.

SheetzS
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

3/14/2023

(319) 266-2644 (319) 277-2429

13021

Peters Construction Corporation
901 Black Hawk Rd
Waterloo, IA 50701

18295
17370
10677

A 1,000,000

X X 60530549 8/1/2022 8/1/2023 300,000

10,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

1,000,000A

X 60530549 8/1/2022 8/1/2023

5,000,000A

X 60530549 8/1/2022 8/1/2023 5,000,000

0
B

X 30304518 8/1/2022 8/1/2023 1,000,000
N 1,000,000

1,000,000

C Pollution/Prof Liab CPP2032596-12 8/1/2022 Each Claim/aggregate 2,000,000

D Excess umbrella liab EXS 0624104 8/1/2022 8/1/2023 Each claim/aggregate 5,000,000

Project:  Pro Shop Demo and Discovery

City of Cedar Falls is included as additional insured on the General Liability policy, if required by written contract or agreement subject to the policy terms 
and conditions.   Governmental Immunities applies in favor of City of Cedar Falls as per attached form IL7122.   Waiver of Subrogation under the Worker 
Compensation, Business auto and General Liabiility. Umbrella follows form.

City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay St
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

PETECON-05 CWIGANT

Brummel Madsen Insurance
318 Main Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Cathy Wigant

cathyw@brummelmadsen.com

United Fire & Casualty Company
Lafayette Insurance Company
Nautilus Insurance Company
Cincinnati Insurance Company

X

8/1/2023

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

99

Item 14.



100

Item 14.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

   

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, Planner I 

 DATE: March 20, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Site Plan Review for Triplex on Lot 1 Pinnacle Ridge First (Case # SP22-013) 
  

 
REQUEST: 
 

Site Plan approval for construction of a new tri-plex in MU District 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Kyle Larson, LGC; Lary Koosmann EI, LSI, Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Southwest of the intersection of Faithway Dr. and Prairie Dock Rd.    

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant proposes to construct a 
one-story, tri-plex on Lot 1 of 
Pinnacle Ridge First subdivision. The 
property is located on the southwest 
corner of Faithway Drive and Prairie 
Dock Road.   Each unit will consist of 
three bedrooms, two bathrooms, and 
a three-car garage.    
 
BACKGROUND 
In 2004, the rezoning of over 600 
acres to a MU district started the 
Pinnacle Prairie development along 
Greenhill Road. As development 
continued along the western portions 
of Pinnacle Prairie (Business Center 
North, Business Center South, 
Western Home, and the updated 
Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan), the 
Final Plat for Pinnacle Ridge First was approved by the City Council in the winter of 
2017. This plat includes a mixture of single unit homes (Lots 3-45) along with 

101

Item 15.



condos/townhomes (Lots 1-2; the subject property is Lot 1) and 
professional/commercial uses along the north side of Faithway Drive (Lot 46 of Pinnacle 
Ridge First and Lot 1 of the Pinnacle Prairie Townhomes Phase I subdivision). 
 
In the Spring of 2016, the Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan and design guidelines were 
updated to include a more refined street layout as well as current and planned projects 
and subdivisions. The land near the intersection of Greenhill Road and Oster Parkway 
opened up the development for the Whispering Pines townhomes, Green Creek Third 
Addition and the Pinnacle Ridge subdivision. The Pinnacle Ridge subdivision is mostly 
comprised of single-family homes with the exception of the larger lots at the north end 
on Faithway Drive. The two lots on the south side are reserved for condos/townhomes 
and the two lots on the north side are reserved for professional office/service use.  
 
 ANALYSIS 
This property is located within the MU, Mixed Use Residential zoning district. The front 
yard is also in the Highway Corridor Greenbelt (HCG) Overlay. Development in an MU 
zoning district requires a detailed site plan review to ensure that the development site 
satisfies the standards of the comprehensive plan, recognizes principles of civic design, 
land use planning, landscape architecture, and building architectural design that are set 
out for the district. Attention to details such as parking, open green space, landscaping, 
signage, building design, and other similar factors help to ensure orderly development.  
 
Following is a review of the zoning ordinance requirements for the proposed 
development:  
 
1) Use: The intent of the MU district is to encourage a variety of housing types and 

neighborhood commercial land uses for the purpose of creating viable, self-
supporting neighborhood districts. The Future Land Use map identifies this area as 
planned development. This corresponds to the Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan that 
identifies this area along the south side of Faithway Drive for condo/townhome style 
development. As part of the master plan, the general design guidelines convey the 
vision and character of Pinnacle Prairie. The design guidelines note that there will 
be a mix of townhome styles in Pinnacle Prairie: traditional townhomes with the 
garages accessed from an alley and townhomes with front-loaded garages.  The 
proposed development of Lot 1 has front-loaded garages for each of the units. The 
proposed use is permitted in this area. 
 

2) Setbacks: In the MU Zoning District a setback area consisting of open landscaped 
green space must be established around the district. The Pinnacle Ridge First 
requires the following setbacks on Lot 1: north side 25 feet; west side 30 feet; east 
side 25 feet; and south side 10 feet. The location building meets the standards 
of the district. 

 
3) Parking:  The code for multi-unit dwellings requires two parking spaces per unit 

plus one space for each additional bedroom over two bedrooms, which in this case 
brings the requirement to three parking spaces.  The applicant proposes a three-

102

Item 15.



car garage for each unit and three spaces within the driveways for a total of 6 
parking spaces for each unit. The driveway will be 29 feet wide by 25 feet long, 
except for where it tapers to a narrower width as it crosses the public sideway.  The 
amount and dimension of the parking spaces are in compliance. The parking 
requirement is met. 

 

4) Open Green Space: The MU 
District requires that open 
green space be provided at the 
rate of 10% of the total 
development site area 
excluding the required district 
setbacks. In other words, 10% 
of the buildable area of the site 
should be open green space. 
The buildable area is 13,200 
square feet, so 1,320 square 
feet of open green space 
should be provided. The 
applicant is proposing 4,200 
square feet of open green space within the buildable area of the lot which meets 
the requirement. There is also a 65% greenspace requirement in the front yard 
which is in the HCG Overlay. This requirement was met by minimizing the amount 
of paving in the front yards by using a reduced width of the driveway openings. 
The open green space requirement is met. 

 
5) Landscaping In addition to 

the greenspace 
requirement, there are 
HCG Overlay point 
requirements, general open 
space point requirements, 
and street tree point 
requirements. These are 
point requirements of .05 
per square foot of site area 
in the HCG Overlay, .02 
per square foot of total site 
area, and .75 per linear foot 
of street frontage. To the 
right is the point breakdown 
provided on the landscape 
plan which demonstrates 
compliance. 

 
Landscaping satisfied. 

 

103

Item 15.



  
6)  Building Height: The maximum building height allowed in this district is 35 feet or 

three stories, whichever is less. Building height is measured from the lowest point 
of the grade. It is proposed to construct a single-story structure that is well below 
the district height limits. The building height requirement is met. 
 
Rendering of the proposed triplex: 

 
 

7) Building Design: The MU District requires a design review of various elements to 
ensure architectural compatibility to surrounding structures within the MU District. 
Below are images showing the character of neighboring buildings and 
developments within the MU District which have similar features to the proposed 
building. The applicant proposes the tri-plex to be single story modern design.  All 
the garage doors will face the street with the front doors setback from the front 
plane of the garages. This development design will fit into the existing 
neighborhood as most of the existing garages are closer to the street than the front 
doors. 

 

Neighboring Duplex with three-car garages: 

 
 

Duplex with three-car garage design on east side of Oster Parkway (Whispering Pines): 

104

Item 15.



 
 

 
Single-family house nearby: 

 
 

Proportion: The relationship between the width and height of the front elevations 
of adjacent buildings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a 
building; the relationship of width to height of windows and doors of adjacent 
buildings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 
 

The proposed three-unit dwelling is very similar in proportion to the two 
and three-unit townhome products across the street to the east. The area 
to the west is Candeo Church and the area to the north is reserved for 
commercial/office use. 

 
Roof shape, pitch, and direction: The similarity or compatibility of the shape, 
pitch, and direction of roofs in the immediate area shall be considered in the 
construction or alteration of a building. 
 

All neighboring residential developments have pitched roofs. The 
proposed building incorporates the same roof shape, pitch, and direction. 

 
Pattern: Alternating solids and openings (wall to windows and doors) in the front 
facade and sides and rear of a building create a rhythm observable to viewers. 
This pattern of solids and openings shall be considered in the construction or 
alteration of a building. 
 

The proposed building features three-car garages for each unit. Each 
entry is recessed from the front line of the garage portion of the units to 
add additional depth to the front facade. Windows are added around all 
sides of the building to create visual interest and rhythm. 

 

105

Item 15.



Proposed façade elevation with materials detailed (included in attachments): 

 
Materials and texture: The similarity or compatibility of existing materials and 
textures on the exterior walls and roofs of buildings in the immediate area shall 
be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. A building or 
alteration shall be considered compatible if the materials and texture used are 
appropriate in the context of other buildings in the immediate area. 
 

The front of each unit features a siding material consistent with the 
neighborhood and is also unique to each unit. This includes stone (33%) 
on the façade of one unit, and two varieties of Hardie Board (66%) on the 
other two units. The 33% stone also meets a requirement in the deed of 
dedication that at least 30% of the façade be stone or brick. Vinyl 
clapboard siding will cover the sides and back of the building. The 
applicant is proposing to use asphalt shingles to cover the roof. The 
proposed materials are consistent with materials used within the district.  

 
Color: The similarity or compatibility of existing colors of exterior walls and roofs 
of buildings in the area shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a 
building. 
 

The proposed buildings will be covered with neutral tones of stone/siding, 
and topped with a dark colored (Onyx Black) roof. The use of these 
neutral colors is consistent with the area.  

 
Architectural features: Architectural features, including but not limited to, 
cornices, entablatures, doors, windows, shutters, and fanlights, prevailing in the 
immediate area, shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 
It is not intended that the details of existing buildings be duplicated precisely, but 
those features should be regarded as suggestive of the extent, nature, and scale 
of details that would be appropriate on new buildings or alterations. 

 

The building’s architecture is of a suburban nature with a garage leading 
façade and a hip roof. Each unit is shown to have a patio off the back of 
the building. The architectural elements of this building are specifically 
consistent with the other buildings on Faithway Drive, but these features 
are also consistent with single-family homes in the neighborhood.  

 

 

 

106

Item 15.



TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
 

Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) has reviewed the proposed plans for the 3-Plex on Lot 1 of 
Pinnacle Ridge First.  Water, electric, gas, and communications utility services are 
available in accordance with the service policies of CFU.  Water and gas are available 
from Faithway Drive and electric and communications from Prairie Dock Road.  There is 
an existing 1” diameter water service line from Prairie Dock Road that will need to 
abandoned and disconnected from the existing 8” water main on the west side of Prairie 
Dock Road.  New water services will need to be provided to each unit from the 10” 
water main on the north side of Faithway Drive.  New gas services will be installed and 
owned by CFU. 
 
Any other minor technical issues will be addressed at the time of a building plan review. 
 
A courtesy notice to surrounding property owners was mailed on March 1, 2023. This 
was discussed at the March 8, 2023 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. No 
public comments outside of the meeting were received. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of SP22-013, a residential 
site plan within the MU Zoning District for property located at Lot 1 of Pinnacle Ridge First 
subdivision, subject to:   

1) Any comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
2) Conformance with all staff recommendations and technical requirements.  
3) Construction of the proposed residential development must commence (i.e., 

city building permits secured) within one year following city council approval, 
or the original approval shall be void and the application shall be resubmitted 
to the planning and zoning commission and the city council, to review any 
changes in local conditions. 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Introduction 
Discussion  
3/8/2023 

The next item for business was a site plan review for a triplex on Pinnacle Ridge First 
Addition, Lot 1. Chair Lynch introduced the item and Mr. Larson recused himself from 
the item. Mr. Sevy provided background information, explaining that the applicant is 
proposing a tri-plex at the southwest corner of Faithway Drive and Prairie Dock Road. 
He displayed a rendering of the property showing the layout of the landscaping as well 
as a drawing of the proposed design. Staff would like to see more variation in the 
design than what is proposed but the current proposal technically meets requirements. 
With design reviews, the Commission is invited to be critical of designs and any input 
and thoughts are welcome. The proposed design has been reviewed by the Pinnacle 
Prairie Review Board and they have given their approval of the design. Staff 
recommends approval of the site plan subject to any comments or direction by the 
Commission, conformance with all staff recommendations and technical comments, 
and construction of the proposed development must commence one year following 
City Council approval.  
 
Adam Daters, CGA Engineers, is representing the applicant and made himself 
available for any questions. 

107

Item 15.



 
Mr. Hartley stated that he feels that it fits in with well with the character of the 
neighborhood. 
 
Ms. Crisman noted that she would love to see more creativity in the design, but 
understands that there aren’t many alternative options. 
 
Mr. Hartley made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion. 
The motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, 
Leeper and Lynch), and 0 nays, and 1 abstention (Larson). 

 
 
Attachments: Location Map 
  Complete Site Plan Set 
  Building Elevations 
  Front Rendering 
 

108

Item 15.



Greenhill Trail

â

Briarwood Dr

Pra
irie

Doc
kRd

Faithway Dr

Wild Flower Ln

E Greenhill Rd

R-4

R-1

MU
480

1
480

3

452
3 470

3

450
7 461

9

470
9

471
5

470
7

451
3

451
9

481
3460
9 471

3

481
5

480
7

452
9

460
3 470

1

480
5

462
7

461
3

462
9462

1
140

5

471
9

472
1

481
9

482
1

4813

4802

4807
4810

4815

4804

4805

4617
4618

4709

4715

4721

4729

4726

4716

4712

4719
4718

4725

4724

470
8

470
2

4501160
9

152
6

152
8

161
6

161
4

161
2150

2

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
March 8, 2023

Site Plan review for a new Triplex
Lot 1, Pinnacle Ridge First
Faithway Dr. & Prairie Dock Rd.

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

CenterS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Waterloo Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

SM
ain

St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^
Location

Map

109

Item 15.



SHEET EX.01CGA PROJECT NO. 5875

3-PLEX SITE PLAN
LOT 1, PINNACLE RIDGE FIRST

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

J:
\5

87
5\

dw
gs

\3
_ 

Ex
hi

bi
ts

\5
87

5_
3-

Pl
ex

 S
ite

 P
la

n_
Lo

t 1
 P

RF
_8

.3
0.

22
.d

wg
 - 

EX
.0

1 
- T

IT
LE

 S
HE

ET
 - 

 0
2-

22
-2

3 
- 5

:5
3p

m
 - 

lk
oo

sm
an

n

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Dr.

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613
Phone 319-266-0258

www.cgaconsultants.com

INDEX OF SHEETS

SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION

EX.01 TITLE SHEET
EX.02 SITE PLAN LAYOUT
EX.03 LANDSCAPE PLAN

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

N

OWNER

PRAIRIE RENTALS LLC
4709 PRAIRIE DOCK ROAD
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

       319-404-5933

DEVELOPER/DESIGN ARCHITECT

LGC HOMES
5601 UNIVERSITY AVE.
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
319-266-6609

ZONING

MU - MULTI-USE

PARKING SPACES (EACH UNIT)

REQUIRED: 2.5
PROVIDED: 3

IMPERVIOUS AREAS

LOT       = 9827 sf
ROW     =  2254 sf

PROJECT LOCATION

DATE:2-22-2023
110

Item 15.



M

M

M

FO

San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)

PAD FOR COMMUNITY
MAILBOX'S

EXISTING STORM SEWER
SW-506
RIM = 928.79

EXISTING STORM SEWER
SW-506
RIM = 929.32

EXISTING SANITARY MH
RIM = 930.14
8" TRUSS (E) = 924.09

EXISTING SANITARY MH
RIM = 928.71
8" TRUSS (W) = 918.46
8" TRUSS (S) = 918.56
8" TRUSS (E) = 918.41

EXISTING 24" FES
FL = 928.61

EXISTING SIDEWALK

EXISTING SANITARY SERVICE

EXISTING WATER SERVICE

8" SANITARY (TRUSS)

8"
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

(T
RU

SS
)

EXISTING SIDEWALK
ADA ACCESS RAMPS

RIP 
RAP

GRASS
GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

FIBER OPTIC PEDESTAL
ELECTRICAL PEDESTAL

25.00'

25.77'

25.94'

38.54'

39.34'

30.23'

30.00'

29.00'

29' TYP. (3)

16.67' TYP. (3)

18.5' TYP. (3)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 4' P
C

C
 S

ID
E

W
A

LK

PROPOSED PCC
DRIVEWAY (3)

PROPOSED
UNITS (3)

PROPOSED 14' X 12'
PCC PATIO (3)

(3) PROPOSED 6' X 6' PCC PAD
WITH 4' PCC WALK TO DRIVEWAY

30' SIGHT TRIANGLE

750 LF OF SILT FENCE/SEDIMENT LOGS

PROPOSED 4' PCC SIDEWALK

17.00'

7.50'

16.50'

33.00'

San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D)
8" SANITARY (TRUSS)

GRASS

930.03
(TOC)

929.95
(TOC)

929.79
(TOC)

929.69
(TOC)

929.55
(TOC)

929.48
(TOC)

930.92 930.66

930.44

932.00932.00932.00

931.79

931.76

931.79

931.76

931.79

931.76

930.51930.75
930.99

10' SETBACK LINE

25' SETBACK LINE

25' SETBACK LINE

38.93'

R25
'

10' UTILITY EASEM
ENT

10' UTILITY EASEMENT

30
' S

ET
BA

CK
 A

ND
 D

RA
IN

AG
E 

EA
SE

M
EN

T

LOT 1
24,859 SF
PINNACLE RIDGE FIRST

PROPERTY LINE

34.42'

30.45'

16.48'
17.47'

29'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

87
5\

dw
gs

\3
_ 

Ex
hi

bi
ts

\5
87

5_
3-

Pl
ex

 S
ite

 P
la

n_
Lo

t 1
 P

RF
_8

.3
0.

22
.d

wg
 - 

EX
.0

2 
- S

IT
E 

PL
AN

 - 
 0

2-
22

-2
3 

- 5
:5

3p
m

 - 
lk

oo
sm

an
n

CGA LOT 1, PINNACLE RIDGE FIRST
EX.02

5875

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 3-PLEX SITE PLAN
LSK

LSK

ACD

ACD ####

####

####

####

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

30'15'

1.
0%

1.
0%

1.
0%

≈
2.

8%

FFE =932.00

≈
3.

6%

≈
4.

3%

PCC DRIVEWAY DIMENSIONS
TYPICAL FOR ALL 3                   NTS

PROPERTY LINE

APPROXIMATE FIRE HYDRANT LOCATIONS

NOTE:

BUILDING HEIGHT:
TO ROOF PEAK = 17' ± FROM FFE ≈ 949.00

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

50'25'

111

Item 15.



M

M

FO

San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D)

San(D) San(D)

W(D)

8" SANITARY (TRUSS)

RIP 
RAP

GRASS
GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

M

M

FO

San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D)

San(D) San(D)

W(D)

EXISTING SIDEWALK

8" SANITARY (TRUSS)

RIP 
RAP

GRASS
GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GT (1) GT (1)

GT (1)

GB (3)

BGM (4) BGM (4)

BGM (4)

GT (3)

GT (1)

BGM (4)

GT (1)

BGM (3)BGM (3)

BGM (3)

BGM (4)

BGM (4)

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

30'20'10'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

www.cgaconsultants.com
Toll Free (800) 542-7981

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

87
5\

dw
gs

\5
_ 

Sh
ee

ts
\5

87
5 

C.
40

0 
(L

an
ds

ca
pe

).d
wg

 - 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Pl
an

 - 
 0

2-
22

-2
3 

- 5
:5

3p
m

 - 
lk

oo
sm

an
n

CGA LOT 1, PINNACLE RIDGE FIRST
EX.03

5875

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 3-PLEX LANDSCAPE PLAN

LANDSCAPE NOTES:

1. PLANT QUANTITIES ARE FOR INFORMATION ONLY; DRAWING SHALL PREVAIL IF
CONFLICT OCCURS.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CALCULATING OWN
QUANTITIES AND BASING BID ACCORDINGLY.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL PLACE SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH AROUND ALL
TREES AND IN ALL PLANTING BEDS TO A DEPTH OF 3".  WALNUT PRODUCTS ARE
PROHIBITED.

3. KIND, SIZE AND QUALITY OF PLANT MATERIAL SHALL CONFORM TO AMERICAN
STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK, ANSI 260-2004, OR MOST RECENT EDITION.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT SUBSURFACE SOIL OR DRAINAGE PROBLEMS
TO THE ENGINEER.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SHOW PROOF OF PROCUREMENT, SOURCES,
QUANTITIES AND VARIETIES FOR ALL SHRUBS, PERENNIALS, ORNAMENTAL
GRASSES WITHIN 21 DAYS FOLLOWING THE AWARD OF CONTRACT.  TIMELY
PROCUREMENT OF ALL PLANT MATERIAL IS ESSENTIAL TO THE SUCCESSFUL
COMPLETION AND INITIAL ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROJECT.

6. SUBSTITUTIONS SHALL ONLY BE ALLOWED WHEN THE CONTRACTOR HAS
EXHAUSTED ALL SOURCES FOR THE SPECIFIED MATERIAL, AND HAS PROVEN
THAT THE SPECIFIED MATERIAL IS NOT AVAILABLE.  THE CONTRACTOR MUST
PROVIDE NAME AND VARIETY OF SUBSTITUTION TO THE ENGINEER  FOR
APPROVAL PRIOR TO TAGGING OR PLANTING.  SUBSTITUTIONS SHALL BE
NEAREST EQUIVALENT SIZE OF VARIETY OF PLANT HAVING SAME ESSENTIAL
CHARACTERISTICS.

7. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE NURSERY GROWN, SOUND, HEALTHY, VIGOROUS
AND FREE FROM INSECTS, DISEASE AND INJURIES, WITH HABIT OF GROWTH
THAT IS NORMAL FOR THE SPECIES.  SIZES SHALL BE EQUAL TO OR EXCEEDING
SIZES INDICATED ON THE PLANT SCHEDULE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPPLY
PLANTS IN QUANTITY AS SHOWN ON DRAWINGS.

8. TAKE OR PLACE ALL PLANTS IN FIELD AS INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS OR AS
DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER FOR APPROVAL BY THE OWNER PRIOR TO
PLANTING.

9. ALL DISTURBED AREAS NOT OTHERWISE COVERED BY BUILDING, PAVEMENT,
AND LANDSCAPE BEDS SHALL BE SODDED WITH TYPE 1 LAWN MIXTURE AS
APPROVED BY THE OWNER.

PLANT SCHEDULE

KEY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME QTY. SIZE

Deciduous Overstory Trees

GB Ginkgo biloba 'Autumn Gold' Autumn Gold Ginkgo 1" Container or 2" BB

GT Gleditsia triacanthos 'skyline' Skyline HoneyLocust 2.5" Caliber

Shrubs

BGM Buxus x 'Green Mountain' Green Mountain
Boxwood

3.5" POT

POINT SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION POINTS / UNIT EX. STREET PR. STREET PR. SITE
PR. SITE

(HCG
OVERLAY)

OVERSTORY TREES

4" CALIPER OR GREATER 100

3" CALIPER OR GREATER 90

2" CALIPER OR GREATER 80 4 5 2
UNDERSTORY TREES

2" CALIPER OR GREATER 40

1.5" CALIPER OR GREATER 30

1" CALIPER OR GREATER 20

SHRUBS

5 GALLON OR GREATER 10

2 GALLON OR GREATER 5 33
CONIFERS

10' HEIGHT OR GREATER 100

8' HEIGHT OR GREATER 90

6' HEIGHT OR GREATER 80

5' HEIGHT OR GREATER 40

4' HEIGHT OR GREATER 30

3' HEIGHT OR GREATER 20

TOTAL POINTS 320 400 325
REQUIRED (0.05 X 5,609 SF
AREA) 281

REQUIRED (0.02 X 19,250
SF AREA) 385

REQUIRED (0.75 X 350LF
STREET) 263

NOTE;
4993.24 SF - TOTAL HCG OVERLAY AREA
3245.74 SF - TOTAL LANDSCAPE AREA
1747.5 SF - TOTAL PAVED AREA
PERCENTAGE OF LANDSCAPE AREA = 65%

33

8

3

112

Item 15.



4

12

4

12

3'-0"3'-0"

UNIT 1 - 445 SF (33%)
ELDORADO LEDGECUT-33
IN BURCH

UNIT 2 - 445 SF (33%)
JAMES HARDIE FIBERCEMENT 
STUCCO IN AGED PEWTER

UNIT 3 - 445 SF (33%)
JAMES HARDIE BOARD AND 
BATTEN IN EVENING BLUE

TOTAL FRONT FACING AREA = 1,335 SF

OVERHEAD DOORS - WHITE HAAS 
610CP WITH LONG RECESSED PANEL 
AND LONG GLASS IN THE TOP

WINDOWS - ANDERSEN 100-SERIES 
CASEMENTS AND FIXED UNITS IN 
WHITE EXTERIOR

WINDOWS - ANDERSEN 100-SERIES 
CASEMENTS AND FIXED UNITS IN 
WHITE EXTERIOR

WINDOWS - ANDERSEN 100-SERIES 
CASEMENTS AND FIXED UNITS IN 
WHITE EXTERIOR

OVERHEAD DOORS - WHITE HAAS 
610CP WITH LONG RECESSED PANEL 
AND LONG GLASS IN THE TOP

OVERHEAD DOORS - WHITE HAAS 
610CP WITH LONG RECESSED PANEL 
AND LONG GLASS IN THE TOP

ROOF - OWENS CORNING DURATION 
IN ONYX BLACK

4

12

4

12

3'-0" 3'-0"

ROOF - OWENS CORNING DURATION 
IN ONYX BLACK

WINDOWS - ANDERSEN 100-SERIES 
CASEMENTS AND FIXED UNITS IN 
WHITE EXTERIOR

COMMON SIDING - (SIDES AND REAR)
ROYAL D4 VINYL CLAPBOARD IN LINEN

4

12

COMMON SIDING - (SIDES AND REAR)
ROYAL D4 VINYL CLAPBOARD IN LINEN

UNIT 1 - ELDORADO LEDGECUT-33
IN BURCH

ROOF - OWENS CORNING DURATION 
IN ONYX BLACK

4

12

COMMON SIDING - (SIDES AND REAR)
ROYAL D4 VINYL CLAPBOARD IN LINEN

UNIT 3 - JAMES HARDIE BOARD AND 
BATTEN IN EVENING BLUE

ROOF - OWENS CORNING DURATION 
IN ONYX BLACK

1/8" = 1'-0"

FRONT ELEVATION - MATERIALS DETAILS

1/8" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION - MATERIALS DETAILS

1/8" = 1'-0"

LEFT ELEVATION - MATERIALS DETAILS
1/8" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION - MATERIALS DETAILS

113

Item 15.



114

Item 15.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, Planner III 
  Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: March 20, 2023 

 SUBJECT: FP22-006:  West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase VI Final Plat 
 
 

REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve the West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase VI Final Plat.  
Case #FP22-006 
 

PETITIONER: City of Cedar Falls, property owner 
Eric Cannon and Lindsay Beaman; Snyder & Associates; Engineer 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Southwest of Technology Parkway and Innovation Drive 
 

 

PROPOSAL 
The City of Cedar Falls owns a 28.15-acre site that is south of Technology Parkway and west of 
Innovation Drive. The City proposes to subdivide 13.09 acres into one lot. 
 
BACKGROUND  
The subject property was annexed in 
early 2020.  Per the Cedar Falls City 
Code (Section 26-121), once the land is 
annexed, the property is automatically 
zoned A-1 Agricultural. In June 2020, the 
properties were rezoned from A-1 
Agricultural District to M-1-P (Planned 
Light Industrial). 
 
The preliminary plat was approved by 
City Council on January 3, 2022, with the 
intent that the West Viking Road 
Industrial Park development would be 
developed into two phases.  City Council 
approved the final plat of West Viking 
Road Industrial Park Phase V on June 
20, 2022.   
 

115

Item 16.



The City will not be developing all of Innovation Drive at this time due to the significant grades 
between this subdivision and the property to the south which is limiting Phase VI to one lot. 
 
ANALYSIS  

 
The petitioner, the City of Cedar Falls, proposes to final plat West Viking Road Industrial Park 
Phase VI, comprised of 13.09 acres of land that is southwest of Technology Parkway and 
Innovation Drive. There is interest in development of this one lot within what was previously 
proposed as Phase VI. To allow for the sale and development of this lot, the City proposes to 
final plat it as its own phase.   
 
The City will extend Technology Parkway to the northwest corner of the property. However, due 
to the significant grades between this subdivision and the property to the south, Innovation Drive 
will not be extended all the way to the southern property boundary at this time, which will allow 
for appropriate adjustment of the grade as Innovation Drive is anticipated to extend south to 
serve future expansion of the Industrial Park. A 30-foot temporary grading easement will be 
established along the eastern edge of the proposed lot to allow for the necessary grading to be 
completed in the future.  The temporary easement will be recorded with the sale of West Viking 
Road Industrial Park Phase VI Lot 1.  (Condition) 
 
As anticipated with the preliminary plat, the stormwater management plan for the lot will be tied 
into the stormwater management facilities that were developed in Phase V.   
 
The City Code states that the final plat must be in substantial conformance with the preliminary 
plat.  No changes are proposed for the final plat, so the proposed plat meets code requirements. 

116

Item 16.



TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) has reviewed the final plat for the West Viking Rd Industrial Park 
Phase VI.  Water, electric, gas, and communications utility services are available in accordance 
with the service policies of CFU.   
 
Snyder and Associates have completed a plan set revising Phase V to include the extension of 
Technology Parkway to the northwestern corner of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase VI 
Lot 1.  The Engineering Division is finalizing the change order with the contractor who was 
awarded the bid for the construction of Phase V to include the scope of work to include this 
extension.   
 
The City Council has approved the use of Tax Increment Financing to fund the project and the 
project is currently under contract as previously mentioned. Because the project is under a City 
contract, the City has an assurance that public improvements will be completed.  unlike with 
private developments where the developer would secure either a performance bond or cash 
escrow for the remaining items in the event the City has to finish the project. 
 
City Code requires that sidewalks be installed along all streets within the subdivision.   The City 
staff confirmed that sidewalks, built to City standards, will be constructed along the frontage of 
all lots at the time of lot development, as per City requirements.    
 
The property is located outside of the regulated floodplain.   
 
A courtesy mailing was not required as the City owns all the land within 200 feet of the new lot.   
 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION  
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of FP 22-006; West Viking Road 
Industrial Park Phase VI Final Plat with the following conditions: 

1) Any comments or directions specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
2) Conformance to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements.  
3) The 30-foot temporary grading easement along Innovation Drive will be recorded with 

the recording of the deed to the new owner. 
 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING 

Discussion 
2/22/23 
 
 
Discussion 
3/8/23 
 

Meeting canceled. 
 
 
 
The next item for consideration by the Commission was the final plat for the West 
Viking Road Industrial Park, Phase VI. Chair Lynch introduced the item and Ms. 
Pezley provided background information. She explained that the plat is located at 
the southwest corner of Technology Parkway and Innovation Drive. She 
discussed the criteria for the final plat and provided information on the previous 
phases of the plat. Staff recommends approval of the rezoning. The Planning and 
Zoning Commission has the option of gathering any comments from the Planning 
and Zoning Commission and the public and continue the discussion at the next 

117

Item 16.



meeting, or to make a recommendation to City Council with the following 
conditions: 

1) Any comments or directions specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
2) Conformance to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements. 
3) The 30-foot temporary grading easement along Innovation Drive will be 

recorded with the recording of the deed to the new owner. 

 Mr. Leeper made a motion to move the item forward to City Council. Ms. Larson 
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes 
(Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Larson, Leeper and Lynch), and 0 nays. 
 
 

Attachments:  
 
Location Map 
West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase VI Final Plat  
Deed of Dedication 

118

Item 16.



W Viking
Industrial

Park

Technology Pkwy

Inn
ov

ati
on

 Dr

M-1-P

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 
March 8, 2023

West Viking Road Industrial Park
Phase VI Final Plat
(FP22-006)

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

CenterS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Waterloo Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

SM
ain

St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^
Location

Map

119

Item 16.



58

20

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
18

\1
18

.1
17

4.
08

B\
Su

rv
ey

\1
18

11
74

08
B_

PL
AT

_F
IN

AL
_P

H
AS

E-
VI

.d
w

g 
JU

ST
IN

 S
TR

O
M

, 2
2X

34
 E

XH
IB

IT
 L

, 2
02

3/
02

/1
4,

 7
:2

3 
AM

, A
R

C
H

 F
U

LL
 B

LE
ED

 D
 (3

6.
00

 X
 2

4.
00

 IN
C

H
ES

)

NOTES

1. TRACT 'A' (TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY) IS BEING DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC FOR STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY
PURPOSES.

2. FLOOD INFORMATION: PARCEL LIES IN ZONE X, AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL
CHANCE FLOODPLAIN AS PER BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA FIRM MAP NUMBER 19013C0276F EFFECTIVE
DATE: JULY 18, 2011.

3. TOTAL FINAL PLAT ACREAGE = 14.10 ACRES.

4. THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST HALF OF SEC. 34-T89N-R14W IS ASSUMED TO BEAR SOUTH 0°00'36" WEST.

5. DISTANCES ARE IN FEET AND DECIMALS THEREOF.

6. ERROR OF CLOSURE:
SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY MEETS OR EXCEEDS 1:10,000
EACH INDIVIDUAL LOT OR TRACT MEETS OR EXCEEDS 1:5,000

INDEX LEGEND
SURVEYOR'S NAME / RETURN TO:
     WALTER T. HURLBUTT
     SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC.
     5005 BOWLING STREET SW, SUITE A
     CEDAR RAPIDS, IOWA 52404
     319-362-9394
     WHURLBUTT@SNYDER-ASSOCIATES. COM
SERVICE PROVIDED BY:
     SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC.
SURVEY LOCATED:
     PART OF THE W 1/2 OF SEC. 34-T89N-R14W
REQUESTED BY:
     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
PROPRIETOR:
     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

AREA ABOVE RESERVED FOR RECORDER

DATE OF SURVEY
1/30/2020

OWNER/SUBDIVIDER
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
220 CLAY STREET
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50643

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
PART OF THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH P.M., CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK
COUNTY, IOWA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AS A POINT OF REFERENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 34;

THENCE SOUTH 00° 00' 36" WEST 3315.36 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID WEST HALF TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 11 OF
WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE IV (FINAL PLAT RECORDED AS FILE NUMBER 2014-00000687 AT THE BLACK HAWK COUNTY
RECORDER'S OFFICE), NOW PART OF OUTLOT “W” OF WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE V (FINAL PLAT RECORDED AS FILE
NUMBER 2023-00004426 AT THE BLACK HAWK COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE);

THENCE NORTH 90° 00' 00" WEST 349.64 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID OUTLOT “W” TO THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF
INNOVATION DRIVE;

THENCE SOUTH 00° 00' 00" EAST 72.90 FEET ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY TO A SOUTH LINE OF TRACT 'A' OF SAID WEST VIKING
ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE V;

THENCE NORTH 90° 00' 00" WEST 66.00 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF TRACT 'A' TO THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF INNOVATION
DRIVE, SAID POINT BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE SOUTH 00° 00' 00" EAST 261.38 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 90° 00' 00" WEST 860.22 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 00° 00' 00" EAST 450.00 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 17° 17' 58" EAST 411.27 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 10 OF SAID WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE V;

THENCE SOUTH 72° 42' 02" EAST 440.89 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF LOT 10 AND CONTINUING ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 11
OF SAID WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE V;

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 219.62 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A 997.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY (CHORD
BEARING SOUTH 79° 00' 51" EAST 219.17 FEET) ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF LOT 11;

THENCE SOUTH 04° 40' 43" WEST 66.01 FEET ALONG A WEST LINE OF SAID TRACT 'A' TO THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF TECHNOLOGY
PARKWAY;

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 58.79 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY AND ALONG THE ARC OF A 1063.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE
CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY (CHORD BEARING SOUTH 86° 54' 21" EAST 58.78 FEET);

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 59.31 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY AND ALONG THE ARC OF A 42.50 FOOT RADIUS CURVE
CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY (CHORD BEARING SOUTH 48° 30' 45" EAST 54.61 FEET) TO THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF INNOVATION
DRIVE;

THENCE SOUTH 08° 32' 06" EAST 51.18 FEET ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY;

THENCE SOUTH 00° 00' 00" EAST 252.66 FEET ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 14.10
ACRES (614,113 SQUARE FEET) MORE OR LESS.

LOCATION MAP
N.T.S.

PROJECT
LOCATION

Walter T. Hurlbutt, PLS Date 

License Number 22020
My License Renewal Date is December 31, 2023

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

WALTER T.
HURLBUTT

22020

AIOW

LI
CE

NS
ED

PR
OFESSIONAL LAND

SURVEYO
R

I hereby certify that this land surveying document
was prepared and the related survey work was
performed by me or under my direct personal
supervision and that I am a duly licensed
Professional Land Surveyor under the laws of the
State of Iowa.

Sheets 1 and 2 of 2.

FINAL PLAT
WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE VI

CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA

SETBACKS
FRONT = 25'
REAR  = 10'
SIDE = 10'

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

50
05

 B
O

W
LI

N
G

 S
TR

EE
T 

S.
W

.
C

ED
AR

 R
AP

ID
S,

 IO
W

A 
52

40
4

31
9-

36
2-

93
94

 | 
w

w
w

.s
ny

de
r-a

ss
oc

ia
te

s.
co

m

TW
F

 W
TH

 J
S

12
/1

4/
20

22

10
0'

11
8.

11
74

.0
8B

1 
O

F 
2

118.1174.08B

1 OF 2

W
ES

T 
VI

K
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 IN

D
U

ST
R

IA
L 

PA
R

K
 P

H
A

SE
 V

I
PA

R
T 

O
F 

TH
E 

W
 1

/2
 O

F 
SE

C
. 3

4-
T8

9N
-R

14
W

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S,

 B
LA

C
K

 H
A

W
K

 C
O

U
N

TY
, I

O
W

A
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
EV

IS
ED

 P
ER

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
01

-2
3-

23
02

-1
3-

23
W

TH
JF

S 

12 

89
N

-1
4W

-3
4

120

Item 16.



570,040 SF
13.09 AC

1

TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY

11

10

18

17
LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

W
ES

T 
VI

KI
NG

 R
OA

D

IN
DU

ST
RI

AL
 P

AR
K 

PH
AS

E 
IV

FI
NA

L 
PL

AT

FI
LE

 N
UM

BE
R:

 2
01

4-
00

00
06

87

PART SW 1 4 N
W 1 4

SEC. 34-89-14

PART NW 1 4 S
W 1 4

SEC. 34-89-14 NE 1 4 S
W 1 4

SEC. 34-89-14

PART NW 1 4 S
W 1 4

SEC. 34-89-14

PLAT OF SURVEY

FILE NUMBER: 2017-00002916

PARCEL "A"

1

1

1

1

NW CORNER NW 14 SW 14
(W 14 CORNER)
SEC. 34-T89N-R14W
FOUND CONCRETE
W/ MONUMENT BRASS CAP
FILE NO. 2017-00002918

FOUND 12" IRON ROD
YELLOW CAP, ILLEGIBLE

3

33

3

3

SW CORNER
NW 14 SW 14
SEC. 34-T89N-R14W
FOUND 12" IRON ROD
YELLOW CAP, ILLEGIBLE
FILE NO. 2017-00002916

EA
ST

 L
IN

E 
O

F 
TH

E
W

ES
T 

H
AL

F 
O

F 
SE

C
. 3

4-
T8

9N
-R

14
W

N
0°

01
'3

5"
W

 1
32

1.
33

'

S0
°0

0'
36

"W
 6

62
.1

5'

25'

25
'9.42'

SOUTH LINE OF THE SW 14 OF THE NW 14  OF SEC. 34-T89N-R14W

EA
ST

 L
IN

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
N

W
 1 4 O

F 
TH

E 
SW

 1 4  
O

F 
SE

C
. 3

4-
T8

9N
-R

14
W

SOUTH LINE OF THE SE 14 OF THE NW 14  OF SEC. 34-T89N-R14W

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
D

R
IV

E

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

S0
°0

0'
00

"E
 2

52
.6

6'
S0

°0
0'

00
"E

 2
61

.3
8'

N90°00'00"W 860.22'

N
0°

00
'0

0"
E 

45
0.

00
'

S72°42'02"E 440.89'

C2 C3 S8°32'06"E
51.18'

440.89'

S72°42'02"E   440.89'

C4

C1

S4°40'43"W
66.01'

N
17

°1
7'

58
"E

 4
11

.2
7'

N89°46'14"W 2650.65'

R.O.W. 1.01 AC

TRACT 'A'

66
'

R
.O

.W
.

W
ES

T 
VI

KI
NG

 R
OA

D

IN
DU

ST
RI

AL
 P

AR
K 

PH
AS

E 
V

FI
NA

L 
PL

AT

FI
LE

 N
UM

BE
R:

 2
02

3-
00

00
44

26

STORM SEWER
EASEMENT

10' P.U.E.

10
' P

.U
.E

.

O
U

TL
O

T 
"Y

"
OUTLOT ''W''

W 231' OF THE S 660'

N 1 2  S
W 1 4

SEC. 34-89-14

231.00' (C & D)

S89°57'10"W 350.00' (M & R)

N
0°

01
'3

5"
W

 3
22

.5
7'

 (M
) 3

22
.5

0'
 (R

)

S89°46'53"E
119.00'

N
0°

01
'3

5"
W

 6
60

.2
8'

 (C
 &

 D
)

34
0.

14
' (

M
) 3

40
.0

0'
 (R

)

SOUTH LINE OF THE N 12  OF THE SW 14  OF SEC. 34-T89N-R14W

S0
°0

0'
36

"W
 3

31
5.

36
'

POINT OF BEGINNING

LOT 11

SE CORNER
NE 14 SW 14
SEC. 34-T89N-R14W
FOUND 6"x8"x10" STONE
FILE NO. 2017-00002917
STONE IS 2.6' EAST OF THE
LINE ESTABLISHED BY THE
FINAL PLATS OF WEST VIKING
ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK
PHASE II, WEST VIKING ROAD
INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE III
AND WEST VIKING ROAD
INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE IV.

C5

S00°00'00"E
72.90'

N90°00'00"W
66.00'

IN
N

O
VA

TI
O

N
 D

R
IV

E

S0
°0

0'
36

"W
 5

30
1.

80
'

S0
°0

0'
36

"W
 1

32
4.

29
'

N90°00'00"W 349.64'

SE 1 4 S
W 1 4

SEC. 34-89-14
SW 1 4 S

W 1 4

SEC. 34-89-14

SE 1 4 S
W 1 4

SEC. 34-89-14

TRACT 'A'

66
'

R
.O

.W
. 259.64'

181.25'

34
5.

27
'

SE CORNER SW 14
(S 14 CORNER)
SEC. 34-T89N-R14W
FOUND 5 8" IRON ROD
FILE NO. 2009-00019767

CURVE TABLE
CURVE NO.

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

Δ

12°37'15"

3°10'07"

79°57'18"

12°37'16"

12°37'15"

RADIUS

997.00'

1063.00'

42.50'

1030.00'

1063.00'

ARC LENGTH

219.62'

58.79'

59.31'

226.89'

234.15'

TANGENT

110.25'

29.40'

35.63'

113.90'

117.55'

CHORD BEARING/LENGTH

S79°00'51"E 219.17'

S86°54'21"E 58.78'

S48°30'45"E 54.61'

S79°00'40"E 226.43'

S79°00'51"E 233.68'

NE CORNER NW 14
(N 14 CORNER)
SECTION 34-T89N-R14W
FOUND S.C.M. W/ BRASS CAP
BOOK 319, PAGE 875

FINAL PLAT
WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE VI

CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA

FEET

0 100

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

50
05

 B
O

W
LI

N
G

 S
TR

EE
T 

S.
W

.
C

ED
AR

 R
AP

ID
S,

 IO
W

A 
52

40
4

31
9-

36
2-

93
94

 | 
w

w
w

.s
ny

de
r-a

ss
oc

ia
te

s.
co

m

TW
F

 W
TH

 J
S

12
/1

4/
20

22

1"
 =

 1
00

'

11
8.

11
74

.0
8B

2 
O

F 
2

118.1174.08B

2 OF 2

W
ES

T 
VI

K
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 IN

D
U

ST
R

IA
L 

PA
R

K
 P

H
A

SE
 V

I
PA

R
T 

O
F 

TH
E 

W
 1

/2
 O

F 
SE

C
. 3

4-
T8

9N
-R

14
W

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S,

 B
LA

C
K

 H
A

W
K

 C
O

U
N

TY
, I

O
W

A
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

01
-2

3-
23

02
-1

3-
23

W
TH

JF
S 

12 

89
N

-1
4W

-3
4

LEGEND
FEATURES FOUND SET
1/2" Rebar, Cap #22020
     w/Yellow Plastic Cap

(Unless Otherwise Noted)
Platted Distance P
Measured Bearing & Distance M
Public Utility Easement P.U.E.
Right-of-Way R.O.W.
Easement Line
1

4 Section Line

FOUND MONUMENT LEGEND
FOUND 12" IRON ROD WITH YELLOW CAP #8505

FOUND 12" IRON ROD WITH YELLOW CAP #12086

FOUND 12" IRON ROD WITH YELLOW CAP #22634

FOUND 12" IRON ROD WITH ORANGE CAP #6505

1

2

3

4

121

Item 16.



1 

 

OWNER’S STATEMENT AND DEED OF DEDICATION 
OF 

WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE VI 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
 That the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (hereinafter, “Owner”), being desirous of setting out 
and platting into lots and streets the land described in the attached Certificate of Survey by 
________________________, a Professional Engineer and Licensed Land Surveyor, dated 
_____ day of ________________, 2023, do by these presents designate and set apart the 
aforesaid premises as a subdivision of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa the same to be known as: 
 

WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE VI 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
(hereinafter, “Development”) all of which is with the free consent and the desire of the Owner 
and the Owner does hereby designate and set apart for public use the street(s) as shown upon the 
attached plat. 
 

EASEMENTS 
 

The Owner does hereby retain for itself, its successors and assigns, and hereby grants to any 
private corporation, firm or person furnishing utilities for the transmission and/or distribution of 
water, sanitary sewer, gas, electricity, communication service or cable television, perpetual 
easements for the erection, laying, building and maintenance of said services over, across, on 
and/or under the property as shown on the attached plat.  No structures are to be built or placed 
in the utility easements. 

 
 

RESTRICTIONS 
 
 Be it also known that the Owner does hereby covenant and agree for itself and its 
successors and assigns that each and all of the lots in the Development be and the same are 
hereby made subject to the following restrictions upon their use and occupancy as fully and 
effectively to all intents and purposes as if the same were contained and set forth in each deed of 
conveyance or mortgage that the Owner or its successors in interest may hereinafter make for 
any of said lots and that such restrictions shall run with the land and with each individual lot 
thereof for the length of time and in all particulars hereinafter stated, to-wit: 
 
 1.  All lots described herein shall be known, described and used solely as industrial 
lots as set forth in the “M-1- P” Planned Light Industrial District of the Zoning Ordinance of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 

122

Item 16.



2 

 

 2.   No building shall be erected on any lot nearer to the front lot line than twenty-five 
(25’) feet, or nearer than ten (10’) feet to the rear lot line, or nearer than ten (10’) feet to the side 
lot line. 
 
 3.   No trailer, basement, tent, shack, garage, barn or other outbuilding erected on any 
lot shall at any time be used as a residence temporarily or permanently, nor shall any residence of 
a temporary or permanent character be permitted. 
 
 
 7.   No area of a lot shall be established as a gravel parking area. All areas that are 
intended to be used or are commonly used for on-site parking of vehicles shall be hard surfaced 
and meet City parking lot requirements and specifications. 
 
 8.   The titleholders of each lot, vacant or improved, shall keep the lot free of weeds 
and debris. 
 
 9.   All primary occupied buildings within said addition shall be of any allowable 
construction type noted in Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls, Chapter 7, Buildings and 
Building Regulations and Chapter 9, Fire Prevention and Protection. Furthermore, all building 
plans shall be signed and sealed by a registered engineer certifying to the fact that such buildings 
meet all loading requirements of applicable codes. 
 

10.   On all primary occupied buildings the minimum gauge metal for sidewalls is 26 
gauge and roof panels shall be 24 gauge standing seam type. The exterior finish of all metal 
buildings shall be guaranteed by the manufacturer for a minimum of five (5) years from the date 
of completion of the primary occupied building. On all steel and plain faced concrete block 
primary occupied buildings, a minimum of fifty percent (50%) of the exposed exterior wall area 
facing the street(s) shall be constructed of a decorative brick, block, stone, glass, or other 
color/finish that provides a contrast to the rest of the exterior wall material.   

 
11.  The use of cargo containers, railroad cars, semi-truck trailers and other similar 

storage containers are prohibited.  
 
12. All developed properties shall be required to be landscaped. On each lot there 

shall be provided an open green space area consisting of natural vegetative material equal to 
twenty-five (25) percent of the total lot area. Said green space area will be unencumbered with 
any structure, off-street parking, storage areas, or ingress/egress drives. The green space area 
shall be landscaped and well maintained with grass, trees and shrubbery. 

 
The location and type of all plants, grass, trees, or ground cover to be used in the 

landscape areas shall be illustrated on a landscape plan, with the size and names of plants, shrubs 
and trees clearly indicated. The minimum requirements are as follows: 

 
A. One over-story tree shall be planted for every five thousand (5,000) square 

feet of the required open green space area on the lot. Up to thirty-five (35) 
percent of the required over-story trees may be substituted with over-story 
conifers. The minimum size of over-story trees at the time of planting 

123

Item 16.



3 

 

shall be 1 ½” caliper. The minimum height of conifers at the time of 
planting shall be 3 feet. 

 
B. Street plantings shall be required along the street frontage of each lot at 

the rate of one over-story tree for every 75 feet of street frontage. Trees 
planted within the public right-of-way must gain prior approval from the 
City Arborist All trees must be located so as to avoid utility easements or 
otherwise must not interfere with utility services. 

 
C. One ornamental tree or three shrubs shall be planted for every ten 

thousand (10,000) square feet of the required open green space area on the 
lot. These plantings shall be planted near the main entrance to the 
building, and/or along the visitor/employee parking area. The minimum 
size of ornamental trees shall be 1” caliper, and the minimum size of 
shrubs shall be 2 gallons 

 
 

D. Parking Lot Landscaping Standards as listed in Sec. 26-220.   
 

13. Roof-mounted appurtenances and mechanical equipment such as air conditioning 
units, furnaces, generators, fans, blowers or similar utility or building service components are 
discouraged from being established on the roof of any structure. However, in those cases where 
such facilities must be established on the rooftop area of the building, a solid 
screen/architecturally compatible shield shall be established on the roof that obscures said 
facilities from public view and from any residential use. 

 
 

15. Site lighting shall be designed to illuminate only the subject lot. All exterior 
fixtures must be downcast and fully shielded to prevent glare and spillover light onto nearby 
properties, with particular care taken where properties are adjacent to or visible from residential 
properties.  Floodlights and wall pack fixtures should be avoided to the extent possible, but if 
used must be aimed no higher than forty-five degrees from vertical and be located and shielded 
such that the bulb is not directly visible from any residential use.  

 
16. Advertising signs must be necessary in nature (relating only to the use of the 

premises on which the sign is located). No off-premise sign shall be allowed unless specifically 
authorized by the City. 

 
Permitted signs shall be limited to the following types: 

 
A. Wall Signs shall not exceed ten (10) percent of the wall area of any single 

wall to which the sign is attached. No murals, paintings, or other drawings 
will be permitted upon the exterior wall of any structure. Such wall signs 
shall not project more than eighteen (18) inches from the face of the 
building. No sign shall be permitted to project above the roof line of any 
structure. Sign letters shall be constructed of plastic or fabricated metal. 

124

Item 16.



4 

 

Direct, back lighting or internal illumination of signs shall be permitted. 
Permitted lighting shall not include flashing, pulsating, or colored lighting.  

 
B. Free Standing Signs shall be limited to the front yard area of each 

property. Such signs shall be limited in size to forty (40) square feet in 
area, ten (10) feet in height, with an eighteen (18) inch clearance above 
grade. 

 
One (1) enter or exit sign shall be permitted for each curb cut. Such signs 
shall be limited in size to six (6) square feet in area, three and a half (3.5) 
feet in height, with an eighteen (18) inch clearance above grade. 

 
C. Unless otherwise specified, the Cedar Falls Sign Regulations as set forth 

in the Code of Ordinances Chapter 26, Article IV, shall apply to all sign 
displays. 

 
17. The Owner and all persons and entities hereafter acquiring any right, title, or 

interest in any of the lots in said Development shall be taken and held to have agreed and 
covenanted with the owners of all other lots in this Development and with the respective 
successors and assigns of all of the rest of such other lots to conform to and observe all of the 
foregoing covenants, restrictions, and stipulations, for a period of 21 years from the date of filing 
for record of said plat, and this Owner’s Statement and Deed of Dedication. Within the period of 
21 years and in accordance with Iowa Code § 614.24 and § 614.25 or their successor provisions, 
these covenants, restrictions, and stipulations may be extended for an additional period of 21 
years upon compliance with § 614.24 and § 614.25 of the Code of Iowa. In the event an 
extension of the covenants, restrictions, and stipulations is not filed within the period of 21 years 
or successive 21-year periods, then the covenants, restrictions, and stipulations contained herein 
shall terminate at the end of the then existing period of 21 years. 

 
18.  Invalidation of any of these covenants by judgment, decree, or court order, shall in 

no way affect any of the other provisions of this dedication and such other provisions shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

 
19.  If any person or entity shall violate or attempt to violate any of the covenants, 

restrictions or stipulations herein, it shall be lawful for any person or entity owning property in 
said Development to prosecute any proceedings at law or in equity against the person or entity 
violating or attempting to violate any such covenants, restrictions or stipulation, and for the 
purpose of preventing such acts or recovering damages for such violations, or both, and for costs 
and reasonable attorney fees as determined by the court. 
 
 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED IN PLAT 
 

Owner, for itself and its successors and assigns, agrees as follows: 
 
1.  The public street(s) shown on the attached plat shall be brought to City grade and the 

streets shall be thirty-one (31) feet, back of curb to back of curb, with approved hard surface 

125

Item 16.



5 

 

pavement in accordance with the City of Cedar Falls Standard Specifications unless otherwise 
specified as per approved construction plans.   
 

2.  Sanitary sewer, together with the necessary manholes and sewer service lines to all 
buildings in the plat shall be provided. 
 

3.  Underground utilities, as required by the Subdivision Ordinance of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, shall be installed. 
 

4.  City water shall be provided to all buildings as required by the Cedar Falls Municipal 
utilities. 
 

5.  Municipal fire hydrant(s) shall be provided as required by the Cedar Falls Public 
Safety Department. 
 

6.  Storm sewer shall be provided as specified by the City Engineer. 
 

7.  ADA accessible ramps shall be provided as required by law.  
 
 8.  A 5-foot wide concrete sidewalk four inches thick shall be installed across the entire 
street frontage of any lot, at the time of construction upon said lot. This shall include ADA 
accessible ramps as provided by state law.  
 
 
 10.  A concrete surface driveway or entrance shall be installed during or immediately 
after the construction of a building on any particular lot. 

 
 

All public improvements within the Development shall be constructed and installed in 
accordance with the design standards and technical standards established for such public 
improvements by the City and by Cedar Falls Utilities and as required by the City Engineer. 
 
 
SIGNED and DATED this _______ day of _______________, 2022 
 
 
      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 

126

Item 16.



6 

 

STATE OF IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY: ss 
 
 This record was acknowledged before me on the ____day of ______________, 2022, by 
Robert M. Green as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa. 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

127

Item 16.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: March 13, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase 1  
  City Project Number RC-092-3271 
  Temporary Easement 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning the reconstruction of the North Cedar Heights Area 
Phase 1, primarily along West Ridgewood Drive and Timber Drive.  The project requires 
the acquisition of temporary and permanent easements and some fee title acquisitions 
from twenty-three (23) properties to complete construction. Twenty of these property’s 
easements or fee-title acquisitions have already been approved by City Council and the 
attached temporary easement is for the Black Hawk County Conservation Board, one of 
the remaining properties. 
 
Parcel #  Property Owner   Street Address Easement Type 
207   BHC Conservation Board  657 Reserve Dr Temporary 
 
Attached is a map that identifies the location of this property, and the documentation for 
the temporary easement. There is no Owner Purchase Agreement since this easement 
is being donated by the Black Hawk County Conservation Board. 
 
The City has used General Obligation Funds for the design and right of way portion of 
this project. The City entered into a Supplemental Agreement with AECOM, Inc., of 
Waterloo, Iowa, on May 16, 2022 for property acquisition services. Funds for this project 
are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program under item number 109. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution 
approving the easement and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreement for the 
North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase 1. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
 Lisa Roeding, City Controller/Treasurer 

128

Item 17.



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

129

Item 17.



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

130

Item 17.



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

131

Item 17.



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

132

Item 17.



133

Item 17.



134

Item 17.



135

Item 17.



136

Item 17.



137

Item 17.



138

Item 17.



139

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: March 20, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: W. Viking Industrial Park Phase V & VI 
  City Project Number: SU-364-3189 
  Change Order Expansion Request 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval is the Change Order Expansion Request to 
the existing Form of Contract between the City of Cedar Falls and Peterson Contractors 
Inc. for the West Viking Industrial Park. This Change Order Expansion Request 
provides for the required watermain, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, paving, and other 
various roadway items to be completed in order to fulfill the Final Plat requirements for 
the W. Viking Industrial Park Phase VI.  
 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Contract with Peterson Contractor, Inc. for the 
construction of W. Viking Industrial Park Phase V on March 7, 2022. The total cost of 
the Change Order Expansion request is $544,878.45. The project will be initially paid by 
Economic Development Funds then will be certified as TIF debt within the Unified 
Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department requests your consideration 
and approval of this Change Order Expansion Request with Peterson Contractors, Inc. 
for the W. Viking Industrial Park Phase VI. 
 
If you have any questions or comments, feel free to contact me.  
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 
 Michelle Pezley, Planner III 

140

Item 18.



141

Item 18.



142

Item 18.



143

Item 18.



144

Item 18.



145

Item 18.



146

Item 18.



58

20

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
18

\1
18

.1
17

4.
08

B\
Su

rv
ey

\1
18

11
74

08
B_

PL
AT

_F
IN

AL
_P

H
AS

E-
VI

.d
w

g 
JU

ST
IN

 S
TR

O
M

, 2
2X

34
 E

XH
IB

IT
 L

, 2
02

3/
02

/1
4,

 7
:2

3 
AM

, A
R

C
H

 F
U

LL
 B

LE
ED

 D
 (3

6.
00

 X
 2

4.
00

 IN
C

H
ES

)

NOTES

1. TRACT 'A' (TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY) IS BEING DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC FOR STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY
PURPOSES.

2. FLOOD INFORMATION: PARCEL LIES IN ZONE X, AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL
CHANCE FLOODPLAIN AS PER BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA FIRM MAP NUMBER 19013C0276F EFFECTIVE
DATE: JULY 18, 2011.

3. TOTAL FINAL PLAT ACREAGE = 14.10 ACRES.

4. THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST HALF OF SEC. 34-T89N-R14W IS ASSUMED TO BEAR SOUTH 0°00'36" WEST.

5. DISTANCES ARE IN FEET AND DECIMALS THEREOF.

6. ERROR OF CLOSURE:
SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY MEETS OR EXCEEDS 1:10,000
EACH INDIVIDUAL LOT OR TRACT MEETS OR EXCEEDS 1:5,000

INDEX LEGEND
SURVEYOR'S NAME / RETURN TO:
     WALTER T. HURLBUTT
     SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC.
     5005 BOWLING STREET SW, SUITE A
     CEDAR RAPIDS, IOWA 52404
     319-362-9394
     WHURLBUTT@SNYDER-ASSOCIATES. COM
SERVICE PROVIDED BY:
     SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC.
SURVEY LOCATED:
     PART OF THE W 1/2 OF SEC. 34-T89N-R14W
REQUESTED BY:
     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
PROPRIETOR:
     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

AREA ABOVE RESERVED FOR RECORDER

DATE OF SURVEY
1/30/2020

OWNER/SUBDIVIDER
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
220 CLAY STREET
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50643

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
PART OF THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH P.M., CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK
COUNTY, IOWA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AS A POINT OF REFERENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 34;

THENCE SOUTH 00° 00' 36" WEST 3315.36 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID WEST HALF TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 11 OF
WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE IV (FINAL PLAT RECORDED AS FILE NUMBER 2014-00000687 AT THE BLACK HAWK COUNTY
RECORDER'S OFFICE), NOW PART OF OUTLOT “W” OF WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE V (FINAL PLAT RECORDED AS FILE
NUMBER 2023-00004426 AT THE BLACK HAWK COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE);

THENCE NORTH 90° 00' 00" WEST 349.64 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID OUTLOT “W” TO THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF
INNOVATION DRIVE;

THENCE SOUTH 00° 00' 00" EAST 72.90 FEET ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY TO A SOUTH LINE OF TRACT 'A' OF SAID WEST VIKING
ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE V;

THENCE NORTH 90° 00' 00" WEST 66.00 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF TRACT 'A' TO THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF INNOVATION
DRIVE, SAID POINT BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE SOUTH 00° 00' 00" EAST 261.38 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 90° 00' 00" WEST 860.22 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 00° 00' 00" EAST 450.00 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 17° 17' 58" EAST 411.27 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 10 OF SAID WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE V;

THENCE SOUTH 72° 42' 02" EAST 440.89 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF LOT 10 AND CONTINUING ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 11
OF SAID WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE V;

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 219.62 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A 997.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY (CHORD
BEARING SOUTH 79° 00' 51" EAST 219.17 FEET) ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF LOT 11;

THENCE SOUTH 04° 40' 43" WEST 66.01 FEET ALONG A WEST LINE OF SAID TRACT 'A' TO THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF TECHNOLOGY
PARKWAY;

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 58.79 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY AND ALONG THE ARC OF A 1063.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE
CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY (CHORD BEARING SOUTH 86° 54' 21" EAST 58.78 FEET);

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 59.31 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY AND ALONG THE ARC OF A 42.50 FOOT RADIUS CURVE
CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY (CHORD BEARING SOUTH 48° 30' 45" EAST 54.61 FEET) TO THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF INNOVATION
DRIVE;

THENCE SOUTH 08° 32' 06" EAST 51.18 FEET ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY;

THENCE SOUTH 00° 00' 00" EAST 252.66 FEET ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 14.10
ACRES (614,113 SQUARE FEET) MORE OR LESS.

LOCATION MAP
N.T.S.

PROJECT
LOCATION

Walter T. Hurlbutt, PLS Date 

License Number 22020
My License Renewal Date is December 31, 2023

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

WALTER T.
HURLBUTT

22020

AIOW

LI
CE

NS
ED

PR
OFESSIONAL LAND

SURVEYO
R

I hereby certify that this land surveying document
was prepared and the related survey work was
performed by me or under my direct personal
supervision and that I am a duly licensed
Professional Land Surveyor under the laws of the
State of Iowa.

Sheets 1 and 2 of 2.

FINAL PLAT
WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE VI

CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA

SETBACKS
FRONT = 25'
REAR  = 10'
SIDE = 10'

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

50
05

 B
O

W
LI

N
G

 S
TR

EE
T 

S.
W

.
C

ED
AR

 R
AP

ID
S,

 IO
W

A 
52

40
4

31
9-

36
2-

93
94

 | 
w

w
w

.s
ny

de
r-a

ss
oc

ia
te

s.
co

m

TW
F

 W
TH

 J
S

12
/1

4/
20

22

10
0'

11
8.

11
74

.0
8B

1 
O

F 
2

118.1174.08B

1 OF 2

W
ES

T 
VI

K
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 IN

D
U

ST
R

IA
L 

PA
R

K
 P

H
A

SE
 V

I
PA

R
T 

O
F 

TH
E 

W
 1

/2
 O

F 
SE

C
. 3

4-
T8

9N
-R

14
W

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S,

 B
LA

C
K

 H
A

W
K

 C
O

U
N

TY
, I

O
W

A
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
EV

IS
ED

 P
ER

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
01

-2
3-

23
02

-1
3-

23
W

TH
JF

S 

12 

89
N

-1
4W

-3
4

147

Item 18.



570,040 SF
13.09 AC

1

TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY

11

10

18

17
LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

W
ES

T 
VI

KI
NG

 R
OA

D

IN
DU

ST
RI

AL
 P

AR
K 

PH
AS

E 
IV

FI
NA

L 
PL

AT

FI
LE

 N
UM

BE
R:

 2
01

4-
00

00
06

87

PART SW 1 4 N
W 1 4

SEC. 34-89-14

PART NW 1 4 S
W 1 4

SEC. 34-89-14 NE 1 4 S
W 1 4

SEC. 34-89-14

PART NW 1 4 S
W 1 4

SEC. 34-89-14

PLAT OF SURVEY

FILE NUMBER: 2017-00002916

PARCEL "A"

1

1

1

1

NW CORNER NW 14 SW 14
(W 14 CORNER)
SEC. 34-T89N-R14W
FOUND CONCRETE
W/ MONUMENT BRASS CAP
FILE NO. 2017-00002918

FOUND 12" IRON ROD
YELLOW CAP, ILLEGIBLE

3

33

3

3

SW CORNER
NW 14 SW 14
SEC. 34-T89N-R14W
FOUND 12" IRON ROD
YELLOW CAP, ILLEGIBLE
FILE NO. 2017-00002916

EA
ST

 L
IN

E 
O

F 
TH

E
W

ES
T 

H
AL

F 
O

F 
SE

C
. 3

4-
T8

9N
-R

14
W

N
0°

01
'3

5"
W

 1
32

1.
33

'

S0
°0

0'
36

"W
 6

62
.1

5'

25'

25
'9.42'

SOUTH LINE OF THE SW 14 OF THE NW 14  OF SEC. 34-T89N-R14W

EA
ST

 L
IN

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
N

W
 1 4 O

F 
TH

E 
SW

 1 4  
O

F 
SE

C
. 3

4-
T8

9N
-R

14
W

SOUTH LINE OF THE SE 14 OF THE NW 14  OF SEC. 34-T89N-R14W

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
D

R
IV

E

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

S0
°0

0'
00

"E
 2

52
.6

6'
S0

°0
0'

00
"E

 2
61

.3
8'

N90°00'00"W 860.22'

N
0°

00
'0

0"
E 

45
0.

00
'

S72°42'02"E 440.89'

C2 C3 S8°32'06"E
51.18'

440.89'

S72°42'02"E   440.89'

C4

C1

S4°40'43"W
66.01'

N
17

°1
7'

58
"E

 4
11

.2
7'

N89°46'14"W 2650.65'

R.O.W. 1.01 AC

TRACT 'A'

66
'

R
.O

.W
.

W
ES

T 
VI

KI
NG

 R
OA

D

IN
DU

ST
RI

AL
 P

AR
K 

PH
AS

E 
V

FI
NA

L 
PL

AT

FI
LE

 N
UM

BE
R:

 2
02

3-
00

00
44

26

STORM SEWER
EASEMENT

10' P.U.E.

10
' P

.U
.E

.

O
U

TL
O

T 
"Y

"
OUTLOT ''W''

W 231' OF THE S 660'

N 1 2  S
W 1 4

SEC. 34-89-14

231.00' (C & D)

S89°57'10"W 350.00' (M & R)

N
0°

01
'3

5"
W

 3
22

.5
7'

 (M
) 3

22
.5

0'
 (R

)

S89°46'53"E
119.00'

N
0°

01
'3

5"
W

 6
60

.2
8'

 (C
 &

 D
)

34
0.

14
' (

M
) 3

40
.0

0'
 (R

)

SOUTH LINE OF THE N 12  OF THE SW 14  OF SEC. 34-T89N-R14W

S0
°0

0'
36

"W
 3

31
5.

36
'

POINT OF BEGINNING

LOT 11

SE CORNER
NE 14 SW 14
SEC. 34-T89N-R14W
FOUND 6"x8"x10" STONE
FILE NO. 2017-00002917
STONE IS 2.6' EAST OF THE
LINE ESTABLISHED BY THE
FINAL PLATS OF WEST VIKING
ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK
PHASE II, WEST VIKING ROAD
INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE III
AND WEST VIKING ROAD
INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE IV.

C5

S00°00'00"E
72.90'

N90°00'00"W
66.00'

IN
N

O
VA

TI
O

N
 D

R
IV

E

S0
°0

0'
36

"W
 5

30
1.

80
'

S0
°0

0'
36

"W
 1

32
4.

29
'

N90°00'00"W 349.64'

SE 1 4 S
W 1 4

SEC. 34-89-14
SW 1 4 S

W 1 4

SEC. 34-89-14

SE 1 4 S
W 1 4

SEC. 34-89-14

TRACT 'A'

66
'

R
.O

.W
. 259.64'

181.25'

34
5.

27
'

SE CORNER SW 14
(S 14 CORNER)
SEC. 34-T89N-R14W
FOUND 5 8" IRON ROD
FILE NO. 2009-00019767

CURVE TABLE
CURVE NO.

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

Δ

12°37'15"

3°10'07"

79°57'18"

12°37'16"

12°37'15"

RADIUS

997.00'

1063.00'

42.50'

1030.00'

1063.00'

ARC LENGTH

219.62'

58.79'

59.31'

226.89'

234.15'

TANGENT

110.25'

29.40'

35.63'

113.90'

117.55'

CHORD BEARING/LENGTH

S79°00'51"E 219.17'

S86°54'21"E 58.78'

S48°30'45"E 54.61'

S79°00'40"E 226.43'

S79°00'51"E 233.68'

NE CORNER NW 14
(N 14 CORNER)
SECTION 34-T89N-R14W
FOUND S.C.M. W/ BRASS CAP
BOOK 319, PAGE 875

FINAL PLAT
WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE VI

CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA

FEET

0 100

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

50
05

 B
O

W
LI

N
G

 S
TR

EE
T 

S.
W

.
C

ED
AR

 R
AP

ID
S,

 IO
W

A 
52

40
4

31
9-

36
2-

93
94

 | 
w

w
w

.s
ny

de
r-a

ss
oc

ia
te

s.
co

m

TW
F

 W
TH

 J
S

12
/1

4/
20

22

1"
 =

 1
00

'

11
8.

11
74

.0
8B

2 
O

F 
2

118.1174.08B

2 OF 2

W
ES

T 
VI

K
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 IN

D
U

ST
R

IA
L 

PA
R

K
 P

H
A

SE
 V

I
PA

R
T 

O
F 

TH
E 

W
 1

/2
 O

F 
SE

C
. 3

4-
T8

9N
-R

14
W

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S,

 B
LA

C
K

 H
A

W
K

 C
O

U
N

TY
, I

O
W

A
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

01
-2

3-
23

02
-1

3-
23

W
TH

JF
S 

12 

89
N

-1
4W

-3
4

LEGEND
FEATURES FOUND SET
1/2" Rebar, Cap #22020
     w/Yellow Plastic Cap

(Unless Otherwise Noted)
Platted Distance P
Measured Bearing & Distance M
Public Utility Easement P.U.E.
Right-of-Way R.O.W.
Easement Line
1

4 Section Line

FOUND MONUMENT LEGEND
FOUND 12" IRON ROD WITH YELLOW CAP #8505

FOUND 12" IRON ROD WITH YELLOW CAP #12086

FOUND 12" IRON ROD WITH YELLOW CAP #22634

FOUND 12" IRON ROD WITH ORANGE CAP #6505

1

2

3

4

148

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: 3/20/2023 
 
 SUBJECT: 2023 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project 
  City Project Number: SA-000-3316 
  Bid Opening 
   

On Monday, March 13, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. bids were received and opened for the 2023 
Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. A total of three (3) bids were received, with 
Municipal Pipe Tool Company LLC being the low bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $235,157.00 

Municipal Pipe Tool Company $253,025.25 

Visu-Sewer $262,192.20 

Insituform Technologies $358,875.30 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $235,157.00. Municipal Pipe Tool Company 
LLC of Hudson, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $253,025.25. Attached is a 
bid tabulation for your reference. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends acceptance of 
the lowest bid from Municipal Pipe Tool Company LLC in the amount of $253,025.25. On 
April 3, 2023, the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City 
Council approval. 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer   
 
 

149

Item 19.



2023 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT (#8389354)

Owner: Cedar Falls IA, City of

Solicitor: Cedar Falls IA, City of

03/13/2023 10:00 AM CDT

Line 

Item

Item 

Code
Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

1 - Pipe Lining, 8 Inch LF 6147 $31.00 $190,557.00 $30.75 $189,020.25 $32.60 $200,392.20 $44.10 $271,082.70

2 - Buidling Sanitary Sewer Service Reconection Each 99 $325.00 $32,175.00 $75.00 $7,425.00 $200.00 $19,800.00 $120.00 $11,880.00

3 - Grouting Service Laterals Each 99 $75.00 $7,425.00 $420.00 $41,580.00 $300.00 $29,700.00 $527.40 $52,212.60

4 - Mobilization LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $12,300.00 $12,300.00 $23,700.00 $23,700.00

Engineer Estimate Municipal Pipe Tool Company Visu-Sewer Insituform Technologies

$235,157.00 $253,025.25 $262,192.20 $358,875.30

150

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

––  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: March 13, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: 2023 Street Construction Project 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3299 
  Bid Opening 
   

On Monday, March 13, 2023 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 2023 
Street Construction Project. A total of two (2) bids were received, with Petersen 
Contractors, Inc. the low bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $2,530,011.15 

Petersen Contractors, Inc.  $2,664,055.20 

Owen Contracting, Inc.  $2,900,323.70 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $2,530,011.15. Peterson Contractors, Inc. 
of Reinbeck, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $2,664,055.20. Attached is a 
bid tabulation for your reference. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends acceptance of 
the lowest bid from Peterson Contractors, Inc. in the amount of $2,664,055.20. On April 
3, 2023, the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City Council 
approval. 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer   
 
 

151

Item 20.



TABULATION OF BIDS 2023 Street Construction Project City of Cedar Falls - Project Number RC-000-3299

BASE BID

ITEM ITEM CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

1 2010-108-D-3 OFF-SITE TOPSOIL C.Y. 514 $30.00 15,420.00$        $32.00 $16,448.00 $32.00 $16,448.00 32.00$            16,448.00$          
2 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY, WASTE C.Y. 3278 $15.00 49,170.00$        $14.50 $47,531.00 $14.50 $47,531.00 14.50$            47,531.00$          
3 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION , CLASS 12, BOULDERS C.Y. 20 $30.00 600.00$             $30.00 $600.00 $30.00 $600.00 30.00$            600.00$               
4 2010-108-F-0 BELOW GRADE EXCAVATION (CORE OUT) C.Y. 200 $15.00 3,000.00$          $14.50 $2,900.00 $14.50 $2,900.00 14.50$            2,900.00$            
5 2010-108-G-0 SUBGRADE PREPARATION S.Y. 9834 $1.00 9,834.00$          $2.15 $21,143.10 $2.15 $21,143.10 2.15$              21,143.10$          
6 2010-108-H-0 SUBGRADE TREATMENT, GEOGRID TENSAR TX-160 S.Y. 5663 $9.00 50,967.00$        $8.50 $48,135.50 $8.50 $48,135.50 8.50$              48,135.50$          
7 2010-108-I-0 SUBBASE, MODIFIED, 12 IN. S.Y. 9834 $20.00 196,680.00$      $19.25 $189,304.50 $22.50 $221,265.00 20.88$            205,284.75$        
8 3010-108-D-0 REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL TONS 2500 $32.00 80,000.00$        $32.50 $81,250.00 $32.50 $81,250.00 32.50$            81,250.00$          
9 4010-108-A-1 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, PVC, 8 IN., TRUSS L.F. 331 $60.00 19,860.00$        $83.00 $27,473.00 $83.00 $27,473.00 83.00$            27,473.00$          

10 4010-108-E-1 SANITARY SEWER SERVICE, TRENCHED, PVC, 4 IN., (SDR-23.5) L.F. 200 $60.00 12,000.00$        $89.00 $17,800.00 $89.00 $17,800.00 89.00$            17,800.00$          
11 4010-108-H-1 REMOVAL OF SANITARY SEWER L.F. 331 $10.00 3,310.00$          $14.00 $4,634.00 $14.00 $4,634.00 14.00$            4,634.00$            
12 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 15 IN. HDPE L.F. 1267 $65.00 82,355.00$        $68.00 $86,156.00 $68.00 $86,156.00 68.00$            86,156.00$          
13 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 15 IN. RCP, 2000D L.F. 158 $90.00 14,220.00$        $88.00 $13,904.00 $88.00 $13,904.00 88.00$            13,904.00$          
14 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 18 IN. HDPE L.F. 109 $75.00 8,175.00$          $73.00 $7,957.00 $73.00 $7,957.00 73.00$            7,957.00$            
15 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 18 IN. RCP, 2000D L.F. 118 $100.00 11,800.00$        $110.00 $12,980.00 $110.00 $12,980.00 110.00$          12,980.00$          
16 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 24 IN. HDPE  L.F. 288 $80.00 23,040.00$        $84.00 $24,192.00 $84.00 $24,192.00 84.00$            24,192.00$          
17 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 24 IN. RCP, 2000D L.F. 100 $105.00 10,500.00$        $130.00 $13,000.00 $130.00 $13,000.00 130.00$          13,000.00$          
18 4020-211 SPECIAL PIPE CONNECTIONS, SW-211 EACH 1 $500.00 500.00$             $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 500.00$          500.00$               
19 4020-108-D-1 REMOVAL STORM SEWER PIPE LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN.(NON-SUBDRAIN) L.F. 1431 $10.00 14,310.00$        $8.00 $11,448.00 $8.00 $11,448.00 8.00$              11,448.00$          
20 4020-108-D-1 REMOVAL STORM SEWER (SUBDRAIN) L.F. 1930 $3.00 5,790.00$          $8.00 $15,440.00 $8.00 $15,440.00 8.00$              15,440.00$          
21 4040-108-A-0 SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED, 6 IN. L.F. 2672 $12.00 32,064.00$        $15.00 $40,080.00 $15.00 $40,080.00 15.00$            40,080.00$          
22 4040-108-D-0 SUBDRAIN, OUTLET, 6 IN. C.M.P. EACH 15 $275.00 4,125.00$          $325.00 $4,875.00 $325.00 $4,875.00 325.00$          4,875.00$            
23 4040-108-D-0 SUBDRAIN, SUMP PUMP TAP EACH 56 $350.00 19,600.00$        $275.00 $15,400.00 $275.00 $15,400.00 275.00$          15,400.00$          
24 4040-108-A-0 FIELD TILE, 4 IN. TO 8 IN., FIELD REPAIR L.F. 20 $20.00 400.00$             $20.00 $400.00 $20.00 $400.00 20.00$            400.00$               
25 5010-108-A-1 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, 4" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. 20 $70.00 1,400.00$          $132.00 $2,640.00 $132.00 $2,640.00 132.00$          2,640.00$            
26 5010-108-A-1 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, 6" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. 60 $75.00 4,500.00$          $91.00 $5,460.00 $91.00 $5,460.00 91.00$            5,460.00$            
27 5010-108-A-1 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, 8" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. 2575 $80.00 206,000.00$      $94.00 $242,050.00 $94.00 $242,050.00 94.00$            242,050.00$        
28 5010-108-C-2 FITTINGS, DUCTILE IRON LBS. 6300 $12.00 75,600.00$        $11.75 $74,025.00 $11.75 $74,025.00 11.75$            74,025.00$          
29 5010-108-D-0 SERVICE SHORTSIDE, 3/4" EACH 26 $1,900.00 49,400.00$        $2,200.00 $57,200.00 $2,200.00 $57,200.00 2,200.00$       57,200.00$          
30 5010-108-D-0 SERVICE, LONGSIDE, 3/4" EACH 28 $2,750.00 77,000.00$        $2,900.00 $81,200.00 $2,900.00 $81,200.00 2,900.00$       81,200.00$          
31 5010-XX-1 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 4" EACH 10 $150.00 1,500.00$          $180.00 $1,800.00 $180.00 $1,800.00 180.00$          1,800.00$            
32 5010-XX-1 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 6" EACH 25 $175.00 4,375.00$          $185.00 $4,625.00 $185.00 $4,625.00 185.00$          4,625.00$            
33 5010-XX-1 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 8" EACH 52 $185.00 9,620.00$          $200.00 $10,400.00 $200.00 $10,400.00 200.00$          10,400.00$          
34 5010-XX-2 JOINT RESTRAINT GASKET, 4" EACH 1 $160.00 160.00$             $235.00 $235.00 $235.00 $235.00 235.00$          235.00$               
35 5010-XX-2 JOINT RESTRAINT GASKET, 8" EACH 39 $180.00 7,020.00$          $310.00 $12,090.00 $310.00 $12,090.00 310.00$          12,090.00$          
36 5010-XX-3 8" NITRILE GASKETS EACH 43 $170.00 7,310.00$          $225.00 $9,675.00 $225.00 $9,675.00 225.00$          9,675.00$            
37 5020-108-A-0 VALVE, 8" MJ GATE W/ BOX EACH 13 $2,500.00 32,500.00$        $3,300.00 $42,900.00 $3,300.00 $42,900.00 3,300.00$       42,900.00$          
38 5020-108-C-0 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EACH 9 $5,500.00 49,500.00$        $8,250.00 $74,250.00 $8,250.00 $74,250.00 8,250.00$       74,250.00$          
39 5020-108-E-0 VALVE BOX ADJUSTMENT EACH 2 $600.00 1,200.00$          $650.00 $1,300.00 $650.00 $1,300.00 650.00$          1,300.00$            
40 5020-108-C-0 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY REMOVAL EACH 5 $1,300.00 6,500.00$          $1,350.00 $6,750.00 $1,350.00 $6,750.00 1,350.00$       6,750.00$            
41 6010-108-A-0 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401, 48" DIA. EACH 6 $4,600.00 27,600.00$        $5,000.00 $30,000.00 $5,000.00 $30,000.00 5,000.00$       30,000.00$          
42 6010-108-A-0 MANHOLE, SANITARY SEWER, SW-301, 48" DIA. EACH 5 $7,000.00 35,000.00$        $8,500.00 $42,500.00 $8,500.00 $42,500.00 8,500.00$       42,500.00$          
43 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SW-507 EACH 4 $6,500.00 26,000.00$        $6,500.00 $26,000.00 $6,500.00 $26,000.00 6,500.00$       26,000.00$          
44 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SW-509 EACH 10 $8,000.00 80,000.00$        $8,100.00 $81,000.00 $8,100.00 $81,000.00 8,100.00$       81,000.00$          
45 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, TYPE B EACH 1 $6,500.00 6,500.00$          $6,700.00 $6,700.00 $6,700.00 $6,700.00 6,700.00$       6,700.00$            
46 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, TYPE D EACH 11 $8,000.00 88,000.00$        $8,800.00 $96,800.00 $8,800.00 $96,800.00 8,800.00$       96,800.00$          
47 6010-108-F-0 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT, MAJOR (MR. MANHOLE) EACH 4 $3,000.00 12,000.00$        $3,000.00 $12,000.00 $3,000.00 $12,000.00 3,000.00$       12,000.00$          
48 6010-108-H-0 REMOVAL OF STORM MANHOLES AND INTAKES EACH 18 $750.00 13,500.00$        $600.00 $10,800.00 $600.00 $10,800.00 600.00$          10,800.00$          
49 6010-108-H-0 REMOVAL OF SANITARY MANHOLES EACH 5 $1,200.00 6,000.00$          $850.00 $4,250.00 $850.00 $4,250.00 850.00$          4,250.00$            
50 7010-108-A-0 PAVEMENT, STAND. OR SLIP-FORM, P.C.C., 7 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 2640 $52.00 137,280.00$      $48.00 $126,720.00 $52.10 $137,544.00 50.05$            132,132.00$        
51 7010-108-A-0 PAVEMENT, STAND. OR SLIP-FORM, P.C.C., 8 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 6138 $55.00 337,590.00$      $54.00 $331,452.00 $56.60 $347,410.80 55.30$            339,431.40$        
52 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY S.Y. 922 $10.00 9,220.00$          $9.00 $8,298.00 $9.00 $8,298.00 9.00$              8,298.00$            
53 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. 34 $10.00 340.00$             $15.00 $510.00 $15.00 $510.00 15.00$            510.00$               
54 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 4 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 29 $65.00 1,885.00$          $55.00 $1,595.00 $165.00 $4,785.00 110.00$          3,190.00$            
55 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 5 $100.00 500.00$             $75.00 $375.00 $310.00 $1,550.00 192.50$          962.50$               
56 7030-108-G-0 DETECTABLE WARNINGS S.F. 8 $51.00 408.00$             $60.00 $480.00 $65.00 $520.00 62.50$            500.00$               
57 7030-108-H-0 DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 922 $60.00 55,320.00$        $50.00 $46,100.00 $71.50 $65,923.00 60.75$            56,011.50$          
58 7030-108-H-2 GRANULAR SURFACING, 1-INCH ROADSTONE TONS 40 $30.00 1,200.00$          $37.00 $1,480.00 $37.00 $1,480.00 37.00$            1,480.00$            
59 7040-108-A-0 PATCH, P.C.C., FULL DEPTH, "M" MIX S.Y. 20 $300.00 6,000.00$          $325.00 $6,500.00 $625.00 $12,500.00 475.00$          9,500.00$            
60 7040-108-H-0 PAVEMENT REMOVAL, PCC S.Y. 8778 $9.00 79,002.00$        $8.25 $72,418.50 $9.50 $83,391.00 8.88$              77,904.75$          
61 7040-108-H-0 PAVEMENT REMOVAL, ACC S.Y. 8778 $9.00 79,002.00$        $6.75 $59,251.50 $8.00 $70,224.00 7.38$              64,737.75$          
62 8020-108-B-0 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, SOLVENT/WATERBORNE STA. 27 $90.00 2,430.00$          $90.00 $2,430.00 $85.00 $2,295.00 87.50$            2,362.50$            
63 8020-108-G-0 PAINTED SYMBOLS AND LEGENDS EACH 7 $80.00 560.00$             $75.00 $525.00 $70.00 $490.00 72.50$            507.50$               
64 8020-XX-1 STREET SIGNS (SIGNS, POST, & RECIEVER) EACH 28 $350.00 9,800.00$          $300.00 $8,400.00 $290.00 $8,120.00 295.00$          8,260.00$            
65 8030-108-A-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1 $50,000.00 50,000.00$        $28,500.00 $28,500.00 $16,000.00 $16,000.00 22,250.00$     22,250.00$          
66 9020-108-A-0 SOD S.F. 27761 $0.90 24,984.90$        $0.90 $24,984.90 $1.10 $30,537.10 1.00$              27,761.00$          
67 9040-108-D-1A WATTLES, 9IN. STRAW L.F. 4867 $2.25 10,950.75$        $2.10 $10,220.70 $2.10 $10,220.70 2.10$              10,220.70$          
68 9040-108-D-2A WATTLES, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL L.F. 4867 $0.50 2,433.50$          $0.50 $2,433.50 $0.50 $2,433.50 0.50$              2,433.50$            
69 9040-108-T-1 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, INSTALLATION EACH 26 $150.00 3,900.00$          $140.00 $3,640.00 $140.00 $3,640.00 140.00$          3,640.00$            
70 9040-108-T-2 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, MAINTENANCE EACH 26 $50.00 1,300.00$          $40.00 $1,040.00 $40.00 $1,040.00 40.00$            1,040.00$            
71 10010-108-A-3 DEMOLITION OF BUILDING STRUCTURES (STAIRS) L.S. 1 $5,000.00 5,000.00$          $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 1,375.00$       1,375.00$            
72 11020-108-A-0 MOBILIZATION L.S. 1 $200,000.00 200,000.00$      $275,000.00 $275,000.00 $410,000.00 $410,000.00 342,500.00$   342,500.00$        
73 11050-108-A-0 CONCRETE WASHOUT LS 1 $15,000.00 15,000.00$        $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 9,000.00$       9,000.00$            

TOTAL BASE BID: 2,530,011.15$   2,664,055.20$   2,900,323.70$   2,782,189.45$     
BID SECURITY: 10% 10%

Bid Security x x

x x

x xNon-Collusion Affidavit

Bidder Status Form

March 13, 2023 at 

2:00 PM
ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE Peterson Contractors Inc. Owen Contracting, Inc. BID AVERAGE

1 2

152

Item 20.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: March 13, 2023 

 SUBJECT: FY2024 Budget 

 
As you are aware we had planned on having the hearing for the max levy on the March 
20th council meeting.  Unfortunately, the Waterloo Courier did not publish the notice in 
accordance with the City’s instructions and even offered to provide a letter confirming it 
was their mistake.  However, whether the Waterloo Courier’s fault or not, we have been 
informed by the Department of Management that we will not be able to hold our hearing 

on March 20th since we don’t meet the publication deadlines.  Therefore, as required 

by the Code of Iowa, we are requesting that the public hearing be set for April 3, 

2023.  
 
As a reminder that unfortunately this new state notice, does not include the total levy 
rate, it only has certain levies.  Therefore, this is not the true picture of the total levy 
rate.  For example, the total rate for the prior year was $11.51 and you will see by the 
notice that it only shows $10.76.  For the upcoming FY24, the form shows a rate of 
$10.81, however, the total rate is being proposed at $11.74.  In addition, because of 
how the form works, it shows an increase of .72% for FY24.  However, the actual effect 
on the residential property owner will be a 2.98% increase in property taxes using this 
maximum levy.  Commercial and Industrial will see a 2.0% increase and multi-
residential will see a 12.56% decrease.  
 

 
If you have any questions, about the budget or the budget process, please feel free to 
contact me.  
 
 
 

153

Item 21.



 
 
 
March 14, 2023 
 
Kim Kerr 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA  50613 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
On Thursday, March 2, 2023, the City of Cedar Falls emailed The Courier a request for 
publication of the Notice of public hearing for the Maximum Levy to be published on 
Wednesday, March 8, 2023. Upon review of the March 8th Courier newspaper, it was found 
that the requested publication (maximum levy) had not been published. The City contacted the 
Courier to inform that the maximum levy notice had not been published, and a Courier staff 
member stated that due to a layout issue the notice for the maximum levy was moved to 
Friday, March 10. Upon review of the Friday, March 10th Courier newspaper, it was found that 
the notice for the maximum levy had not been published once again. March 10, 2023, was the 
latest date of publication that would meet the state 10/20 requirement.  Failure to have the 
notice published by this date resulted in the City of Cedar Falls having to cancel the public 
hearing for March 20, 2023 and schedule a new hearing for April 3, 2023.  This was entirely due 
to an error on the part of the newspaper. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Danine Glascock 
Legals Supervisor 
 
 

154

Item 21.



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - CITY OF CEDAR FALLS - PROPOSED PROPERTY TAX LEVY
Fiscal Year July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024

The City Council will conduct a public hearing on the proposed Fiscal Year City property tax levy as follows:
Meeting Date:    4/3/2023    Meeting Time:    07:00 PM    Meeting Location:    Cedar Falls City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA

At the public hearing any resident or taxpayer may present objections to, or arguments in favor of the proposed tax levy. After adoption of the proposed tax levy, the City
Council will publish notice and hold a hearing on the proposed city budget.

City Website (if available)
cedarfalls.com  City Telephone Number

(319) 273-8600
Current Year Certified

Property Tax 2022 - 2023
Budget Year Effective

Property Tax 2023 - 2024
Budget Year Proposed Maximum

Property Tax 2023 - 2024
Annual %

CHG
Regular Taxable Valuation 2,064,620,691 2,068,909,898 2,068,909,898
Tax Levies:
Regular General 16,723,428 16,723,428 16,758,170
Contract for Use of Bridge 0
Opr & Maint Publicly Owned Transit 456,100 456,100 474,340
Rent, Ins. Maint. Of Non-Owned Civ. Ctr. 0
Opr & Maint of City-Owned Civic Center 0
Planning a Sanitary Disposal Project 0
Liability, Property & Self-Insurance Costs 249,340 249,340 312,770
Support of Local Emer. Mgmt. Commission 576,590 576,590 1,104,190
Emergency 0
Police & Fire Retirement 1,136,090 1,136,090 1,123,780
FICA & IPERS 1,593,540 1,593,540 1,639,300
Other Employee Benefits 1,473,770 1,473,770 957,840
Total Tax Levy 22,208,858 22,208,858 22,370,390 0.72
Tax Rate 10.75687 10.73457 10.81265

Explanation of significant increases in the budget:
Significant increases to the budget are caused by staffing costs, including negotiated salary and benefit increases. Also, consolidated dispatch costs increased significantly
due to the formula being changed.
If applicable, the above notice also available online at:
cedarfalls.com; https://www.facebook.com/citycf; https://twitter.com/CityCF; https://wwww.instagram.com/cedar_falls_iowa/

*Total city tax rate will also include voted general fund levy, debt service levy, and capital improvement reserve levy.
**Budget year effective property tax rate is the rate that would be assessed for these levies if the dollars requested is not changed in the coming budget year

155

Item 21.



156

Item 21.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, Planner I 

 DATE: March 20, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Zoning Code Text Amendment (TA22-005) – Setting of Public Hearing 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Zoning Text Amendment - Add hair salon as potential conditional use of 
defunct institutional buildings 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Chad Welsh, Owner of 209 Walnut (former Church) 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Code change would be applicable to any defunct institutional building 
 

 

 
BACKGROUND 
We received a request for an amendment to the zoning code to add hair salons to the list of 
uses allowed for consideration as a conditional use of a defunct institutional building. The 
applicant is requesting this change because they would like to have an opportunity to apply to 
the Board of Adjustment for a conditional use to repurpose the church building they own at 209 
Walnut Street for use as a hair salon. Personal service uses such as a salon are not currently 
listed as a qualifying use for consideration under this provision of the zoning code. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The following are the current uses eligible for consideration by the Board of Adjustment if an 
owner of a church building would like to adaptively reuse their building as provided for in Section 
26-140 of the Zoning Code, adopted in 2021: 
 

 Hospitality-oriented uses such as: retreat facilities, convention centers, guesthouses, 
meeting halls, and event facilities; 

 Conversion to a multi-unit dwelling in a zone where such use is not otherwise allowed or 
where the proposed number of units exceeds the number otherwise allowed in the zone; 

 Community service uses such as: libraries, museums, senior centers, community 
centers, neighborhood centers, day care facilities, youth club facilities, social service 
facilities, and vocational training facilities for the physically or mentally disabled; 

157

Item 22.



 
 

 Specialized educational facilities such as: music schools, dramatic schools, dance 
studios, martial arts studios, language schools, and short-term examination preparatory 
schools; 

 Professional office uses such as: accountants, lawyers, architects, or similar. 
 
When drafting the original code provision, staff considered other uses that would be similar to 
the community assembly-type activity level of a church, such as the hospitality and community 
service uses listed above. Since these buildings often have large interior spaces that might be 
conducive to classrooms, we included specialized educational uses as an option. There has 
been at least one church in the community that has successfully been converted to apartments 
(in an R-4 zone; not conditional use), so multi-unit dwellings were listed as a possibility. 
Professional office uses are typically fairly low impact uses, so were included as well. Staff felt 
that this list was liberal enough to be useful but limited enough to be appropriate for residential 
zones. The applicant maintains that it is not liberal enough since some neighborhoods may be in 
favor of lighter retail or personal service uses and that determination can be made by the Board 
of Adjustment with any neighborhood input received. With that in mind, below is a breakdown of 
pros and cons of changing the code to allow personal service uses, such as a hair salon to be 
considered. 
 

Pros 
 The traffic and activity of a hair salon or 

similar personal service use may be less 
imposing to a neighborhood than a church 
or some of the other community assembly 
uses listed. 

 Hair salons and other similar personal 
services are common home occupations 
and may not be any more obtrusive than a 
professional office use.  

 Adding it to the list in City code does not 
grant any automatic right to a use, as the 
Board of Adjustment can reject any 
proposal if it is not a good fit for the 
subject property.  

 Neighbors are notified and given 
opportunity to oppose or provide input to 
the Board of Adjustment. 

 Conditions can be imposed by the Board 
of Adjustment to make a use better fit for 
the neighborhood context, such as limiting 
the hours of operation, exterior lighting, 
and signage. 

 A broader use list can provide greater 
utility of the conditional use code 
provision, particularly for smaller 
properties that may not be able to 
accommodate the traffic and activities for 
a community assembly-type use.  

Cons 
 Some retail sales and service uses may 

be considered more controversial in 
residential neighborhoods than the other 
uses listed in the conditional use code 
provision. 

 The conditional use code provision has not 
been in effect very long. Therefore, the 
Board of Adjustment has yet to review a 
conditional use case and develop their 
experience in considering this kind of land 

use matter.  
 Text amendments have application across 

the community for any defunct institutional 
site, so will not just apply to the property 
owned by the applicant.  

 Expanding the list could spur further 
requests for amendments to allow a 
broader range of uses.  

 There were concerns about the conditional 
use code provision when initially 
considered and adopted. Perhaps the 
concept should be tested before it is 
expanded any further.  

 With broader use considerations, 
neighborhood residents close to churches 
may need to be more vigilant and be 
willing to provide input when a re-use is 
considered.   

 
The pros and cons to expanding the uses are fairly balanced as there are near-equal benefits, 

158

Item 22.



 
 

risks, and safeguards. As such, there is not a clear answer as to whether some retail services 
should be added to the conditional use provision or not. However, staff feels that the current 
code as constituted provides plenty of appropriate options for consideration when a church or 
other institutional use becomes vacant.  It may be wise to hold off on expanding the uses until 
the provision is more tested.   
 
PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENT 
If the Commission is inclined to recommend approval of this request, staff suggests the following 
wording be added to Section 26-140(e)(1)a. of the Zoning Code, which lists the use category, 
but then restricts it so that only those uses specifically listed would be allowed for consideration.  
 

6. Personal service uses limited to salons, shoe repair, tailoring services, therapy-based 

services, and photographic studios.  

 
These uses are primarily appointment-based services used by all ages, and thus may be more 
appropriate in neighborhood contexts than other retail or service uses that have more 
unpredictable levels of activity. In addition, staff believes that, if approved, this limited approach 
would accomplish the applicant’s objective without adding a seemingly arbitrary salon use on its 
own.  While staff does not fully support this text amendment, if it is adopted the Board of 
Adjustment may reject any conditional use proposal or impose any reasonable conditions based 
on neighborhood input.  
 
Notice of public hearing at the Planning and Zoning Commission was published in the WCF 
Courier twice: once on February 15, 2023 and then again on March 2, 2023. This was discussed 
and voted on at their March 8, 2023 meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
At the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on March 8, 2023, the Commission voted (5 
ayes to 1 nay) to recommend approval of amendments to add limited personal service uses to 
the list of eligible conditional uses of defunct institutional buildings as outlined in the staff report 
above.  
 
Staff recommends that City Council set a public hearing for the April 3 Council meeting to 
consider the aforementioned ordinance amendments. 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION DISCUSSION 
Discussion 
2/8/2023 

The first item of business was a zoning text amendment to expand a list of potential 
conditional uses of defunct institutional buildings. Chair Lynch introduced the item and 
Mr. Sevy provided background information. He explained that a request was received for 
a zoning text amendment that would allow the addition of hair salons to the list of eligible 
uses in such buildings. He discussed current uses that are eligible for consideration and 
explained that salons would not fall under the professional office uses that are allowed. 
They are considered to be a personal service use. Mr. Sevy provided the pros and cons 
to allowing this kind of business to operate in such buildings. The proposed text 
amendment would read “Personal service uses limited to hair salons, shoe repair, 
tailoring services, therapy-based services and photographic studios.” These uses are 
primarily appointment-based services used by all ages which may make them more 
appropriate in neighborhood context than other retail or service uses. Staff feels that, if 
approved, the limited approach would accomplish the applicant’s objective without 
adding a seemingly arbitrary salon use on its own. Staff does not fully support the text 

159

Item 22.



 
 

amendment. If it is adopted the Board of Adjustment may still reject any conditional use, 
proposal or impose any reasonable conditions based on neighborhood input. Staff 
recommends that the Commission discuss the proposed zoning code amendment and 
set a public hearing date for formal consideration and recommendation to City Council. 

Chad Welsh, 6701 Strayer Road, spoke as the applicant regarding the item, noting that 
the proposed business is intended to be more of a makeup and brow salon. Mr. Sevy 
noted that he hadn’t been given that clarification. Mr. Welsh stated that he is available 
for any questions.  

Steven Jordan, 2510 Cottage Row Road, spoke as Mr. Welsh’s realtor and stated that 
the item will still go through Board of Adjustment approval. 

Mr. Larson suggested changing the business category to salon instead of hair salon to 
avoid making the description so specific. 

Ms. Crisman asked for a definition of a defunct institutional building and what it would 
apply to. Mr. Sevy explained that it applies to an empty building that is not currently 
being used for it’s purpose. Ms. Howard clarified that it has to be an institutional use 
building such as a church or school.  

Mr. Hartley stated that he likes the idea of being able to repurpose buildings that would 
otherwise typically stay empty. Ms. Moser agreed with the sentiment.  

Mr. Larson made a motion to move the item to public hearing. Ms. Crisman seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Larson, 
Lynch and Moser), and 0 nays. 
 

Public 
Hearing 
3/8/2023 

The first item of business was a zoning text amendment regarding expanding the list of 
potential conditional uses of defunct institutional buildings. Chair Lynch introduced the 
item and Mr. Sevy provided background information. He noted that this item was 
presented at the February 8 meeting and gave a recap of what was discussed. He 
discussed the current uses that are eligible for consideration in a defunct building. He 
also covered the pros and cons of repurposing a church for the different uses. The 
proposed text amendment would state “Personal service uses limited to salons, shoe 
repair, tailoring services, therapy-based services, and photographic studios.” Staff 
recommends caution when allowing the possibility of retail services in residential 
neighborhoods for the time being and recommends disapproval of the amendment. 

Chad Welsh, petitioner (6701 Strayer Road), stated that he feels that projects should be 
on a case-by-case basis to allow for more potential projects. 

Stephen Jordan, real estate agent for the petitioner, (2510 Cottage Row Road), stated 
his support and said that he has spoke to many people in the community and that by 
and large the community is in favor of it. 

Mr. Hartley stated his support for being more open to repurposing old buildings and 
using available space when possible. 

Ms. Grybovych asked how the original list of provisions was developed. Mr. Sevy 
explained that it was considered in the context of churches and what has been done 
with them in other communities. Conditional uses are a newer concept to Cedar Falls 
and the goal was to be conservative with the list of uses while still allowing a reasonable 
avenue for adaptive reuse. He displayed some of the currently eligible uses.  

Mr. Larson feels that the simple change in language is adding something explicitly that 
has a similar impact and nature of business to the other ones on the list. He agreed with 
Mr. Hartley in his support.  

160

Item 22.



 
 

Ms. Crisman stated that she believes that repurposing a building is, if possible, always 
the best choice when considering the environmental impact and cost of resources. 

Ms. Grybovych noted concern with adding such specific uses as opposed to making a 
broader category.  

Mr. Larson made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Larson, Leeper and 
Lynch), and 1 nay (Grybovych). 

 

161

Item 22.



162

Item 23.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
DAILY INVOICES FOR 3/20/23 COUNCIL MEETING



163

Item 23.



164

Item 23.



165

Item 23.



166

Item 23.



167

Item 23.



168

Item 23.



169

Item 23.



170

Item 23.



171

Item 23.



172

Item 23.



173

Item 23.



174

Item 23.



175

Item 23.



176

Item 23.



177

Item 23.



178

Item 23.



179

Item 23.



180

Item 23.



181

Item 23.



182

Item 23.



183

Item 23.



184

Item 23.



185

Item 23.



186

Item 23.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
COUNCIL INVOICES FOR 3/20/23 MEETING



187

Item 23.



188

Item 23.



189

Item 23.



190

Item 23.



191

Item 23.



192

Item 23.



193

Item 23.



194

Item 23.



195

Item 23.



196

Item 23.



197

Item 23.



198

Item 23.



199

Item 23.



200

Item 23.



201

Item 23.



202

Item 23.



203

Item 23.



204

Item 23.



205

Item 23.



206

Item 23.



207

Item 23.



208

Item 23.



209

Item 23.



210

Item 23.



211

Item 23.



212

Item 23.



213

Item 23.



214

Item 23.



215

Item 23.



216

Item 23.



217

Item 23.



218

Item 23.



219

Item 23.



220

Item 23.



221

Item 23.



222

Item 23.



223

Item 23.



224

Item 23.



225

Item 23.



226

Item 23.



227

Item 23.



228

Item 23.



229

Item 23.



230

Item 23.



231

Item 23.



232

Item 23.



233

Item 23.



234

Item 23.



235

Item 23.



236

Item 23.



237

Item 23.



238

Item 23.



239

Item 23.



240

Item 23.



241

Item 23.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular meeting of March 6, 2023
	230306MINUTES

	Item 2.	PH-Site plan review in the Downtown Character District
	1. CC.memo.public hearing second petition.3.20.23
	2. draft language site plan review.8.24.22
	3. Ord CD-DT TA22-003 PZ role.2ndpetition

	Item 3.	PH-Zoning Code amendment to eliminate shared parking
	1- Memo CC.ph. text amend.councilpetition.shared parkingCD-DT.3.20.23
	2 - Ordinance.parking amd CD-DT.TA22-001.shared parking

	Item 4.	PH-Increase parking requirements CD-DT
	1- Memo CC.ph. text amend.councilpetition.shared parkingCD-DT.3.20.23
	3 - Ord.CD-DT.TA22-001.1per bed

	Item 5.	Committee Minutes - 03/06/23
	03-06-23 Standing Committees Minutes-Final

	Item 6.	Proclamation-Robotics Week
	2023-03-13_ProclamationsForCityCouncilApproval
	2023-03_W3_RoboticsWeek

	Item 7.	Assistant Equipment Mechanic Civil Service certified list
	Asst Equip Mech-CertList3-2023

	Item 8.	Music Station-Tobacco Violation
	1-Order Accepting Agreement 1st Violation
	2-Music Station-Acknowledgement-Settlement Agreement - Signed
	3-Music Station-Notice of Hearing-1st Violation
	4-Music Station Hearing Complaint-1st

	Item 9.	Liquor Beer 3-20-23
	Retail alcohol 3-20-23

	Item 11.	MPO Appointment
	2023-03-13_MPOPolicyBoardDesignees
	Res-MPO Appoinment

	Item 12.	BQ Bonds-Settlement agreements
	CFU bond BQ council memo
	Investor A Release & Settlement Agreement
	Investor B1 Release & Settlement Agreement
	Investor B2 Release & Settlement Agreement
	Investor C1 Release & Settlement Agreement
	Investor C2 Release & Settlement Agreement
	Investor D Release & Settlement Agreement

	Item 13.	Agreement for Services-Cedar Valley Youth Soccer Association
	Memo - CVSC 3-20-23
	CVSA signed agreement 3-6-23

	Item 14.	Contract for Demo and Discovery at Pro Shop
	1 - Pro shop demo and discovery memo
	Goods  Services - Pro Shop Demo and Discovery with Peters Construction 3-14-23
	3. Exhibit A Exterior Wall Exploration Proposal
	4. Peters Insurance revised

	Item 15.	Site Plan - Triplex on Pinnacle Ridge First Addition, Lot 1
	1_staff report to CCdraft
	2_ZoningLocationMap
	3_04.0_5875_3-Plex Site Plan_2.22.23
	4_ELEVATIONS - MATERIALS DETAILS
	5_Front Rendering

	Item 16.	Final Plat: West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase VI
	1. CCstaff report
	2. ZoningLocationMap plat
	3. PLAT_2023-02-13_FINALPLAT_PHASE-VI_DRAFT
	4. DOD VI

	Item 17.	Temp Easement - N Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase 1
	1.Memo - North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruciton Phase 1 ROW TE
	2. Acquisition Locations Map
	3. Temporary Easement

	Item 18.	Change Order - W. Viking Industrial Park Phase V& VI
	1. Memo - WVIP Change Order
	2. Change Order Expansion Request
	3. PLAT_2023-02-13_FINALPLAT_PHASE-VI_DRAFT

	Item 19.	Low Bid - 2023 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project
	1. Memo Low Bid - 2023 Sewer Rehab
	2. BidWorksheet_8389354_Eval

	Item 20.	Low Bid - 2023 Street Construction Project
	1. Memo Low Bid - 2023 Street Construction
	2. Bid Tab

	Item 21.	Set PH-Max Levy
	1-budget max levy hearing council republish.mem
	Courier Letter
	2-FY24 Notice of Max Levy Republish

	Item 22.	Set PH-Zoning–defunct institutional buildings
	1 - Staff Report to CC - Conditional Use Text Amendment.fv

	Item 23.	Bills and Claims
	1 Daily Invoices 032023
	2 Council Invoices 032023

	Bottom

